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Chairman’s Statement
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Group Sense (International) Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively, the "Group”) continued to face
various challenges in the year of 2013. The popularity of
Internet significantly changes to the mode of competitiveness
of all walks of life. Manufacturing becomes more specific
under global labor division. Therefore, the Group is required
to have more concrete strategies and stronger business
partnerships in order to be competitive. To achieve the
aforesaid targets, the Group has the following three
development directions:

1)

2)

Strengthen the partnerships for product research
and development

One of the Group's strategies for this year is to actively
establish strategic partnerships with scientific research
solution houses with a view to shorten the time for
launching of the products to the markets, as well as to
use the more advanced solutions developed by the
strategic partners to enhance product quality which in
turn increases the competitiveness of the Group. In the
year under review, the Group has already begun to work
more closely with certain core chip manufacturers and
their research teams to develop various products using
Android as the main software platform such as wearable
products, set top boxes and Android TV boards, etc. It is
believed that such co-operations can further explore
business opportunities for the Group.

Development of services for online stores

There are many new entrants enter into the online sales
business every year who are attracted by the tremendous
increase in the online sales volume resulting from the
wide accessibility to Internet. Such online stores may not
have their own production facilities, so they need to have
production service from outside. The requirements of
these online stores are characterized by low volume,
short delivery period with quality assurance. The Group will
continue to optimize the operation of its Manufacturing
Business Unit with a view to attract more online stores to
engage the one-stop production services offered by the
Group. This strategy works gradually last year. The
management anticipates that more and more online
stores and enterprises will use the Group's production
platform in the coming years, so that the Group can
successfully turn into an online store service provider
providing such customers with the requisite services
according to their needs.
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Chairman’s Statement (continued) .
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3) Explore and develop value-added services for

the products

As mobile Internet products like tablets and smartphones
are common to the general public, the mode of learning
of people have been changed gradually. Online learning
becomes a new trend which provides new business
opportunities to the Group. The Group used to sell the
hardwares in the past years. Now, it is moving forward to
the new business model of selling online education and
online exercises, including development of the Apps and
online platform services, etc. Through selling of the
hardwares or softwares to different users and thereafter to
establish the user group by provision of various value-
added services. It is believed that this new business model
can bring in continuous revenue to the Group.

FINAL DIVIDEND

The board of directors of the Company (the “Board”) does
not recommend any payment of final dividend to the
shareholders of the Company (the “Shareholders”) for the
year ended 31 March 2014.

APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board, | wish to thank all our Shareholders,
customers, suppliers and bankers for their continual support. |
would also like to extend my appreciation to all the staff for
their dedicated work and contribution throughout the year.

By order of the Board
Dr. Tam Wai Ho, Samson Jp
Chairman

Hong Kong, 27 June 2014
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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BUSINESS REVIEW

As mobile Internet becomes a global trend, many related new
products and new techniques are being launched into the
market. This phenomenon brings new business opportunities
whilst eliminating some of the old products. In order to adapt
to this change and to effectively establish a foothold in the
new business environment, the Group has revised the
positioning on its products, services and teams last year. The
Group has made good use of its partners’ platforms for better
utilization of its internal resources, so that it can allocate its
resources to the high-growth segments. To cope with the
work allocation of the whole supply chain, the Group also
made strategic adjustments on its product development,
manufacturing and sales respectively. A review on the new
strategies and progress of each strategic business units of the
Group were as follows:

Manufacturing Business Unit

The results of Manufacturing Business Unit ("MBU") were
unsatisfactory in the year under review due to the unexpected
change in production orders. In view of this, the MBU has
made subsequent adjustments to further streamlining every
single production process. Apart from outsourcing more
working procedures, it also endeavored to expand the
"Electronic Manufacturing Services” ("EMS”) business in the
mainland China. The results of the MBU showed significant
improvement thereafter, particularly the touch panel business
has begun to record a profit. Following the slight improvement
on demand of the entire production market, the Group is
optimistic about the number of production orders to be
obtained by the MBU next year. The MBU will continue to
strive for enhancing its production efficiency, so as to alleviate
the cost pressure resulting from the increase in labor cost. In
general, the Group is confident in respect of the improvement
in the performance of MBU in the coming year.

06 Group Sense (International) Limited ® Annual Report 2014



THRARR S (])

Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)
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BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)

Strategic Products Strategic Business Unit

The major customers of Strategic Products Strategic Business
Unit ("SP SBU") were from Japan over the years. Owing to the
uncertainty of the Japan market, the purchase orders from
this market decreased last year, causing SP SBU failed to meet
its anticipated results. Although SP SBU strived hard to seek
for other new customers, the result is yet to be seen. As
such, the Group has made certain strategic adjustments by
taking fewer high-risk Original Design Manufacturing (“ODM")
orders which were at the preliminary development stage.
Meanwhile, it started to apply aggressively the solutions
developed by its research and development partners in order
to reduce the product development costs and to shorten the
product design period. In addition to minimizing the risks
associated with product research and development, the new
strategy also focused on development of the new markets
other than Japan with a view to boost sales volume.

Regarding the learning products, the Group has released a
number of new products in the China and South East Asia
markets recently. The product strategies of the Learning
Solution Department (“LSD"), a sub-division under SP SBU,
for the year of 2014/15 focused on children’s learning
products. LSD gradually grasped the product needs of the
PRC children aged between 3-6 years old after more than a
year's exploration. The relevant products are ready to be
introduced into the market. One of the major tasks of LSD in
the coming year is to work in parallel with the online
marketing and the online-and-offline marketing activities to
promote these new products. The Group believes that
children’s products have growth potential, however, it needs
to work hard in order to outperform its competitors.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)
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BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)

Personal Communication Products Strategic Business
Unit

Turnover of Personal Communication Products Strategic
Business Unit ("PCP SBU") slightly lagged behind its
forecasted amount in the year of 2013/14. The reason for this
was mainly attributable to the delay in development causing
certain new products could not be launched into the market
as scheduled and hence, affecting the results.

PCP SBU developed two new point-of-sale (“POS") terminal
products in the year under review: one was the enterprise
tablet with different add-on modules to be used mainly in the
catering and retail sectors; the other was a paging system to
be used in the catering industry to enhance operating
efficiency of our customers. The popularity of cloud
computing and mobile payment leads to an increase in
demand for POS wireless terminals by the enterprises.
Leveraging on its two new POS products, namely the
“enterprise tablet” and “restaurant paging system”, together
with its existing POS handheld terminal products, it is
believed that PCP SBU’s performance in the year of 2014/15
will be improved.

In addition, PCP SBU strived to increase its competitiveness
by opening up more new markets as well as to better control
product quality and development costs.

Analysis of Revenue by Principal Activities

RS ZE on
Strategic products
77.6%
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Analysis of Revenue by Geographical Markets
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OUTLOOK

After completion of restructuring and repositioning of the
related divisions of the Group, it is expected that the business
development capabilities of these divisions will be enhanced.
The MBU experienced a positive feedback on its restructuring.
It secured orders for sub-contract services from new customers
from time to time. Its production capacity can gradually be
restored to a reasonable level. The Group will deploy more
resources in market development in the year of 2014/15. It is
believed that this will be helpful in exploiting new sources of
customers for the EMS and Original Equipment Manufacturing
businesses, hopefully the overall production efficiency of the
MBU can be further enhanced and it can be able to breakeven
soon.

Besides, development of the new generation of an e-learning
tablet was basically completed and the product is ready to be
launched into the market. Apart from selling of the hardware,
the Group will introduce more value-added contents for this
product with a view to establish a new business model in this
area. As such, the Group is working hard to develop an online
learning platform and to develop, together with other
publishers, the softwares on its platform. It is hoped that this
online learning platform can bring in revenue contribution to
the Group by mid-2014.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue of the Group for the financial year ended 31 March
2014 was approximately HK$349,382,000, which was
approximately 9% lower than approximately HK$383,340,000
of last year. During the year under review, personal
communication products business and strategic products
business recorded revenue of approximately HK$78,158,000
and HK$271,224,000 respectively.

Operating loss of the Group during the year was approximately
HK$78,673,000 (2013: approximately HK$72,717,000). After
deducting finance costs of approximately HK$574,000 (2013:
approximately HK$580,000) and other operating expenses of
approximately HK$7,542,000 (2013: approximately HK$3,391,000),
loss before tax was approximately HK$86,789,000 (2013:
approximately HK$76,688,000). After taking into account of
taxation, loss for the year was approximately HK$86,805,000
(2013: approximately HK$76,685,000).

Regarding the statement of financial position, inventories
decreased by HK$18,515,000 to approximately HK$47,039,000 and
trade receivables decreased by HK$13,412,000 to approximately
HK$43,587,000.

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the reporting period
amounted to approximately HK$34,497,000 of which HK$1,001,000
was pledged.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

On 31 March 2014, the bank balances and cash of the Group
(including bank deposits) were approximately HK$34,497,000
(2013: HK$80,782,000) of which HK$1,001,000 was pledged
(2013: Nil). The Group's bank borrowings as at 31 March 2014
were HK$23,814,000 (2013: HK$20,000,000). The Group's bank
borrowings were denominated in Hong Kong dollars with
floating interest rate and short term in nature.

As at 31 March 2014, the gearing ratio of the Group, defined
as total bank borrowings divided by shareholders’ equities,
was approximately 10%. The interest expenses was
approximately HK$574,000 during the year.

10 Group Sense (International) Limited ® Annual Report 2014
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CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 March 2014, the contingent liabilities of the Group

were approximately HK$12,605,000 (2013: approximately
HK$4,895,000).

FOREIGN CURRENCIES AND TREASURY POLICY

Most of the Group's business transactions, assets and liabilities
are denominated in Hong Kong dollars, Japanese Yen, United
States dollars or Renminbi. The usual treasury policy of the
Group is to manage significant currency exposure and minimize
currency risk whenever it may have material impact to the
Group. During the last twelve months period, the Group did
not engage in any interest rate or currencies speculations.

EMPLOYEES RELATIONS

As at 31 March 2014, the Group has 110 employees (2013: 139
employees) in Hong Kong, 1,014 employees (2013: 1,377
employees) in China and 11 employees (2013: 13 employees)
in Japan, representing a decrease of approximately 21%, 26%
and 15% respectively as compared with last year. In addition
to salary remuneration, the Group also provides other fringe
benefits such as annual leave, medical insurance and
provident fund, etc. for its staff.

During last financial year, the Group’s management held
monthly breakfast meeting with its senior staff to review
together the Group’s performance as well as to formulate
effective business strategies. Within SBUs, communication
meetings were held periodically to share the SBU's
performance and directions among related staff. Meanwhile,
the Chairman also shared the Company’s development
highlights with the employees through email regularly. The
management actively communicates with employees through
intranet and emails to ensure free flow of information across
different staff levels and to promote information and
experience sharing. All staff are encouraged to express their
views and feelings and to propose suggestions on different
aspects. A good promotion system is in place to identify the
potential staff and help employees preparing for their career
prospects.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)
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EMPLOYEES RELATIONS (continued)

In addition to internal training programmes, employees are
encouraged to take external programmes to acquire
additional knowledge and upgrade their skills. Employees
may be nominated for attending direct job-related training
programmes or seminars with full sponsorship. For other
external training courses, employees may still apply for full or
partial subsidies through the Group’s Education Sponsorship
& Allowance Scheme.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

The Group's concern for the environment begins with its own
operations. The Group's headquarter in Hong Kong participated
the centralized automatic refuse collection system and lighting
control system. The Group encourages the adoption of
recycled or environmentally responsible materials as well as
paper and toner cartridges recycling. Besides, the Group
requests any relevant parts or materials delivered, provided
and/or supplied by the suppliers shall comply with and
observe Directive of the European Parliament and of the
Council on the restriction of the use of certain hazardous
substances in electrical and electronic equipment (RoHS),
Directive of the European Parliament and of the Council on
waste electrical and electronic equipment (WEEE), Directive
of the European Parliament and of the Council on registration,
evaluation, authorization and restriction of chemicals (REACH)
and other standards.

In order to enhance the administrative efficiency, the ISO2001
Quality Management System and I1ISO14001 Environmental
Management System have been combined since 2000. On-
site surveillance assessment is conducted regularly by
independent assessors to ensure compliance and continual
improvement. Internal audit teams have been organized to
perform compliance audit on an on-going basis.

As to care for the community, the Group participated in
"Blood Donation and Bone Marrow Registration Campaign”
launched by Red Cross at Hong Kong Science Park in April
2014 and we encourage our colleagues to become donors
and give a helping hand to the patients who are in need of
blood or bone marrow to sustain their lives. Moreover, the
Group was a venue sponsor for Lutheran Family Life Education
Unit (Shatin) for organizing some talks on family life during the
fiscal year.
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The Company recognizes the importance of good corporate
governance to the long-term development of the Group and
has devoted considerable efforts in identifying, formulating,
implementing and enhancing corporate governance practices
in accordance with the needs of the Group. As mentioned
below, the Company has established the relevant committees/
sub-committee and adopted certain internal policies to
improve internal controls and enhance transparency of
business operation of the Group with a view to protect the
interests of its stakeholders.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company has complied with the code provisions of the
Corporate Governance Code (the “"Code”) as set out in
Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
(the "Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange") throughout the financial year
ended 31 March 2014, except for the following deviation:

Code provision A.6.7 requires, inter alia, that independent
non-executive directors should also attend general meetings
and develop a balanced understanding of the views of
shareholders.

Mr. Fung Henry, one of the Independent Non-executive
Directors of the Company, was absent from the annual
general meeting of the Company held on 11 September 2013
as he was out of town on the aforesaid date.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors (the “Model Code”) set out in
Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as its code of conduct
regarding securities transactions by the directors of the
Company (the "Directors”) on terms no less exactly than the
required standard set out in the Model Code. Having made
specific enquiry of all Directors, all Directors confirmed that
they have complied with the required standard set out in the
Model Code throughout the financial year ended 31 March
2014.
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THE BOARD

Currently, the Board comprises the following nine Directors:

Executive Directors

Tam Wai Ho, Samson Jp (Chairman)

Tam Wai Tong, Thomas (Managing Director)
Tam Mui Ka Wai, Vivian

Kazuhiro Otani

Lee Koon Hung

Non-executive Director
Luk Chui Yung, Judith

Independent Non-executive Directors
Wong Kon Man, Jason

Fung Henry

Li Chi Kwong

Functions of the Board

The Board is responsible for formulating the overall strategies
and policies of the Group, reviewing and monitoring its
financial performance, including preparing and approving
financial statements and overseeing operational matters of
the management, considering the adequacy of resources,
qualifications and experience of staff of the Group's accounting
and financial reporting function and their training programmes
and budget. Daily business operations and administrative
functions of the Group are delegated to the management.

Board meetings and practices

The Board meets regularly and board meetings are held at
least four times a year at approximately quarterly intervals.
Notices and agenda of regular board meetings are served to
all Directors at least fourteen days before the meetings to
ensure that all Directors are given the opportunity to attend
and to include matters in the agenda. Discussion materials of
regular board meetings are sent to all Directors for their study
at least three days prior to the meetings. Draft minutes of
board meetings are circulated to all Directors for review and
comments within a reasonable time after the meetings prior
to confirmation. Minutes are recorded in sufficient detail of
the matters considered by the Board and decisions reached.
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THE BOARD (continued)

Board meetings and practices (continued)

During the financial year ended 31 March 2014, four board
meetings and an annual general meeting (the "AGM") were
held by the Company, and the individual attendance rate of
each Director is as follows:

HESBRE
Number of
meetings attended

EEee2 RRBFKRE

Annual
Board General
Meetings Meeting
HITESE - Executive Directors:
EEx cvet(FE) Tam Wai Ho, Samson Jp (Chairman) 4/4 11
BER(EFHLHE) Tam Wai Tong, Thomas (Managing Director) 4/4 1/1
BiRE Tam Mui Ka Wai, Vivian 4/4 1/1
RAME Kazuhiro Otani 4/4 11
&S Lee Koon Hung 4/4 11
FHERTESE - Non-executive Director:
[N Luk Chui Yung, Judith 4/4 1/1
BUIFHITESE - Independent Non-executive Directors:
T®BY Wong Kon Man, Jason 4/4 11
W g () Fung Henry (Note 1) 3/3 0/1
25 = g (Hi52) Li Chi Kwong Mete2 2/2  FEAN/A
Bt - Notes:
M BEEEER_ZE—=FtA+NBEEE (1) Three board meetings were held since Mr. Fung Henry's appointment
% FEBEFHEBETH=RGHE - on 16 July 2013.
Q2 FEABIR-_ZT-—=FNAA+—HETZ (2)  Two board meetings were held since Dr. Li Chi Kwong's appointment

BREBFAGRERERE HRESGH

BITIBRAEE -

% EWAEBIE3.10(1) 5 (2) » LA K 3.10A 1§
2T ARFIERTRAEE 2B IE
WITESE MES2RATE—RAEEE
SHABEENFERER - EE2E KT
B IERITESRE EMARAIE 313K
EBMMmEREL 2 FEHER L -

on 11 September 2013 after the AGM held on the same date.

Pursuant to Rules 3.10(1) and (2), and 3.10A of the Listing
Rules, sufficient number of Independent Non-executive
Directors have been appointed with one of them has
appropriate accounting or related financial management
expertise. The Board has received annual confirmation of
independence from each of its Independent Non-executive
Directors as required under Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.
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THE BOARD (continued)

Relationship between Board Members

The relationship between Dr. Tam Wai Ho, Samson Jp and
Mr. Tam Wai Tong, Thomas is brothers. Mrs. Tam Mui Ka Wai,
Vivian is the spouse of Dr. Tam Wai Ho, Samson Jp and the
sister-in-law of Mr. Tam Wai Tong, Thomas.

The relationship between Mr. Lee Koon Hung and Ms. Luk
Chui Yung, Judith is husband and wife, and the relationship
between Mr. Fung Henry and Dr. Li Chi Kwong is cousins.

Save as disclosed above, there is no other financial, business,
family or other material/relevant relationships among
members of the Board.

Directors’ Continuous Professional Development
With effect from 1 April 2012, the management of the
Company has provided the Directors with monthly updates
on the Company’s performance, position and prospects to
enable the Directors to make informed decisions in
discharging their duties.

In addition, the Company updates the Directors of the latest
changes in the Listing Rules, Companies Ordinance and other
applicable regulatory requirements from time to time. Apart
from encouraging the Directors to participate in continuous
professional development (“CPD") courses to refresh and
enhance their knowledge and skills, the Company also
arranged an industry-related in-house seminar for the
Directors and provided them with reading materials relating
to the directors’ duties. All Directors have provided the
Company with their records of training they received during
the year ended 31 March 2014.
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THE BOARD (continued)

Directors’ Continuous Professional Development
(continued)

A summary of the trainings participated by the Directors
during the year ended 31 March 2014 is as follows:

BERNHE T NWFEF=A=1+—HIF
B2y EIIganT

RESERREIAR
Mode of CPD training
HERE, HEE A E
PRZWHE BEME BERRED
Attend in-
house/outside Reading  Attend other
seminars materials CPD events
HITEE - Executive Directors:
BER ATet(LE) Tam Wai Ho, Samson s (Chairman) - / J
BRR(EFHLE) Tam Wai Tong, Thomas (Managing Director) - v -
Bifnz Tam Mui Ka Wai, Vivian J/ J _
RANE Kazuhiro Otani / / _
F Lee Koon Hung v / /
IHTEE - Non-executive Director:
BERA Luk Chui Yung, Judith - J/ J/
BUIINTEF - Independent Non-executive Directors:
FHx Wong Kon Man, Jason v/ v/ v/
VepgeT] Fung Henry v/ v v
FEN Li Chi Kwong v / _

S (BR) BRAR ¢ 2014 EF RS
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THE BOARD (continued)

Corporate Governance Functions

The Board is responsible for performing the following
corporate governance duties of the Company in accordance
with the “"Terms of Reference of Corporate Governance
Function” adopted by it in 2012:

(@) to develop and review the Company’s policies and
practices on corporate governance and make appropriate
recommendations;

(b) to review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of Directors and senior
management;

(c) to review and monitor the Company’s policies and
practices on compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements;

(d) to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct
applicable to employees and Directors; and

(e) to review the Company's compliance with the Code and
disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report.

During the year under review, the Board has performed the
following corporate governance duties:

e  Reviewed and approved the contents of the Corporate
Governance Report included in the 2013 annual report of
the Company;

e Adopted the “Board Diversity Policy”;

e  Reviewed and approved the Revised Terms of Reference
of the Nomination Committee to reflect the latest
changes in the Listing Rules; and

¢  Reviewed the Whistle-blowing Policy of the Group to
ensure the arrangements for employees to raise
concerns about possible improprieties in financial
reporting and internal control, etc. were adequate.
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CHAIRMAN AND MANAGING DIRECTOR

The Chairman and the Managing Director of the Company
are Dr. Tam Wai Ho, Samson Jp and Mr. Tam Wai Tong,
Thomas respectively. The roles of the Chairman and the
Managing Director are clearly segregated and are not
exercised by the same individual. The Chairman is principally
responsible for the Group's corporate planning and financial
management whereas the Managing Director is principally
responsible for the overall marketing and sales strategies of
the Group's products.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The terms of appointment of the Non-executive Director and
the Independent Non-executive Directors are fixed for a
specific term, and shall be subject to retirement by rotation
and re-election in accordance with the Bye-laws of the
Company (the “Bye-laws”).

BOARD COMMITTEES

Currently, the Company has set up five committees, namely
the Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee, the
Nomination Committee, the Executive Management
Committee and the Share Option Committee respectively.
Each committee is delegated with specific authorities by the
Board in assisting the Board to discharge its duties and to
administer particular aspects of the Group's activities. The
roles and functions of each committee are summarized below:

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee was established in 1999. The Company
has adopted Terms of Reference of the Audit Committee in
compliance with code provision C.3.3 of the Code. The Audit
Committee comprises three Independent Non-executive
Directors, namely Dr. Li Chi Kwong (chairman of the Audit
Committee), Mr. Wong Kon Man, Jason and Mr. Fung Henry.

The principal responsibilities of the Audit Committee is to
provide an independent and professional advice on financial
reporting, to evaluate the effectiveness of internal control
(including the adequacy of resources, qualifications and
experience of staff of the Company’s accounting and financial
reporting function, and their training programmes and
budget) and the sufficiency of external and internal audits of
the Group.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)

Audit Committee (continued)

After each Audit Committee meeting, the chairman of the
Audit Committee will report to the Board of the significant
issues discussed by the Committee for the Board's information
and/or consideration. The Process Improvement and Internal
Audit Sub-committee was formed in 2002 to assist the Audit
Committee in carrying out its duties and to provide support to
frontline functions in improving business operations and
performing internal audit. Internal audit reports will be directly
sent to the Audit Committee periodically.

The Audit Committee has held four meetings (two of which
have invited the auditors of the Company to participate) in
the financial year ended 31 March 2014. The major tasks
accomplished by it during year are summarized below:

e  Reviewed the final results for the year ended 31 March
2013 and the interim results for the six months ended 30
September 2013, and confirmed that the accounting
principles and practices adopted as well as the
disclosures made in such financial statements were
appropriate, accurate and fair;

e  Reviewed the quarterly financial position of the Group
for the months ended 30 June 2013 and 31 December
2013 respectively;

e  Reviewed the internal audit reports submitted by the
Internal Audit Sub-committee of the Company, evaluated
and advised on the internal control procedures and risk
management matters;

e Discussed with the auditors on the scope of audit for the
financial year ended 31 March 2014 and approved the
auditors’ remuneration; and

e Reviewed the adequacy of resources, qualifications
and experience of staff of the Company’s accounting
and financial reporting function, and their training
programmes and budget.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)

Audit Committee (continued)
The attendance rate of individual members in attending the
Audit Committee meetings is as follows:

HESBEAH
Number of
meetings
attended
FERENEEEEELE) Li Chi Kwong Met? (Chairman of Audit Committee) 2/2
THX Wong Kon Man, Jason 4/4
RS g i) Fung Henry (Notei) 3/3
Mt - Notes:
(i) FEXRFELTR_Z-—=ZFALAT—BEZHE (i) Two Audit Committee meetings were held since Dr. Li Chi Kwong's
% BEREESHBITEMAEE - appointment on 11 September 2013.
iy BELEEER-T—=FtA+ HEZFE (i) Three Audit Committee meetings were held since Mr. Fung Henry's

% BREEEHABTB=RES -

FMESS
FHEZBE SN —NIURNFRIL - ARFIE
RIFEZ ST R Z 57 AR B 2 1R SR A #r
MEEecBERE - FHZEeXER
RATESERRBL avat MMEEL
FRTES MEIBELE(FHEES
TR RISRESTE -

FIEE SR ERARAEENGEER
ABZHFMBRERBRAESSREZ
& HEFRIBIT-REZ AR ME
EHTEFMSEEEABZHM NG
M- ARAEEEEHIFNTES 2
E o EEERPERARREERGEER
ABZHME - FMEEeRERETH
AEBEMSEF N - AARRRAAF]
AR BEM 2 BINENF

appointment on 16 July 2013.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee was established in 1996. The
Company has adopted Terms of Reference of the Remuneration
Committee in compliance with code provision B.1.2 of the
Code. The Remuneration Committee comprises an Executive
Director, namely Dr. Tam Wai Ho, Samson Jp and two Independent
Non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Wong Kon Man, Jason
(chairman of the Remuneration Committee) and Mr. Fung
Henry.

The Remuneration Committee is responsible for making
recommendations to the Board on the Company’s policy and
structure in relation to remuneration of the Directors and
senior management of the Company. It schedules to meet at
least once a year to review and determine the remuneration
packages of the Executive Directors and senior management
and to make recommendation to the Board of the remuneration
of Non-executive Director. In determining and approving the
remuneration of Directors and senior management of
the Company, the Remuneration Committee will take into
consideration of various factors such as market competitiveness,
individual performance and profitability of the Company and
its business units.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)

Remuneration Committee (continued)

The Remuneration Committee has held one meeting in the
financial year ended 31 March 2014 to review the salary of
Executive Directors and senior management of the Company,
etc. The attendance rate of each member is as follows:

HESRRY

Number of

meeting

attended

IR (FWEESTE) Wong Kon Man, Jason (Chairman of Remuneration Committee) 1/1

BER AT#@+ Tam Wai Ho, Samson Jp 11

)l%jﬁﬁg_](/fﬁﬁ*) Fung Henry (Note) Z(;@)Eﬁ N/A
Bt Note:

HEEEENR —T—=F AT NBEZREE
MWEESWEBITEE

REZEE
REZEBEN T —ZFKY ' ARFIE
S E 5%~ A2 <7 RN A5 2 1R BR MR 32
ZREgvRERE - TRZEENER
ROTESFEBRREL avut NMBIBL
FHTER ABExmEE(REZES
IR RIEEHEE -

REZESRERNESTSZRE A
AR EeRBREERAHEIESRLZ
ATUHREEZZERBEENEETSIEL
B FHEBUIFMITER BT - A
REFRRNRREFTEKREZTTIEER ZH
TH=H -

No Remuneration Committee meeting was held since Mr. Fung Henry's
appointment on 16 July 2013.

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee was established in 2012. The
Company has adopted Terms of Reference of the Nomination
Committee with reference to code provision A.5.2 of
the Code. The Nomination Committee comprises an
Executive Director, namely Dr. Tam Wai Ho, Samson Jp and
two Independent Non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Fung
Henry (chairman of the Nomination Committee) and Mr.
Wong Kon Man, Jason.

The Nomination Committee is responsible for reviewing the
structure, size and composition of the Board, identifying
individuals suitably qualified to become Directors and making
recommendations to the Board on the appointment or
reappointment of Directors, assessing the independence of
the Independent Non-executive Directors and monitoring the
implementation of the Board Diversity Policy of the Company.
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REZEE(E) Nomination Committee (continued)
REZEERNHE_ZE—NNF=A=4— The Nomination Committee has held one meeting in the
E&Zﬁﬁﬁﬁlifﬁiﬁﬂ RE% - &R financial year ended 31 March 2014, together with by means
EEARZFN BRI LKEEBATEEE of written resolutions, to review and deal with the following
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major issues:

Reviewed the qualifications and experiences of individual
Directors as well as their roles and responsibilities in the
Group to ensure the existing Board structure is fit for the
business growth of the Group;

Identified Mr. Fung Henry and Dr. Li Chi Kwong to fill the
casual vacancies of the Board, assessed the independence
of the aforesaid candidates and recommended to
the Board on their appointment as Independent Non-
executive Directors;

Assessed and confirmed the independence of Mr. Wong
Kon Man, Jason and made recommendation to the
Board on his reappointment;

Reviewed the degree of diversity of the existing Board,;
and

Considered the amendment of the Terms of Reference
of the Nomination Committee to reflect the latest
changes in the Listing Rules.

The attendance rate of individual members in attending the
Nomination Committee meeting is as follows:

HEGERE
Number of
meeting
attended

S (lEEZESF/E)
BER ATH+
ITHX

Fung Henry (Chairman of Nomination Committee) 1/
Tam Wai Ho, Samson Jp 11
Wong Kon Man, Jason 1/1

e EE)ARAT « 2014 BEHRE 23




EERETARE(H])

Corporate Governance Report (continued)

ExggTZE8E(H)

HITEEZEES
WITERZEEN_STRFKY ' 518
EHREDEVEEFSEBEARTER
ZEEWAEE- Bl WTEEZRES
HABRITESZMAEK  BIEEREL «¥
ar(MITERZBEXF)  BERLLE
BiRS LT KAMESLRENFEESR
Ko

BREZES
BEREZEEN - NNARERILLFIEE
ERESLE - UERES BIRRARRRER
R (B X TREEEZEEH - AQF]
AEFAWFZHEA LR T EMBRE
o FREBLIFATESIE - BIRES
BemmBRNTESMEK GRS
T(BREZEEER) NFTHELL -

EEEREZLBERE

BETHFAZ I ARFARR-E
—=F N\ ARBEERRE S TR -

ARRRRALBEEEERE LTS
KEVFEE - FTAESEKE 2R TINRE
BERZMAAES BIRA - WHKE EIRE
AZETEBEEN - 15 Fie - Xk
RBEES Bk BEER EEK
i~ XBE - MBKRIRBFES - RIKRTE
RIREEE CREMNAIREEEHRLZE
BAEIRES ©

BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)

Executive Management Committee

The Executive Management Committee was established in
2005 with written terms of reference to operate as a general
management committee under the authority of the Board.
Currently, the Executive Management Committee comprises
five Executive Directors, namely Dr. Tam Wai Ho, Samson Jp
(chairman of the Executive Management Committee), Mr. Tam
Wai Tong, Thomas, Mrs. Tam Mui Ka Wai, Vivian, Mr. Kazuhiro
Otani and Mr. Lee Koon Hung.

Share Option Committee

The Share Option Committee was established in 1996 with
written terms of reference to deal with issues relating to the
grant of share options under the Company’s share option
scheme (if any). Any grant of the Company’s share options to
the Directors or their associates requires approval from the
Independent Non-executive Directors. The Share Option
Committee comprises two Executive Directors, namely Mrs.
Tam Mui Ka Wai, Vivian (chairman of the Share Option
Committee) and Mr. Lee Koon Hung.

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY SUMMARY

In compliance with the new provision of the Code, the
Company has adopted the Board Diversity Policy in August
2013.

The Company recognizes and embraces the benefits of
diversity of its Board members. All Board appointments will
be based on meritocracy and competence, and the
candidates will be considered against certain objective criteria
such as gender, age, cultural and educational background,
ethnicity, professional qualifications, areas of experience,
skills, knowledge and length of services, etc. The ultimate
decision will be based on merits and contributions that the
selected candidates will bring to the Board.
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respect of the audit services and non-audit services are as
follows:

TET
gl Types of services HK$'000
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the financial statements which give a true and fair view of the
state of the Group's affairs and results. The Group recorded a
consolidated net loss of approximately HK$86,805,000 (2013:
approximately HK$76,685,000) for the year ended 31 March
2014, however, the management considers the going concern
basis of preparation of the financial statements appropriate
after taking into consideration of the following:

(@) the Group had interest bearing bank borrowings of
approximately HK$23,814,000 as at 31 March 2014 for
working capital purposes. Although the bank borrowings
will expire within one year, the Directors are of the
opinion that the Group will be able to renew/refinance
the bank borrowings upon its expiry;

(b) the Group had non-current assets including leasehold
land and buildings located in Mainland China and
available-for-sale investments as at 31 March 2014 that
are available for the Group to realise significant cash or
for securities for further bank borrowings; and
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DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR
PREPARATION OF THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

(c) the management has been endeavouring to improve the
Group's operating results and cash flows.

Should the Group be unable to continue as a going concern,
adjustments would have to be made to write down the value
of assets to their recoverable amounts and to provide for any
further liabilities which might arise. The effect of these
adjustments has not been reflected in the consolidated
financial statements.

For further details, please refer to the paragraph headed
"Emphasis of Matter” in the Independent Auditors’ Report
and note 2.1 to the financial statements in this annual report.

Save as disclosed above, the Board is not aware of other
material uncertainties relating to events or conditions which
may cast significant doubt over the Group's ability to continue
as a going concern.

The statement of the auditors of the Company about their
reporting responsibilities on the financial statements is set out
in the "Independent Auditors’ Report” on pages 42 to 44 of
this annual report.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company Secretary, Miss. Wong Miu Ying, Vivian, is a full
time employee of the Company. Miss. Wong confirmed that
she has taken no less than 15 hours of relevant professional
training during the year under review in compliance with Rule
3.29 of the Listing Rules.
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SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

Convention of Special General Meeting

Pursuant to Bye-law 58 of the Bye-laws, Shareholders holding
at the date of deposit of the requisition not less than 10% of
the paid up capital of the Company carrying the right of
voting at general meetings of the Company shall at all times
have the right, by written requisition to the Board or the
Secretary of the Company, to require a special general
meeting to be called by the Board for the transaction of any
business specified in such requisition; and such meeting
shall be held within two months after the deposit of such
requisition to the Company'’s registered office. If within 21
days of such deposit the Board fails to proceed to convene
such meeting, the requisitionists themselves may do so in
accordance with the provisions of Section 74(3) of the
Bermuda Companies Act 1981 (the “Companies Act”).

Putting Forward Proposals at General Meetings by
Shareholders

Pursuant to Sections 79 and 80 of the Companies Act, registered
Shareholders are entitled to put forward a proposal at a
general meeting if they:

(@) represent not less than 5% of the total voting rights of the
Company at the date of the deposit of the requisition; or

(b) are not less than 100 registered Shareholders.

The written requisition stating the resolution(s) should be
duly signed by the registered Shareholder(s) concerned,
accompanied by a statement of not more than 1,000 words
with respect to the matter referred to in the proposed
resolution or the business to be dealt with must be deposited
at the Company'’s registered office. The Company would take
appropriate actions and make necessary arrangements. The
Shareholder(s) concerned would be responsible for the
expenses incurred in giving effect thereto in accordance with
the requirements under Sections 79 and 80 of the Companies
Act once valid documents are received.
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SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS (continued)

Enquiries from Shareholders

The Board welcomes views, enquires and concerns in relation
to the management and corporate governance of the Group
from Shareholders. Shareholders may at any time send their
enquires and/or concerns to the Board in writing by email
(gsl@gsl.com.hk), by fax ((852) 2892 0361) or by mail to the
principal place of business of the Company for follow up.

For shareholding enquiries, Shareholders may contact the
Hong Kong branch share registrar and transfer office of the
Company, Tricor Secretaries Limited, at Level 22, Hopewell
Centre, 183 Queen'’s Road East, Hong Kong.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENT

The Memorandum of Association and Bye-laws of the
Company was posted on the websites of the Company and
the Stock Exchange on 20 March 2012 and there is no change
in such constitutional document during the year.

INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Board has overall responsibilities for internal control of
the Group. The system of internal control is designed to
manage and mitigate the risk of failure to achieve business
objectives with reasonable assurance against material
misstatement or loss.

The Process Improvement and Internal Audit Sub-committee
was formed in 2002 to provide support to frontline functions
in improving business operations and performing internal
audit. Internal audit reports will be directly sent to the Audit
Committee periodically. A comprehensive policy and standard
governing the process improvement and internal audit scope
and workflow, authority and integrity of the audit staff, was
promulgated in September 2006. After each Audit Committee
meeting, the chairman of the Audit Committee will address
the significant findings of the issues discussed for the Board's
information and consideration.

The Board has conducted review of the effectiveness of the
internal control system of the Group which covers the review
of risk management functions, financial, operational and
compliance controls, the adequacy of resources, qualifications
and experience of staff of the Company’s accounting and
financial reporting function and their training programmes
and budget, etc.. The Board considered the internal control
system of the Group effective and adequate.
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INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Group is committed to enhance investor relationship by
increasing its transparency to the investment community. A
Shareholders Communication Policy was adopted and posted
on the Company’s website in March 2012 to ensure that
Shareholders are provided with equal and timely access to the
comprehensive information of the Group.

In addition, the following measures have been taken by the
Company to keep investors informed of the latest developments
and news of the Group and to facilitate a two-way communication
between the Company and its Shareholders:

(@) Mailing corporate communication documents such as
interim reports, annual reports and circulars to the
Shareholders periodically and uploading the same on
the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange;

(b) Publishing announcements through the websites of the
Company and the Stock Exchange;

(c) Making available of the Company’s corporate and
products information on its website;

(d) Organizing general meetings to facilitate direct
exchange of views between the Shareholders and the
management of the Company; and

(e) Encouraging investors to communicate with the
Company through the Company’s website from time to
time.

At the Company'’s last AGM held on 11 September 2013, all
the resolutions relating to the adoption of financial
statements, re-election of Directors, reappointment of
auditors and grant of general mandates to issue and
repurchase shares have been duly passed. The forthcoming
2014 AGM of the Company is scheduled to be held on 11
September 2014 at 10:00 a.m.. Shareholders may refer to the
notice of the aforesaid AGM contained in the circular of the
Company dated 28 July 2014 for details.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Dr. TAM Wai Ho, Samson Jp, aged 50, is the Chairman of the
Company and one of the founders of the Group. He is also a
member of the Remuneration Committee and Nomination
Committee of the Company. He is responsible for the Group's
corporate planning and financial management. Dr. Tam
graduated from the Chinese University of Hong Kong with a
Bachelor’'s degree in Science and later was awarded the
degree of Doctor of Philosophy from the Hong Kong
Polytechnic University. He is the younger brother of Mr. Tam
Wai Tong, Thomas, the Managing Director of the Company
and the husband of Mrs. Tam Mui Ka Wai, Vivian, an Executive
Director of the Company.

Dr. Tam received “The Young Industrialist Award of Hong
Kong"” awarded by the Federation of Hong Kong Industries in
September 1992 and was elected the Hong Kong's “Ten
Outstanding Young Persons” in November 1997. He was a
member of the Legislative Council of Hong Kong (Information
Technology Functional Constituency) during the years from
2008 to 2012. Currently, Dr. Tam is the chairman of the
Technology Development Committee of the Federation of
Hong Kong Industries, a member of The Hong Kong/
European Union Business Co-operation Committee and a
council member of The Open University of Hong Kong.

Mr. TAM Wai Tong, Thomas, aged 52, is the Managing
Director of the Company and one of the founders of the
Group. He is responsible for the overall marketing and sales
strategies of the Group's products. Mr. Tam has a Diploma in
Electronic Engineering from the Hong Kong Polytechnic
University. He has over twenty-nine years of experience in
marketing electronic components and consumer electronic
products. He received “Advanced Technology Development
Award” of “"Capital Magazine's Outstanding Information
Technology and Financial Enterprise Awards” in August 2001.
He is the elder brother of Dr. Tam Wai Ho, Samson Jp, the
Chairman of the Company and the brother-in-law of Mrs. Tam
Mui Ka Wai, Vivian, an Executive Director of the Company.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (continued)

Mrs. TAM Mui Ka Wai, Vivian, aged 46, is an Executive
Director of the Company. She joined the Group in February
1992 and is one of the members of the Share Option
Committee of the Company. She is responsible for human
resources management and administrative matters of the
Group. Mrs. Tam has obtained a Bachelor's degree in Arts
from the University of Hong Kong and a Master’s degree in
Training and Human Resource Management from the
University of Leicester, United Kingdom, and has over twenty-
four years of experience in management and administration.
She is the wife of Dr. Tam Wai Ho, Samson Jp, the Chairman of
the Company and the sister-in-law of Mr. Tam Wai Tong,
Thomas, the Managing Director of the Company.

Mr. Kazuhiro OTANI, aged 53, joined the Company as
Executive Director in April 1997. He is responsible for OEM/
ODM business in the Strategic Product Division and corporate
business planning of the Group. He is the chief executive
officer and president of Kabushiki Kaisha Group Sense, a
subsidiary of the Group in Japan. Mr. Otani graduated from
the Kansai University of Foreign Studies in Osaka, Japan with
a Bachelor of Arts in Foreign Languages, and has been
working for a Japanese electronics company for fourteen
years before he joined the Group. He has spent the latter ten
years in the Hong Kong office of this Japanese company since
1987, being responsible for sales and marketing of electronic
components such as IC, LCD, etc.

Mr. LEE Koon Hung, aged 51, joined the Group in 1988 and
was appointed as Executive Director of the Company in April
1998. He is one of the members of the Share Option
Committee of the Company. Mr. Lee is responsible for the
personal communication products business of the Group. He
is also responsible for overseeing the operation of the
Information Technology Department of the Group since
September 2013. Mr. Lee graduated from the Hong Kong
Polytechnic University with Higher Certificate in Electronic
Engineering and obtained a Bachelor's degree in Computer
Science from Asia International Open University and a Master
of Science’s degree in Engineering Business Management
from the University of Warwick, United Kingdom. He has thirty
years of experience in electronic product development. He is
the husband of Ms. Luk Chui Yung, Judith, a Non-executive
Director of the Company.

e EE)ARAT « 2014 BaERE 31



EFREREEAREN (])

Directors and Senior Management Profiles (continued)

FHITES

EERLZt BETH R—hL/\hE
MAKRER  IR-_TEE+FNAEEE
BARBZHPTES - FET—=F—
A—BERBETARTESTNEAERE
BERRNBENITES - BERETN T —=
FUAZAHEREAEE 2 EFErHmER -
WAHTARBNITESHEBR NN ER
EEEE - HERE  BERPRRED
Wk o WEENBEBRTAE  EEEE
BERR  EHEEETERZMBHEE
RIYEFACRE-TRAELES - AKX
REAITEETTHIEZRK »

BAFHTES

EBXEE RFS0m RZZTZWMF
NAMARRBRBEILIFAITES - KA
RRABFHWEEGEE  UWREREZE®
MREEREEKE - TAEEXENEHE
BERMLARE  WESTHEESTEN
TEEHE - WABBEHAE MEE
SRt AEEE BAEBETNAFEH R
THER TRERREVEAKEARR
NRAEFRKE - RS EABIERAR
RBIZBIIFAITES » ZABIRBEF
ERET

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Ms. LUK Chui Yung, Judith, aged 47, joined the Group in
1989 and was appointed as Executive Director of the
Company in June 2007. She resigned as Executive Director
with effect from 1 January 2013 and was appointed as Non-
executive Director of the Company on the same date. Ms. Luk
was responsible for the electronic dictionary business in the
Electronic Dictionary Division of the Group before April 2012
and for improving the efficiency and effectiveness of the
manufacturing, supply chain, operation as well as the central
procurement of the Group during her tenure of office as
Executive Director of the Company. She graduated from the
City University of Hong Kong with a Higher Diploma in
Business Management. She has twenty-five years of
experience in marketing and sales of consumer electronic
products. She is the wife of Mr. Lee Koon Hung, an Executive
Director of the Company.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. WONG Kon Man, Jason, aged 50, joined the Company
as an Independent Non-executive Director in September
2004. He is the chairman of the Remuneration Committee,
and a member of the Audit Committee and Nomination
Committee of the Company. Mr. Wong graduated from The
University of Hawaii with a Bachelor's degree in Business
Administration majoring in Accounting. He is a member of the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
American Institute of Certified Public Accountants and has
over nineteen years of experience in accounting and auditing.
At present, Mr. Wong is the managing director of Fortune
Capital Group Limited. He is also an independent non-
executive director of Neo-Neon Holdings Limited, a company
listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
(continued)

Mr. FUNG Henry, aged 56, joined the Company as
Independent Non-executive Director in July 2013. He is also
the chairman of the Nomination Committee and a member
of the Audit Committee and Remuneration Committee of
the Company. Mr. Fung is a Certified Public Accountant
(Practising) in Hong Kong, a fellow member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants, the Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants of United Kingdom and the
Taxation Institute of Hong Kong respectively. He is also a
registered Certified Tax Advisor with the Taxation Institute of
Hong Kong and an associate member of the Institute of
Chartered Accountants in England and Wales. Mr. Fung is the
cousin of Dr. Li Chi Kwong, an Independent Non-executive
Director of the Company.

Mr. Fung has over twenty-eight years of experience in
accountancy and financial management. He worked for two
public listed companies prior to starting work as a Practising
Certified Public Accountant. During the period between 2001
and 2003, he served as an advisor to the board of directors of
a leading Japanese Investment Group in Hong Kong. Mr.
Fung is experienced in providing auditing and management
consulting services to enterprises in a wide range of industries
including manufacturing, mining, finance and investment,
catering and entertainment, technology and advertising.

Dr. LI Chi Kwong, aged 61, joined the Company as
Independent Non-executive Director in September 2013. He
is also the chairman of the Audit Committee of the Company.
Dr. Li holds a Doctor of Philosophy degree from the University
of Westminster in the United Kingdom and a Master of
Science degree in Cybernetics from the London University in
the United Kingdom. He also holds numerous professional
qualifications in engineering, including Chartered Engineer,
Registered Professional Engineer, Member of the Institute of
Mechanical Engineers, Senior Member of the Institute of
Electrical and Electronic Engineers Inc., and Fellow of the
Institute of Engineering and Technology, Hong Kong Institute
of Engineers as well as Hong Kong Association of the
Advancement of Science and Technology. Dr. Li is the cousin
of Mr. Fung Henry, an Independent Non-executive Director of
the Company.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
(continued)

Dr. Li was an Associate Professor in the Department of
Electronic and Information Engineering in the Hong Kong
Polytechnic University from years 1985 to 2012. After obtaining
over thirty-six years of experience in the academic field and
the engineering industry, he sets up a private consultant
company serving a number of engineering companies. He has
published over 150 technical papers in international journals
and conferences and obtained a number of patents. Dr. Li
also serves in many professional and government committees.
Currently, Dr. Li is an independent non-executive director of
Daisho Microline Holdings Limited, a company listed on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. LI Chi Hung, Francis, aged 56, joined the Group in
December 2003. He is the executive director of Marketing and
Business Development of Group Sense PDA Limited and
Group Sense Mobile-Tech Limited, subsidiaries of the Group.
Mr. Li holds a Master’'s degree in Business Administration
from University of East Asia. Prior to joining the Group, he has
more than twenty years of experience in marketing and
manufacturing of consumer electronic products.

Mr. LO Yat Man, Bang, aged 47, joined the Group in
September 2012 as plant general manager. He is responsible
for overseeing the overall operation of the Group's production
plant in Dongguan. Mr. Lo is currently pursuing a Master's
degree in Business Administration at University of South
Australia. He has over twenty-eight years of experience in
plant management and manufacturing of electronics
products.
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The Board presents its annual report and the audited financial
statements for the year ended 31 March 2014.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The
activities of its principal subsidiaries, joint ventures and
associates are set out in notes 17, 18 and 19 to the financial
statements respectively.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2014
are set out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income on page 45.

No interim dividend was paid by the Company during the
year under review and the Board does not recommend any
payment of final dividend to Shareholders for the year ended
31 March 2014. The retention of the loss of the Group as at 31
March 2014 was approximately HK$277,404,000.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS
For the year ended 31 March 2014:

()  The Group’s largest customer and the five largest
customers accounted for 14% and 47% respectively of
the Group's total revenue.

(i) The Group's largest supplier and the five largest
suppliers accounted for 14% and 29% respectively of the
Group’s total purchases (not including purchases of
items which are of capital in nature).

According to the understanding of the Board, none of the
Directors, their associates or any Shareholders who owned
more than 5% of the Company’s share capital had any interest
in the five largest customers or the five largest suppliers.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

During the year under review, the Group acquired leasehold
improvement of approximately HK$1,297,000, furniture,
fixtures and equipment of approximately HK$4,015,000, plant
and machinery of approximately HK$6,829,000, toolings and
moulds of approximately HK$2,515,000 and construction in
progress of approximately HK$4,982,000.

Details of the above items and other movements in the
property, plant and equipment of the Group during the year
are set out in note 14 to the financial statements.
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SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company are
set out in note 32 to the financial statements.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and the
Group during the year under review are set out in note 33 to
the financial statements and in the consolidated statement of
changes in equity.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

At 31 March 2014, the Company did not have any reserves
available for distribution which was calculated in accordance
with the provisions of the Companies Act (as amended). In
addition, the Company's share premium account, in the
amount of approximately HK$409,710,000, may be distributed
in the form of fully paid bonus shares.

DIRECTORS AND DIRECTORS’ SERVICE
CONTRACTS

The directors of the Company during the year and up to the
date of this report were as follows:

Executive Directors:

Tam Wai Ho, Samson Jp (Chairman)

Tam Wai Tong, Thomas (Managing Director)
Tam Mui Ka Wai, Vivian

Kazuhiro Otani

Lee Koon Hung

Non-executive Director:
Luk Chui Yung, Judith

Independent Non-executive Directors:
Wong Kon Man, Jason
Fung Henry
(Appointed on 16 July 2013)
Li Chi Kwong
(Appointed on 11 September 2013)
Yung Wing Ki, Samuel sBs, MH, Jp
(Retired on 11 September 2013)
Ho Kwok Shing, Harris
(Resigned on 1 July 2013)
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DIRECTORS AND DIRECTORS' SERVICE
CONTRACTS (continued)

Pursuant to Bye-law 86(2) of the Bye-laws, Dr. Li Chi Kwong
will hold office until the forthcoming AGM of the Company
and, being eligible, offer himself for re-election at the AGM.

Pursuant to Bye-law 87 of the Bye-laws, Mr. Tam Wai Tong,
Thomas, Mr. Lee Koon Hung and Mr. Wong Kon Man, Jason
will retire by rotation and, being eligible, offer themselves for
re-election at the AGM.

Both of the Non-executive Director and the Independent
Non-executive Directors have been appointed for a term of
no more than one year.

None of the Directors being proposed for re-election at the
AGM has a service contract with the Group which is not
determinable by the Group within one year without payment
of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

INDEPENDENCE OF INDEPENDENT NON-
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received from each of its Independent
Non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Wong Kon Man, Jason,
Mr. Fung Henry (“Mr. Fung”) and Dr. Li Chi Kwong (“Dr. Li"),
an annual confirmation confirming their independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

Notwithstanding that Dr. Li is the cousin of Mr. Fung, Dr. Li
does not have any financial or business connection with Mr.
Fung and the relative relationship between Dr. Li and Mr.
Fung is quite remote, so the Company considers their
independence will not be affected.

Accordingly, the Company considers all the Independent
Non-executive Directors are independent.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SECURITIES

At 31 March 2014, the interests of the Directors and their
associates in the shares and underlying shares of the
Company and its associated corporations (within the meaning
of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the
"SFQO")), as recorded in the register maintained by the
Company under Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
the Model Code set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules,
were as follows:

FEEBERROHE (FR)
Number of ordinary shares held (long position)
B AR EEER HEBT
(LEREBA RikfER (REELE Rz
EEpnE S6%H) (BERER) ®H) wE Epi>
Personal Family Corporate
interests (held interests  interests (held
as beneficial (interest of by controlled % of issued
Names of Directors owner) spouse) corporation) Total share capital
BER trst 31,732,000 2,300,000 537,877,118 571,909,118 47.75
Tam Wai Ho, Samson Jp (FtaE1) (Note 1) (H1i£2) (Note 2)
BEXR 34,732,000 - 537,877,118 572,609,118 47.81
Tam Wai Tong, Thomas (B3 1) (Note 1) (Hf3#2) (Note 2)
BiERE 2,300,000 - - 2,300,000 0.19
Tam Mui Ka Wai, Vivian
RAME 2,000,000 - - 2,000,000 0.17
Kazuhiro Otani
T 1,676,000 - - 1,676,000 0.14
Lee Koon Hung
ERER 550,000 - - 550,000 0.05

Luk Chui Yung, Judith

Witk

1. ZEBRMBEEHEERBIATALRERER
o4 HRHHA 2 25,732,000 B pefn

2. 537,877,118 % X 5 LAEarnmill Holdings
Limited ([Earnmill]) Z & & & & * Earnmill &
—ZR i Kiteway Assets Limited ([ Kiteway |) &
TTNB Profits Limited ([ TTNB J) #5848 2
A] + i Kiteway X TTNB RIS Bl B ESH

ATHL REEE LR AR -

3. BEzELATeL BERIKIREER

SeEH A Earnmill ZESE ©

4 BE_Z-HNF=A=+—HIi ' ARFAZ
BEITIRINEER1,197,663,0290%

Notes:

1. Such shares included the 25,732,000 shares which are jointly owned by
Dr. Tam Wai Ho, Samson Jp and Mr. Tam Wai Tong, Thomas.

2. The 537,877,118 shares are registered in the name of Earnmill Holdings
Limited (“Earnmill”), a company which is owned by Kiteway Assets
Limited (“Kiteway”) and TTNB Profits Limited (“TTNB") in equal shares.
Kiteway and TTNB in turn are wholly owned by Dr. Tam Wai Ho,
Samson JP and Mr. Tam Wai Tong, Thomas respectively.

3. Dr. Tam Wai Ho, Samson Jp, Mr. Tam Wai Tong, Thomas and Mrs. Tam
Mui Ka Wai, Vivian are also directors of Earnmill.

4. The total number of issued shares of the Company as at 31 March 2014
was 1,197,663,029 shares.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SECURITIES
(continued)

Save as disclosed above, at 31 March 2014, none of the
Directors or their associates had any interests or short
positions in the shares and underlying shares of the Company
or any of its associated corporations as defined in the SFO.

SHARE OPTIONS

The Company'’s old share option scheme was expired on 1
April 2012 and all the outstanding share options granted
under such scheme were either forfeited or lapsed. The
Company has not adopted any new share option scheme as
at the date of this report.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

At no time during the year was the Company or any of its
subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to enable the
Directors to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of
shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body
corporate.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

No contract of significance to which the Company or any of its
subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of
the year or at any time during the year.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has
purchased, sold or redeemed any listed securities of the
Company during the financial year ended 31 March 2014.
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Name of Shareholder

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

At 31 March 2014, the register of substantial shareholders
kept by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO
shows that other than the interests disclosed above in respect
of certain Directors, the following Shareholder had notified
the Company of relevant interests and short positions in the
issued share capital of the Company:

FriFEER HE 81T

ROEE (F8) BRAEZEDLE
Number of ordinary

shares held % of issued

(long position) share capital

Earnmill Holdings Limited

Bzt -
RERER X [EERE 2 EHMES ] AREEN
fREXAEEEN RZFT—HF=A

=t— B ARAEEETANALNE
AN B B dn SkAR BE AR 1) P A AR IR 8 55
EERIGRBIZBIRAAR R RIKE 2 s 0
2 o

BRBEER
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RBEEHM

DNBEFRE

REARBANFREMENER MIEE
ERA - RARENEA 2 RIEER AT
B - AR —EA&F ETRAFET A

NRFRE -

537,877,118 44 .91
(#13%) (Note)

Note:

The shareholding is also included in the “Directors’ Interests in Securities”
disclosed above.

Save as disclosed above, at 31 March 2014, the Company had
not been notified by any persons who had interests or short
positions in the shares or underlying shares of the Company
which would fall to be disclosed to the Company under the
SFO.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Bye-
laws or the laws of Bermuda, which would oblige the
Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to the
existing Shareholders.

PUBLIC FLOAT

The Company has maintained the prescribed public float
under the Listing Rules, based on the information that is
publicly available to the Company and within the knowledge
of the Directors as at the latest practical date prior to the
printing of this report.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee comprises three Independent Non-
executive Directors, namely Dr. Li Chi Kwong (chairman of the
Audit Committee), Mr. Wong Kon Man, Jason and Mr. Fung
Henry.

During the year under review, the Audit Committee has held
four meetings to review the accounting principles and
practices adopted by the Group and discuss internal control
and financial reporting matters.

The Audit Committee has reviewed the annual results of the
Group for the year ended 31 March 2014.

AUDITORS

There has been no change in the auditors of the Company
during the past three years. Ernst & Young will retire and the
Company will propose a resolution at its forthcoming AGM to
reappoint Ernst & Young as auditors of the Company.

By order of the Board

Dr. Tam Wai Ho, Samson Jp
Chairman

Hong Kong
27 June 2014
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To the shareholders of Group Sense (International) Limited
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Group Sense (International) Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) set out on pages 45 to
142, which comprise the consolidated and company
statements of financial position as at 31 March 2014, and the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of
changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash
flows for the year then ended, and a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a
true and fair view in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to
enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
consolidated financial statements based on our audit. Our
report is made solely to you, as a body, in accordance with
Section 90 of the Bermuda Companies Act 1981, and for no
other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or
accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.

42 Group Sense (International) Limited ® Annual Report 2014



B ZENERE (1])

Independent Auditors’ Report (continued)

BEE 2 BE(E)

HPERBEBFLSTMASRMNETBIZ
SEAETTER - ZFERERKEFET
BIERE - WHRBI MAITES - ASEME
ELFRBERRELFAEMEAHERR

[

mc

BRIESRERENERF - NERAH
HEMBHRRABSBENRENEZZ
B BENBEZREFIURNZ AN A
o BRYARFERNERMEBNES
M mREABHREROTG - EETTE
BREHEER  ZEEERREZARREEE
MR FHTI R AR S B 75 R AR R A A AP
B URGTREMNELERF BEENIL
FHABEFNBERIMERRER - BRTL
FRBRENFEESEASTRRMNRE T
FEE Gt A RN - URFIERE
IR ABRIIFH L

BAHEE RAMESHERZEER
- BEHSEMANERERRETE
%0

=z
=

BMRE HWEREYBRREBESRS
PERELENEEAF R FQF
¥ EEER-_ZE—NWNF=A=+—8H
MLk ESEBEHZEZB EFENE
BRBRESRE  WEIEBESQ AN
WERELERE -

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITY (continued)

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements are free from material
misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected
depend on the auditors’ judgement, including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making
those risk assessments, the auditors consider internal control
relevant to the entity’s preparation of consolidated financial
statements that give a true and fair view in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances,
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of
the Group as at 31 March 2014, and of the Group’s loss and
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly
prepared in accordance with the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
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EMPHASIS OF MATTER

Without qualifying our opinion, we draw attention to note 2.1
to the consolidated financial statements which indicates that
the Group incurred a consolidated net loss of HK$86,805,000
(2013: HK$76,685,000) and net operating cash outflows of
HK$31,363,000 (2013: HK$67,100,000) during the year ended
31 March 2014. These conditions indicate the existence of a
material uncertainty which may cast significant doubt about
the Group's ability to continue as a going concern. As
explained in note 2.1 to the consolidated financial statements,
these financial statements have been prepared on a going
concern basis, the validity of which depends on the on going
availability of debt facilities, the realisation of certain non-
current assets and improvement in the Group's operations to
generate adequate cash flows to meet the Group’s financial
obligation as and when they fall due in the foreseeable future.

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants
22/F, CITIC Tower

1 Tim Mei Avenue

Central

Hong Kong

27 June 2014
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
HE_Z—MF=HA=1—HI%FJE Year ended 31 March 2014

—E-QNF —E-=F
2014 2013
B = TET TET
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
KA REVENUE 5 349,382 383,340
HERA Cost of sales (280,981) (294,346)
EH Gross profit 68,401 88,994
=0 NS i - Other income and gains, net 5 10,915 19,756
HE RO HE Selling and distribution expenses (37,606) (36,036)
1T Administrative expenses (79,211) (86,826)
M kY E Research and development expenses (41,178) (58,345)
HigE it - 58 Other operating expenses, net (7,542) (3,391)
Bh& Ak A Finance costs 7 (574) (580)
FEIG 5 F R B Share of profits and losses of:
BERT] Joint ventures 6 (160)
N An associate _
BAERE LOSS BEFORE TAX 6 (86,789) (76,688)
BIERR, (ZH) Income tax credit/(expense) 10 (16) 3
rEEEE LOSS FOR THE YEAR (86,805) (76,685)
Ht2mkA OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
BEMEEFHDERIEEH Other comprehensive income to be
Hih 2 EYA reclassified to profit or loss in
subsequent periods:
TEBINEB ERER Exchange differences on translation
of foreign operations (2,002) 869
rFEEREBRAE TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE LOSS
FOR THE YEAR (88,807) (75,816)
FELEE - Loss attributable to:
A/ THXTEH—;%/\ Equity holders of the Company 11 (80,409) (75,724)
JEf R %S Non-controlling interests (6,396) (961)
(86,805) (76,685)
FEIEREERETE Total comprehensive loss attributable to:
A THXT/E?—;E/\ Equity holders of the Company (82,411) (75,011)
JEf R 25 Non-controlling interests (6,396) (805)
(88,807) (75,816)
KRAEBRBREREA LOSS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO
BiEERER ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF
THE COMPANY
ER(BL) Basic (HK cents) 13 (6.7 centsB{ll) (6.3 centsiB1lll)
B (BAL) Diluted (HK cents) 13 (6.7 centsiB1l) (6.3 cents)B{ll)
BRAREZFFIBRN I B mEMaE12 - Details of the dividend are disclosed in note 12 to the financial
statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
RZZE—PF=F=+—H 31 March 2014

—E-NE —Z=—=F
2014 2013
PiaE THET TET
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
FRBEE NON-CURRENT ASSETS
ME - W= N EE Property, plant and equipment 14 133,106 125,894
TEf L E KA Prepaid land lease payments 15 16,669 17,162
P IE A B A AR Deferred development costs 16 506 593
BERNAZIEE Investments in joint ventures 18 8,834 8,203
BENTZIRE Investments in associates 19 - =
A HERSE Available-for-sale investments 20 31,199 36,425
RE%RE Long term deposits 21 52 3,275
ERBEELREE Total non-current assets 190,366 191,552
REBEE CURRENT ASSETS
TE Inventories 22 47,039 65,554
FEY E F IR Trade receivables 23 43,587 56,999
FERNFIE - #H4E& NEM  Prepayments, deposits and other
JE W BR X receivables 24 28,167 33,550
IS ERRIERR Amounts due from joint ventures 18 401 195
JRE i Bk = B AR SR Amounts due from associates 19 5,734 3,328
EHEFER Pledged deposits 25 1,001 -
RekFeFEEBR Cash and cash equivalents 25 33,496 80,782
MBNEEER Total current assets 159,425 240,408
REEE CURRENT LIABILITIES
FEfE SR Trade payables 26 40,145 43,389
EmEMRANIESTAE Other payables and accruals 27 35,197 30,646
B EIRITIEE Interest-bearing bank borrowings 28 23,814 20,000
B Provision 29 1,573 2,059
JE —BIB AR —3EZH] Due to a non-controlling shareholder
A& R BR K of a subsidiary 30 2,002 —~
JERTRR R Tax payable 130 129
mEBEERE Total current liabilities 102,861 96,223
REEEFE NET CURRENT ASSETS 56,564 144,185
BEFE Net assets 246,930 335,737

46 Group Sense (International) Limited ® Annual Report 2014



fn e M BIKR R (18)

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position (continued)
R-ZF—MNFE=H=+—H 31 March 2014

—E-NFE T =F
2014 2013
B 5 FEx F&T
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
iz #E EQUITY
AARREREA Equity attributable to equity holders
FEAk AR #E of the Company
2 BT & AN Issued capital 32 119,766 119,766
A Reserves 33(a) 130,743 212,626
250,509 332,392
iR HI RS Non-controlling interests (3,579) 3,345
g ik Total equity 246,930 335,737
E T LR AL
Dr. Tam Wai Ho, Samson Jp Mr. Tam Wai Tong, Thomas
EE S
Director Director
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

(E=F—NF=H=+—HIEFE Year ended 31 March 2014

KRARERHEARL
Attributable to equity holders of the Company
2R Rt §1RE EXRE
B HER RET RREE HtRer T RoER BE  FEER RELE
Share Capital Exchange Non-

Issued premium  redemption Special Other  fluctuation ~ Accumulated controlling Total
capital account* reserve* reserve* reserve® reserve* losses* Total interests equity
TEL TAT THEL TAT TAT THEL TAL TAT TEL TAT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

(HzE330)

(note 33(a))

W2 At1 Aprl 2012

mA—A 119,766 409,710 419 (60,819) 4713 54,885 (121,211) 407,403 4,150 411,953
KEEEE Loss for the year - - - - - - (75724) 75,724 961) (76,689)
FEEEMEE Other comprehensive

Wi income for the year:

FEEIER Exchange differences

ZERER on translation of
foreign operations - - - - - 713 - 713 156 869
AEERE Total comprehensive
i/ (B18) 48 income/(loss) for
the year - - - - - 713 (75,724) (75,011) (805) (75,816)
WZZE-=%F At 31 March 2013 and

=ZA=+-Hk at 1 April 2013

R=Z-—=%

A-A 119,766 409,710 419 (60,819) 4713 55,598 (196,995) 332392 3,345 335,737
REEEE Loss for the year - . . - . . (80,409) 80,409) (639) (86,805)
REEEMEE Other comprehensive

BR: loss for the year:

nEEERZ Exchange differences

EXER on translation of
foreign operations - - - - - (2,002) - (2,002) - (2,002)
AEERAEBE Total comprehensive
loss for the year - - - - - (2,002 (80,409) (82,411) (6:39) (88,807)
WERSEE I Acquisition of
non-controlling
interests - - - - 528 - - 528 (528) -
R-F-m% At 31 March 2014

=A=t-A 119,766 409,710 419 (60,819) 5,241 5359 (277,404) 250,509 (3579) 246,930

* HWEHEBEERAERNGAERNBERIARZEEFEE * These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of HK$130,743,000

130,743,000 7T (ZF — =4 : 212,626,000/57T) °

(2013: HK$212,626,000) in the consolidated statement of financial position.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
HE2 T —NF=A=+—HILFE Year ended 31 March 2014

—E-OF -
2014 2013
B aE THExT FET
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
REXBCHRERE CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING
ACTIVITIES
A EE Loss before tax (86,789) (76,688)
R Adjustments for:
D@ Finance costs 7 574 580
BHEER Share of profits and losses of
—BtE R REN & joint ventures and
B8 an associate (6) 260
RITHEWA Bank interest income 5 (136) (1,020)
BAFEZABREK Interest income from investments at
ZIREFBHA fair value through profit or loss 5 - (226)
AIHERE ZKE Dividend income from available-for-
WA sale investments 5 - (1,137)
HEWE  BENMRKRME  Loss/(gain) on disposal of items of
BHZEBE (M=) property, plant and equipment 5 479 (307)
BAFERABRE Fair value losses on investments at
ZIREZ NFE fair value through profit or
EiE - F8 loss, net 5 - 30
e Depreciation 6 11,258 10,182
ENEHEERE Recognition of prepaid land lease
R payments 6 493 493
AT 7 B N N 5 Amortisation of deferred
development costs 6 436 519
TFEMBEE A BIRFE  Write-down of inventories to
net realisable value 6 9,532 6,542
i == W/NEC] Impairment of an amount due from
ARFORE a joint venture 6 - 2,506
FH& /N Impairment of an amount due from
BRFORE an associate 6 1,174 1,315
U — Bt A A BR K Reversal of impairment of an amount
R (B B (O] due from an associate 6 (283) (430)
EWE ZRFBE Impairment of trade receivables 6 1,720 26
Be RBNFIERE Impairment of deposits and
prepayments 6 1,425 -
H (b fE U BR FURE Impairment of other receivables 6 8,000 12,057
A HERERE Impairment of available-for-sale
investments 6 5,226 -
HE—AHEEREZ  Gain on disposal of an available-for-
W g sale investment 5 - (5,693)
HERB AR 2 W Gain on disposals of subsidiaries 5 - (287)
(46,897) (51,278)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows (continued)

HE_Z—UF = H=+—HLFJE Year ended 31 March 2014

—E-NFE —T—=F
2014 2013
B aE THT FET
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
FERL Decrease in inventories 8,750 4,752
FEWE 5 8RR Decrease in trade receivables 10,236 1,335
FERFIE - He & Increase in prepayments, deposits and
H b B UK B Zr 3 0 other receivables 35 (888) (2,656)
FEUNA B ARBEFIZNM  Increase in amounts due from
joint ventures (206) -
FE U BoE 2 N B BR 3038 A0 Increase in amounts due from associates (3,297) (2,790)
B E SRR (Decrease)/increase in trade
ORid), /18 payables (3,222) 3,550
HibfESERFA M EET B E Increase/(decrease) in other payables
#, Gl and accruals 35 4,621 (20,115)
EmiRE R (Decrease)/increase in provision for
(R A>), /380 product warranty (445) 125
KEEEPER2IRE  Cash used in operations (31,348) (67,077)
EEINEIR Overseas taxes paid (15) (23)
R 7SR FEE Net cash flows used in operating
activities (31,363) (67,100)
RERXBHERE CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING
ACTIVITIES
A EUA Interest received 136 1,020
BAFEZAEBZREKZ  Interest received from investments at
K& ZHBHA fair value through profit or loss - 226
A HERE 2R B A Dividend income from available-for-sale
investments - 1,137
BAME BEK Purchases of items of property, plant
HEIEE and equipment 14 (19,638) (11,068)
LEWE - BENKRE  Proceeds from disposal of items of
BB Z TS R0E property, plant and equipment 677 1,150
HE—AEEIRE Y Proceeds from disposal of an
FriS kI8 available-for-sale investment - 5,693
HE P A A Disposals of subsidiaries 34 - (23)
1 DN E A 25 A AR Additions to deferred development
costs 16 (355) (240)
KRE—aEBRF Investment in a joint venture (19) -
wE B AT Investment in an associate - (100)
El—&8 & NRIER (Increase)/decrease in an amount
(), E due from a joint venture (606) 1,576
— A HHEEREZER  Refund from an available-for-sale
investment - 1,875
HEFEIZ AFER A Proceeds from maturity of an investment
BRmRZICEFNSHIE  atfair value through profit or loss - 8,219
KEEK RS Net cash flows (used in)/from investing
OR),/MAFHE activities (19,805) 9,465
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows (continued)
HEZZ—UF=H=1+—HLFE Year ended 31 March 2014

—E-NFE T =F
2014 2013
B 5 FExT FET
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
MEXBRERE CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING
ACTIVITIES
BB AR A Finance costs (574) (580)
I ERITE R New bank loans 23,814 =
Eféﬁfﬁﬁféf?ﬂ Repayment of bank loans (20,000) -
ER—HEBA Increase in an amount due to
—JFE %|JHX$$TAi‘ﬂH a non-controlling shareholder of
a subsidiary 2,002 =
REXGK 2R Net cash flows from/(used in) financing
WA Gied) 58 activities 5,242 (580)
HeRIRESEEEE 2  NET DECREASE IN CASH AND
m R CASH EQUIVALENTS (45,926) (58,215)
FUzReMIRE&EME  Cash and cash equivalents at
T B beginning of year 80,782 138,990
HNEE B SR TR R Effect of foreign exchange rate
changes, net (359) 7
FR2EERAEL%E CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT
IHH END OF YEAR 34,497 80,782
BHERBEEEEEH ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH
EEA D AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
REE BB ARR K FBR 2 Cash and cash equivalents as stated in
He MRS FEIEAB the consolidated statement of
financial position 25 33,496 80,782
BARBELHR=@ARK  Time deposits with original maturity of
g3 /H\HZIEHHﬁFA less than three months
PR ERIT B SR when acquired, pledged as
security for a bank loan 25 1,001 -
WEAIREME RS2 Cash and cash equivalents as stated in
He MRS EEIEAR the consolidated statement of
cash flows 34,497 80,782
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Statement of Financial Position
MN-ZZE—PNF=H=+—H 31 March 2014

—B-mE —F-=F
2014 2013
B 5 TET FAET
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
FRBEE NON-CURRENT ASSETS
MEARZ&RE Investments in subsidiaries 17 442,266 531,266
REBEE CURRENT ASSETS
NG Due from subsidiaries 17 3,000 3,000
TR FRIE Prepayments 24 290 200
IR NIRITAER Cash and bank balances 25 101 103
BB EATE Total current assets 3,391 3,303
REBAE CURRENT LIABILITIES
EmpERIEREFTAE Other payables and accruals 27 405 410
REBEESEE NET CURRENT ASSETS 2,986 2,893
EERERABER TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT
LIABILITIES 445,252 534,159
FRBEE NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
AR NGIE SE Due to subsidiaries 17 198,578 198,897
BEFE Net assets 246,674 335,262
R #E EQUITY
22317 Issued capital 32 119,766 119,766
A Reserves 33(b) 126,908 215,496
Rt 485 Total equity 246,674 335,262
EEEEL cvet EERELE
Dr. Tam Wai Ho, Samson Jp Mr. Tam Wai Tong, Thomas
g -
Director Director
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Notes to Financial Statements
—Z—FE=A=+—H 31 March 2014

2.1

DNEEHR

BE(BER)ERARTARRA])Z
—MRBRETMA L2 ER AR
RABIZ EEEEMBUNE AR
ROBEBRNEERMERNEALR
m%}iiﬁ/\ﬁ

RAFER » NEE 2 X580 &G
L& R IHE R RFHEE(TODM])
Eo BETEHHEM®  BEABMRE
& RIBEEFRIERS

A

HE_Z-—NF=ZA=+—HI#F
g $Elﬁf? %E@ﬁ
86,805,000 JT( —
76,685,000/ 7T) ©

KEENTHEXREZ  ERERARRK
Ffméiﬁm B TS TR R T B A
@ MRZE—WNWFE=HA=+—8"
$%lmwgﬁ BEE A
23,814,000 7T * AEZEEE
ﬁoﬁﬁ&ﬁﬁ%%%ﬁ—i
NEE - EERE AEEH
ERHEE M AZIETEEE
Hig B E
b) RZZE—NWF=A=+—8"
AEBBERDEERTEN

R BE Az HE L RE
FoARAAHEERE  ZF
BEAFESRIA THEMUR
BRINZRITEE K

(0 BEE—EHINAXEAEEZ
KEXEBENFERE o

2.1

CORPORATE INFORMATION

Group Sense (International) Limited (the “Company”) is a
limited liability company incorporated in Bermuda. The
principal place of business of the Company is located at
6th Floor, Enterprise Place, No. 5 Science Park West
Avenue, Hong Kong Science Park, Shatin, New Territories,
Hong Kong.

During the year, the Group was involved in the design,
manufacture and sale of original design manufacturing
products (“ODM products”), electronic dictionary
products and personal communication products, and the
provision of electronic manufacturing services.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

The Group recorded a consolidated net loss of
HK$86,805,000 (2013: HK$76,685,000) for the year ended
31 March 2014.

Management considers the going concern basis of
preparation of the financial statements appropriate after
taking in consideration the following:

(@) the Group had interest bearing bank borrowings of
approximately HK$23,814,000 as at 31 March 2014
for working capital purposes. Although the bank
borrowings will expire within one year, the directors
are of the opinion that the Group will be able to
renew/refinance the bank borrowings upon its

expiry;

(b) the Group had non-current assets including
leasehold land and buildings located in Mainland
China and available-for-sale investments as at 31
March 2014 that are available for the Group to
realise significant cash or for securities for further
bank borrowings; and

(c) management has been endeavouring to improve
the Group's operating results and cash flows.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

- =
—=

—lF =B =+—H 31 March 2014

2.1 MBEE(E)

54
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HEMBERRIREFT LGSR
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AR AR &8 R RGO B R TE
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maEE
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2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

Should the Group be unable to continue as a going
concern, adjustments would have to be made to write
down the value of assets to their recoverable amounts
and to provide for any further liabilities which might
arise. The effect of these adjustments has not been
reflected in the consolidated financial statements.

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) (which include all Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting
Standards (“HKASs"”) and Interpretations) issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants,
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance. They have been prepared under
the historical cost convention. These financial statements
are presented in Hong Kong dollars and all values are
rounded to the nearest thousand except when otherwise
indicated.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the
financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) for the year
ended 31 March 2014. The financial statements of the
subsidiaries are prepared for the same reporting period
as the Company, using consistent accounting policies.
The results of subsidiaries are consolidated from the
date on which the Group obtains control, and continue
to be consolidated until the date that such control
ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the parent of the
Group and to the non-controlling interests even if this
results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit
balance. All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity,
income, expenses and cash flows relating to transactions
between members of the Group are eliminated in full on
consolidation.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

—ZF—NFE=H=+—H 31 March 2014

1 wRBERE(E)

meREE(E)
ﬁﬁ%/\&l SURRUR T S L B B
FEFTBRT  —HEHETEZ
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2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there are
changes to one or more of the three elements of control
described in the accounting policy for subsidiaries
below. A change in the ownership interest of a
subsidiary, without a loss of control, is accounted for as
an equity transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it
derecognises (i) the assets (including goodwill) and
liabilities of the subsidiary, (ii) the carrying amount of any
non-controlling interest and (iii) the cumulative
translation differences recorded in equity; and
recognises (i) the fair value of the consideration received,
(i) the fair value of any investment retained and (iii) any
resulting surplus or deficit in profit or loss. The Group's
share of components previously recognised in other
comprehensive income is reclassified to profit or loss or
retained profits, as appropriate, on the same basis as
would be required if the Group had directly disposed of
the related assets or liabilities.

BEEE)ERAT <2014 B%s 55



PA IR RO G (48)

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
—ZF—NFE=H=+—H 31 March 2014

2.2 BHBRKRIKE 2
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DISCLOSURES

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND

The Group has adopted the following new and revised
HKFRSs for the first time for the current year’s financial

statements.

HKFRS 1 Amendments

HKFRS 7 Amendments

HKFRS 10

HKFRS 11

HKFRS 12

HKFRS 10, HKFRS 11 and
HKFRS 12 Amendments

HKFRS 13

HKAS 1 Amendments

HKAS 19 (2011)

HKAS 27 (2011)

HKAS 28 (2011)

HKAS 36 Amendments

HK(IFRIC)-Int 20

Annual Improvements
2009-2011 Cycle
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Amendments to HKFRS 1 First-time
Adoption of Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards —
Government Loans

Amendments to HKFRS 7 Financial
Instruments: Disclosures —
Offsetting Financial Assets
and Financial Liabilities

Consolidated Financial Statements

Joint Arrangements

Disclosure of Interests in Other
Entities

Amendments to HKFRS 10,
HKFRS 11 and HKFRS 12 —
Transition Guidance

Fair Value Measurement

Amendments to HKAS 1
Presentation of Financial
Statements — Presentation of
ltems of Other Comprehensive
Income

Employee Benefits

Separate Financial Statements

Investments in Associates and Joint
Ventures

Amendments to HKAS 36
Impairment of Assets —
Recoverable Amount Disclosures
for Non-Financial Assets (early
adopted)

Stripping Costs in the Production
Phase of a Surface Mine

Amendments to a number of
HKFRSs issued in June 2012
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

—ZF—NFE=H=+—H 31 March 2014

2.2 MHEBRRIRE 2 HE (E)
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2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (continued)

Other than as further explained below regarding the
impact of HKFRS 10, HKFRS 11, HKFRS 12, HKFRS 13,
amendments to HKFRS 10, HKFRS 11, HKFRS 12, HKAS 1
and HKAS 36, and certain amendments included in
Annual Improvements 2009-2011 Cycle, the adoption of
the new and revised HKFRSs has had no significant
financial effect on these financial statements.

The principal effects of adopting these new and revised
HKFRSs are as follows:

(a)

HKFRS 10 replaces the portion of HKAS 27
Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements
that addresses the accounting for consolidated
financial statements and addresses the issues in
HK(SIC)-Int 12 Consolidation — Special Purpose
Entities. It establishes a single control model used
for determining which entities are consolidated. To
meet the definition of control in HKFRS 10, an
investor must have (a) power over an investee, (b)
exposure, or rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee, and (c) the ability to
use its power over the investee to affect the amount
of the investor’s returns. The changes introduced
by HKFRS 10 require management of the Group to
exercise significant judgement to determine which
entities are controlled.

As a result of the application of HKFRS 10, the
Group has changed the accounting policy with
respect to determining which investees are
controlled by the Group.

The application of HKFRS 10 does not change any
of the consolidation conclusions of the Group in

respect of its involvement with investees as at 1
April 2013.

BEEE)ERAT « 2014 BEHs 57



PA IR RO G (48)

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
—ZF—NFE=H=+—H 31 March 2014

2.2 MHEBRRIRE 2 HE (E)
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2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (continued)

(b)

Group Sense (International) Limited ® Annual Report 2014

HKFRS 11 replaces HKAS 31 Interests in Joint
Ventures and HK(SIC)-Int 13 Jointly Controlled
Entities — Non-Monetary Contributions by
Venturers. It describes the accounting for joint
arrangements with joint control. It addresses only
two forms of joint arrangements, i.e., joint operations
and joint ventures, and removes the option to
account for joint ventures using proportionate
consolidation. The classification of joint
arrangements under HKFRS 11 depends on
the parties’ rights and obligations arising from
the arrangements. A joint operation is a joint
arrangement whereby the joint operators have rights
to the assets and obligations for the liabilities of the
arrangement and is accounted for on a line-by-line
basis to the extent of the joint operators’ rights and
obligations in the joint operation. A joint venture is a
joint arrangement whereby the joint venturers have
rights to the net assets of the arrangement and is
required to be accounted for using the equity
method in accordance with HKAS 28 (2011).

The directors of the Company reviewed and assessed
the classification of the Group's investments in joint
arrangements in accordance with the requirements of
HKFRS 11, and concluded that the application of
HKFRS 11 does not change the classification of the
Group's investment in a joint venture.

HKFRS 12 sets out the disclosure requirements for
subsidiaries, joint arrangements, associates and
structured entities previously included in HKAS 27
Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements,
HKAS 31 Interests in Joint Ventures and HKAS 28
Investments in Associates. It also introduces a
number of new disclosure requirements for these
entities. Details of the disclosures for subsidiaries,
joint ventures and associates are included in notes
17, 18 and 19 to the financial statements,
respectively.
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2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (continued)

(d)

The HKFRS 10, HKFRS 11 and HKFRS 12
Amendments clarify the transition guidance in
HKFRS 10 and provide further relief from full
retrospective application of these standards,
limiting the requirement to provide adjusted
comparative information to only the preceding
comparative period. The amendments clarify that
retrospective adjustments are only required if the
consolidation conclusion as to which entities are
controlled by the Group is different between HKFRS
10 and HKAS 27 or HK(SIC)-Int 12 at the beginning
of the annual period in which HKFRS 10 is applied
for the first time. The amendments have had no
effect on the financial position or performance of
the Group.

HKFRS 13 provides a precise definition of fair value
and a single source of fair value measurement and
disclosure requirements for use across HKFRSs. The
standard does not change the circumstances in
which the Group is required to use fair value, but
rather provides guidance on how fair value should
be applied where its use is already required or
permitted under other HKFRSs. HKFRS 13 is applied
prospectively and the adoption has had no material
impact on the Group's fair value measurements.
The adoption of HKFRS 13 has had no effect on the
financial position or performance of the Group.
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2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (continued)

()

Group Sense (International) Limited ® Annual Report 2014

The HKAS 1 Amendments change the grouping of
items presented in other comprehensive income.
ltems that could be reclassified (or recycled) to
profit or loss at a future point in time (for example,
exchange differences on translation of foreign
operations, net movement on cash flow hedges and
net loss or gain on available-for-sale financial assets)
are presented separately from items which will
never be reclassified (for example, the revaluation
of land and buildings). The amendments have
affected the presentation only and have had no
impact on the financial position or performance of
the Group. The consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income has been
represented to reflect the changes.

The HKAS 36 Amendments remove the unintended
disclosure requirement made by HKFRS 13 on the
recoverable amount of a cash-generating unit which
is not impaired. In addition, the amendments
require the disclosure of the recoverable amounts
for the assets or cash-generating units for which an
impairment loss has been recognised or reversed
during the reporting period, and expand the
disclosure requirements regarding the fair value
measurement for these assets or units if their
recoverable amounts are based on fair value less
costs of disposal. The amendments are effective
retrospectively for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 April 2014 with earlier application permitted,
provided HKFRS 13 is also applied. The Group has
early adopted the amendments in these financial
statements. The amendments have had no impact
on the financial position or performance of the
Group.
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2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (continued)

(h)

Annual Improvements 2009-2011 Cycle issued in
June 2012 sets out amendments to a number of
standards. There are separate transitional provisions
for each standard. While the adoption of some of
the amendments may result in changes in
accounting policies, none of these amendments
have had a significant financial impact on the
Group. Details of the key amendments most
applicable to the Group are as follows:

HKAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements:
Clarifies the difference between voluntary
additional comparative information and the
minimum required comparative information.
Generally, the minimum required comparative
period is the previous period. An entity must
include comparative information in the related
notes to the financial statements when it
voluntarily provides comparative information
beyond the previous period. The additional
comparative information does not need to
contain a complete set of financial statements.

In addition, the amendment clarifies that the
opening statement of financial position as at
the beginning of the preceding period must
be presented when an entity changes its
accounting policies; makes retrospective
restatements or makes reclassifications, and
that change has a material effect on the
statement of financial position. However, the
related notes to the opening statement of
financial position as at the beginning of the
preceding period are not required to be
presented.

HKAS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation:
Clarifies that income taxes arising from
distributions to equity holders are accounted
for in accordance with HKAS 12 Income Taxes.
The amendment removes existing income tax
requirements from HKAS 32 and requires
entities to apply the requirements in HKAS 12
to any income tax arising from distributions to
equity holders.
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG

KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING

STANDARDS

The Group has not applied the following new and
revised HKFRSs, that have been issued but are not yet
effective, in these financial statements.

HKFRS 9

HKFRS 9, HKFRS 7
and HKAS 39
Amendments

HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12
and HKAS 27 (2011)
Amendments

HKFRS 11 Amendments

HKFRS 14

HKAS 16 and HKAS 38
Amendments

HKAS 19 Amendments

HKAS 32 Amendments

HKAS 39 Amendments

HK(IFRIC)-Int 21

Annual Improvements
2010-2012 and
2011-2013 Cycles

Financial Instruments*

Hedge Accounting and amendments
to HKFRS 9, HKFRS 7 and
HKAS 39

Amendments to HKFRS 10, HKFRS
12 and HKAS 27 (2011) —
Investment Entities'

Accounting for Acquisitions of
Interests in Joint Operations®

Regulatory Deferral Accounts®

Clarification of Acceptable Methods
of Depreciation and Amortisation®

Amendments to HKAS 19 Employee
Benefits — Defined Benefit Plans:
Employee Contributions?

Amendments to HKAS 32 Financial
Instruments: Presentation —
Offsetting Financial Assets and
Financial Liabilities'

Amendments to HKAS 39 Financial
Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement — Novation of
Derivatives and Continuation of
Hedge Accounting'

Levies'

Amendments to a number of
HKFRSs issued in January 20142

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2014

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2014

8 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016

Group Sense (International) Limited ® Annual Report 2014

No mandatory effective date yet determined but is available for adoption
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG

KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(continued)

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of
the impact of these new and revised HKFRSs upon initial
application and is not yet in a position to state whether
they would have a significant impact on the Group'’s
results of operations and financial position.

In addition, the new Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
(Cap. 622) will affect the presentation and disclosure of
certain information in the consolidated financial
statement for the year ending 31 March 2015. The Group
is in the process of making an assessment of the impact
of these changes.

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity),
directly or indirectly, controlled by the Company. Control
is achieved when the Group is exposed, or has rights, to
variable returns from its involvement with the investee
and has the ability to affect those returns through its
power over the investee (i.e., existing rights that give the
Group the current ability to direct the relevant activities
of the investee).

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than a
majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the
Group considers all relevant facts and circumstances in
assessing whether it has power over an investee,
including:

(@) the contractual arrangement with the other vote
holders of the investee;

(b) rights arising from other contractual arrangements;
and

(c) the Group's voting rights and potential voting
rights.

The results of subsidiaries are included in the Company's
profit or loss to the extent of dividends received and
receivable. The Company’s investments in subsidiaries
are stated at cost less any impairment losses.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Investments in associates and joint ventures

An associate is an entity in which the Group has a long
term interest of generally not less than 20% of the equity
voting rights and over which it is in a position to exercise
significant influence. Significant influence is the power to
participate in the financial and operating policy decisions
of the investee, but is not control or joint control over
those policies.

A joint venture is a type of joint arrangement whereby
the parties that have joint control of the arrangement
have rights to the net assets of the joint venture. Joint
control is the contractually agreed sharing of control of
an arrangement, which exists only when decisions about
the relevant activities require the unanimous consent of
the parties sharing control.

The Group's investments in associates and joint ventures
are stated in the consolidated statement of financial
position at the Group’s share of net assets under the
equity method of accounting, less any impairment losses.

The Group’s share of the post-acquisition results and
other comprehensive income of associates and joint
ventures is included in the consolidated profit or loss
and consolidated other comprehensive income,
respectively. In addition, when there has been a change
recognised directly in the equity of the associates or joint
ventures, the Group recognises its share of any changes,
when applicable, in the consolidated statement of
changes in equity. Unrealised gains and losses resulting
from transactions between the Group and its associates
or joint ventures are eliminated to the extent of the
Group's investments in the associates or joint ventures,
except where unrealised losses provide evidence of an
impairment of the asset transferred. Goodwill arising
from the acquisition of associates or joint ventures is
included as part of the Group's investments in associates
or joint ventures.

Group Sense (International) Limited ® Annual Report 2014
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Investments in associates and joint ventures
(continued)

If an investment in an associate becomes an investment
in a joint venture or vice versa, the retained interest is
not remeasured. Instead, the investment continues to be
accounted for under the equity method. In all other
cases, upon loss of significant influence over the
associate or joint control over the joint venture, the
Group measures and recognises any retained investment
at its fair value. Any difference between the carrying
amount of the associate or joint venture upon loss of
significant influence or joint control and the fair value of
the retained investment and proceeds from disposal is
recognised in profit or loss.

When an investment in an associate or a joint venture is
classified as held for sale, it is accounted for in
accordance with HKFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held for
Sale and Discontinued Operations.

Business combinations and goodwiill

Business combinations are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred is
measured at the acquisition date fair value which is the
sum of the acquisition date fair values of assets
transferred by the Group, liabilities assumed by the
Group to the former owners of the acquiree and the
equity interests issued by the Group in exchange for
control of the acquiree. For each business combination,
the Group elects whether to measure the non-controlling
interests in the acquiree that are present ownership
interests and entitle their holders to a proportionate
share of net assets in the event of liquidation either at
fair value or at the proportionate share of the acquiree’s
identifiable net assets. All other components of non-
controlling interests are measured at fair value.
Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the
financial assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate
classification and designation in accordance with the
contractual terms, economic circumstances and pertinent
conditions as at the acquisition date. This includes the
separation of embedded derivatives in host contracts by
the acquiree.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Business combinations and goodwill (continued)
If the business combination is achieved in stages, the
previously held equity interest is remeasured at its
acquisition date fair value and any resulting gain or loss
is recognised in profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the
acquirer is recognised at fair value at the acquisition
date. Contingent consideration classified as an asset or
liability that is a financial instrument and within the scope
of HKAS 39 is measured at fair value with changes in fair
value either recognised in profit or loss or as a change to
other comprehensive income. If the contingent
consideration is not within the scope of HKAS 39, it is
measured in accordance with the appropriate HKFRS.
Contingent consideration that is classified as equity is
not remeasured and subsequent settlement is accounted
for within equity.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of
the aggregate of the consideration transferred, the
amount recognised for non-controlling interests and any
fair value of the Group's previously held equity interests
in the acquiree over the identifiable net assets acquired
and liabilities assumed. If the sum of this consideration
and other items is lower than the fair value of the net
assets acquired, the difference is, after reassessment,
recognised in profit or loss as a gain on bargain
purchase.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less
any accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is tested
for impairment annually or more frequently if events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value
may be impaired. The Group performs its annual
impairment test of goodwill as at 31 March. For the
purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a
business combination is, from the acquisition date,
allocated to each of the Group's cash-generating units,
or groups of cash-generating units, that are expected to
benefit from the synergies of the combination,
irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities of the
Group are assigned to those units or groups of units.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Business combinations and goodwill (continued)
Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit (group of cash-
generating units) to which the goodwill relates. Where
the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit
(group of cash-generating units) is less than the carrying
amount, an impairment loss is recognised. An
impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed
in a subsequent period.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating
unit (or group of cash-generating units) and part of the
operation within that unit is disposed of, the goodwill
associated with the operation disposed of is included in
the carrying amount of the operation when determining
the gain or loss on the disposal. Goodwill disposed of in
these circumstances is measured based on the relative
value of the operation disposed of and the portion of the
cash-generating unit retained.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when
annual impairment testing for an asset is required (other
than inventories, financial assets and goodwill), the
asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. An asset's
recoverable amount is the higher of the asset’s or cash-
generating unit’s value in use and its fair value less costs
of disposal, and is determined for an individual asset,
unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are
largely independent of those from other assets or groups
of assets, in which case the recoverable amount is
determined for the cash-generating unit to which the
asset belongs.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets (continued)

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying
amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows
are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of
the time value of money and the risks specific to the
asset. An impairment loss is charged to profit or loss in
the period in which it arises in those expense categories
consistent with the function of the impaired asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting
period as to whether there is an indication that previously
recognised impairment losses may no longer exist or
may have decreased. If such an indication exists, the
recoverable amount is estimated. A previously
recognised impairment loss of an asset other than
goodwill is reversed only if there has been a change in
the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount
of that asset, but not to an amount higher than the
carrying amount that would have been determined (net
of any depreciation/amortisation) had no impairment
loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. A
reversal of such an impairment loss is credited to profit
or loss in the period in which it arises, unless the asset is
carried at a revalued amount, in which case the reversal
of the impairment loss is accounted for in accordance
with the relevant accounting policy for that revalued
asset.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Related parties
A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(a)

or

(b)

the party is a person or a close member of that
person’s family and that person

(i)
(ii)

(iii)

has control or joint control over the Group;
has significant influence over the Group; or
is a member of the key management

personnel of the Group or of a parent of the
Group;

the party is an entity where any of the following
conditions applies:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

the entity and the Group are members of the
same group;

one entity is an associate or joint venture of
the other entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or
fellow subsidiary of the other entity);

the entity and the Group are joint ventures of
the same third party;

one entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the third

party;

the entity is a post-employment benefit plan
for the benefit of employees of either the
Group or an entity related to the Group;

the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by
a person identified in (a); and

a person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the
key management personnel of the entity (or a
parent of the entity).
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
Property, plant and equipment, other than construction
in progress, are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and any impairment losses. The cost of an
item of property, plant and equipment comprises its
purchase price and any directly attributable costs of
bringing the asset to its working condition and location
for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and
equipment have been put into operation, such as repairs
and maintenance, is normally charged to profit or loss in
the period in which it is incurred. In situations where the
recognition criteria are satisfied, the expenditure for a
major inspection is capitalised in the carrying amount of
the asset as a replacement. Where significant parts of
property, plant and equipment are required to be
replaced at intervals, the Group recognises such parts as
individual assets with specific useful lives and
depreciates them accordingly.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to
write off the cost of each item of property, plant and
equipment to its residual value over its estimated useful
life. The principal annual rates used for this purpose are
as follows:

Leasehold land and Over the shorter of the lease

buildings terms and 2%
Leasehold improvements 25%
Furniture, fixtures and 25%
equipment
Plant and machinery 15% to 25%
Toolings and moulds 50%
Motor vehicles 25%

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment
have different useful lives, the cost of that item is
allocated on a reasonable basis among the parts and
each part is depreciated separately. Residual values,
useful lives and the depreciation method are reviewed,
and adjusted if appropriate, at least at each financial
year end.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
(continued)

An item of property, plant and equipment including any
significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss on
disposal or retirement recognised in profit or loss in the
year the asset is derecognised is the difference between
the net sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the
relevant asset.

Construction in progress represents a building under
construction, which is stated at cost less any impairment
losses, and is not depreciated. Cost comprises the direct
costs of construction and capitalised borrowing costs on
related borrowed funds during the period of
construction. Construction in progress is reclassified to
the appropriate category of property, plant and
equipment when completed and ready for use.

Intangible assets (other than goodwiill)

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on
initial recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets
acquired in a business combination is the fair value at
the date of acquisition. The useful lives of intangible
assets are assessed to be either finite or indefinite.
Intangible assets with finite lives are subsequently
amortised over the useful economic life and assessed for
impairment whenever there is an indication that the
intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation
period and the amortisation method for an intangible
asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at each
financial year end.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are tested for
impairment annually either individually or at the cash-
generating unit level. Such intangible assets are not
amortised. The useful life of an intangible asset with an
indefinite life is reviewed annually to determine whether
the indefinite life assessment continues to be
supportable. If not, the change in the useful life
assessment from indefinite to finite is accounted for on a
prospective basis.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Intangible assets (other than goodwiill)
(continued)

Research and development costs

All research costs are charged to profit or loss as
incurred.

Expenditure incurred on projects to develop new
products is capitalised and deferred only when the
Group can demonstrate the technical feasibility of
completing the intangible asset so that it will be available
for use or sale, its intention to complete and its ability to
use or sell the asset, how the asset will generate future
economic benefits, the availability of resources to
complete the project and the ability to measure reliably
the expenditure during the development. Product
development expenditure which does not meet these
criteria is expensed when incurred.

Deferred development costs are stated at cost less any
impairment losses and are amortised using the straight-
line basis over the commercial lives of the underlying
products of three years, commencing from the date
when the products are put into commercial production.

Leases

Leases that transfer substantially all the rewards and risks
of ownership of assets to the Group, other than legal
title, are accounted for as finance leases. At the inception
of a finance lease, the cost of the leased asset is
capitalised at the present value of the minimum lease
payments and recorded together with the obligation,
excluding the interest element, to reflect the purchase
and financing. Assets held under capitalised finance
leases, including prepaid land lease payments under
finance leases, are included in property, plant and
equipment, and depreciated over the shorter of the
lease terms and the estimated useful lives of the assets.
The finance costs of such leases are charged to profit or
loss so as to provide a constant periodic rate of charge
over the lease terms.

Assets acquired through hire purchase contracts of a
financing nature are accounted for as finance leases, but
are depreciated over their estimated useful lives.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Leases (continued)

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of
ownership of assets remain with the lessor are accounted
for as operating leases. Where the Group is the lessor,
assets leased by the Group under operating leases are
included in non-current assets, and rentals receivable
under the operating leases are credited to profit or loss
on the straight-line basis over the lease terms. Where the
Group is the lessee, rentals payable under operating
leases net of any incentives received from the lessor are
charged to profit or loss on the straight-line basis over
the lease terms.

Prepaid land lease payments under operating leases are
initially stated at cost and subsequently recognised on
the straight-line basis over the lease terms.

Investments and other financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as
loans and receivables and available-for-sale financial
investments, as appropriate. When financial assets are
recognised initially, they are measured at fair value plus
transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition
of financial assets, except in the case of financial assets
recorded at fair value through profit or loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that the
Group commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular
way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial
assets that require delivery of assets within the period
generally established by regulation or convention in the
marketplace.

e EE)ARAT « 2014 BERE 73



PA IR RO G (48)

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

—lF =B =+—H 31 March 2014

24 TESTHHEBE(E)

74

RERHMERMEE (B)
®ETTE
TREEZHEBAEIARNESE
MiE * DFEWAT -

B R EW AR
ERREWERRAE EESN A EE
NREREEERTS FHREZIE
TTHESRMEE - YIRFTER - 1F
B DARI B R R RO F 5 AR
WA DR ERE BT E - BEHAARL
AERKER 2 EATESREER
T8 WEt AB BN XA D
ZERIAAR BERENEEHDE
EBRENMBERA - REEENE
BoRERNBEEMNERZBEK
RN FEWERR Z B2 ) ©

AR EBIRE

AL ESRRER ETMIELD
BHEMEBEFFITESREE ©
DR AAH SR BRERE STLE
DBRFHIFER - MBIEERER
FERABRRZEERE - B8
MNEHREF/REERE —BRIE
ERBALRATERRSHECHFTRER
HEm SRR EB ML EE

J‘E’é?ﬂﬁéﬁ%u/u& AL ESRKRE
RV EETRETSE - AAREHR
EEﬁﬁ'JﬁEwﬁ—H HETHKRESE
HREEANZENKRE  BEERERK
%gﬂ:ﬁﬁu/u;%ﬂ:()zﬁ_f ’ %u+51}§5 E
BatERAHMNE) XEERE
WETEA/RERLE(ER - R85
RAHEHEREEHRBET DR
ERRMHEMIE) - FHAAHHEE
TREEMBMELRKRETI S A2
BRNBEBARKRBEEA - WRE
N [WARER ] 2 RN B

WHER A EA A °

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)
Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial assets
depends on their classification as follows:

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted
in an active market. After initial measurement, such
assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest rate method less any
allowance for impairment. Amortised cost is calculated
by taking into account any discount or premium on
acquisition and includes fees or costs that are an integral
part of the effective interest rate. The effective interest
rate amortisation is included in other income and gains
in profit or loss. The loss arising from impairment is
recognised in profit or loss in finance costs for loans and
in other operating expenses for receivables.

Available-for-sale financial investments
Available-for-sale financial investments are non-
derivative financial assets in listed and unlisted equity
investments and debt securities. Equity investments
classified as available for sale are those which are neither
classified as held for trading nor designated as at fair
value through profit or loss. Debt securities in this
category are those which are intended to be held for an
indefinite period of time and which may be sold in
response to needs for liquidity or in response to changes
in market conditions.

After initial recognition, available-for-sale financial
investments are subsequently measured at fair value,
with unrealised gains or losses recognised as other
comprehensive income in the available-for-sale
investment revaluation reserve until the investment is
derecognised, at which time the cumulative gain or loss
is recognised in profit or loss in other income, or until
the investment is determined to be impaired, when the
cumulative gain or loss is reclassified from the available-
for-sale investment revaluation reserve to profit or loss in
other operating expenses. Interest and dividends earned
whilst holding the available-for-sale financial investments
are reported as interest income and dividend income,
respectively and are recognised in profit or loss as other
income in accordance with the policies set out for
“Revenue recognition” below.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)
Subsequent measurement (continued)
Available-for-sale financial investments (continued)
When the fair value of unlisted equity investments cannot
be reliably measured because (a) the variability in the
range of reasonable fair value estimates is significant for
that investment or (b) the probabilities of the various
estimates within the range cannot be reasonably
assessed and used in estimating fair value, such
investments are stated at cost less any impairment
losses.

The Group evaluates whether the ability and intention to
sell its available-for-sale financial assets in the near term
are still appropriate. When, in rare circumstances, the
Group is unable to trade these financial assets due to
inactive markets, the Group may elect to reclassify these
financial assets if management has the ability and
intention to hold the assets for the foreseeable future or
until maturity.

For a financial asset reclassified from the available-for-
sale category, the fair value carrying amount at the date
of reclassification becomes its new amortised cost and
any previous gain or loss on that asset that has been
recognised in equity is amortised to profit or loss over
the remaining life of the investment using the effective
interest rate. Any difference between the new amortised
cost and the maturity amount is also amortised over the
remaining life of the asset using the effective interest
rate. If the asset is subsequently determined to be
impaired, then the amount recorded in equity is
reclassified to profit or loss.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a
financial asset or part of a group of similar financial
assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e., removed from the
Group's consolidated statement of financial position)
when:

e the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have
expired; or

e  the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash
flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation
to pay the received cash flows in full without
material delay to a third party under a "pass-
through” arrangement; and either (a) the Group has
transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of
the asset, or (b) the Group has neither transferred
nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards
of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash
flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through
arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has
retained the risk and rewards of ownership of the asset.
When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially
all the risks and rewards of the asset nor transferred
control of the asset, the Group continues to recognise
the transferred asset to the extent of the Group's
continuing involvement. In that case, the Group also
recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset
and the associated liability are measured on a basis that
reflects the rights and obligations that the Group has
retained.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period
whether there is any objective evidence that a financial
asset or a group of financial assets is impaired. An
impairment exists if one or more events that occurred
after the initial recognition of the asset have an impact
on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset
or the group of financial assets that can be reliably
estimated. Evidence of impairment may include
indications that a debtor or a group of debtors is
experiencing significant financial difficulty, default or
delinquency in interest or principal payments, the
probability that they will enter bankruptcy or other
financial reorganisation and observable data indicating
that there is a measurable decrease in the estimated
future cash flows, such as changes in arrears or economic
conditions that correlate with defaults.

Financial assets carried at amortised cost

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the Group
first assesses whether impairment exists individually for
financial assets that are individually significant, or
collectively for financial assets that are not individually
significant. If the Group determines that no objective
evidence of impairment exists for an individually
assessed financial asset, whether significant or not, it
includes the asset in a group of financial assets with
similar credit risk characteristics and collectively assesses
them for impairment. Assets that are individually
assessed for impairment and for which an impairment
loss is, or continues to be, recognised are not included
in a collective assessment of impairment.

The amount of any impairment loss identified is
measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of estimated future cash
flows (excluding future credit losses that have not yet
been incurred). The present value of the estimated future
cash flows is discounted at the financial asset’s original
effective interest rate (i.e., the effective interest rate
computed at initial recognition).
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)
Financial assets carried at amortised cost (continued)
The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the
use of an allowance account and the amount of the loss
is recognised in profit or loss. Interest income continues
to be accrued on the reduced carrying amount and is
accrued using the rate of interest used to discount the
future cash flows for the purpose of measuring the
impairment loss. Loans and receivables together with
any associated allowance are written off when there is no
realistic prospect of future recovery and all collateral has
been realised or has been transferred to the Group.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the estimated
impairment loss increases or decreases because of an
event occurring after the impairment was recognised,
the previously recognised impairment loss is increased
or reduced by adjusting the allowance account. If a write-
off is later recovered, the recovery is credited to other
operating expenses in profit or loss.

Assets carried at cost

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss has
been incurred on an unquoted equity instrument that is
not carried at fair value because its fair value cannot be
reliably measured, or on a derivative asset that is linked
to and must be settled by delivery of such an unquoted
equity instrument, the amount of the loss is measured as
the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and
the present value of estimated future cash flows
discounted at the current market rate of return for a
similar financial asset. Impairment losses on these assets
are not reversed.

Available-for-sale financial investments

For available-for-sale financial investments, the Group
assesses at the end of each reporting period whether
there is objective evidence that an investment or a group
of investments is impaired.

If an available-for-sale asset is impaired, an amount
comprising the difference between its cost (net of any
principal payment and amortisation) and its current fair
value, less any impairment loss previously recognised in
profit or loss, is removed from other comprehensive
income and recognised in profit or loss.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)
Available-for-sale financial investments (continued)

In the case of equity investments classified as available
for sale, objective evidence would include a significant
or prolonged decline in the fair value of an investment
below its cost. “Significant” is evaluated against the
original cost of the investment and “prolonged” against
the period in which the fair value has been below its
original cost. Where there is evidence of impairment, the
cumulative loss — measured as the difference between
the acquisition cost and the current fair value, less any
impairment loss on that investment previously
recognised in profit or loss — is removed from other
comprehensive income and recognised in profit or loss.
Impairment losses on equity instruments classified as
available for sale are not reversed through profit or loss.
Increases in their fair value after impairment are
recognised directly in other comprehensive income.

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss,
loans and borrowings, or as derivatives designated as
hedging instruments in an effective hedge, as
appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value
and, in the case of loans and borrowings, net of directly
attributable transaction costs.

The Group's financial liabilities include trade payables,
other payables and accruals, interest-bearing bank
borrowings and an amount due to a non-controlling
shareholder of a subsidiary.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Financial liabilities (continued)

Subsequent measurement

The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their
classification as follows:

Loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and
borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised
cost, using the effective interest rate method unless the
effect of discounting would be immaterial, in which case
they are stated at cost. Gains and losses are recognised
in profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as
well as through the effective interest rate amortisation
process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs
that are an integral part of the effective interest rate. The
effective interest rate amortisation is included in finance
costs in profit or loss.

Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Group are
those contracts that require a payment to be made to
reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because the
specified debtor fails to make a payment when due in
accordance with the terms of a debt instrument. A
financial guarantee contract is recognised initially as a
liability at its fair value, adjusted for transaction costs that
are directly attributable to the issuance of the guarantee.
Subsequent to initial recognition, the Group measures
the financial guarantee contract at the higher of: (i) the
amount of the best estimate of the expenditure required
to settle the present obligation at the end of the
reporting period; and (i) the amount initially recognised
less, when appropriate, cumulative amortisation.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Derecognition of financial liabilities
A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation
under the liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another
from the same lender on substantially different terms, or
the terms of an existing liability are substantially
modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as
a derecognition of the original liability and a recognition
of a new liability, and the difference between the
respective carrying amounts is recognised in profit or
loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the
net amount is reported in the statement of financial
position if there is a currently enforceable legal right to
offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention
to settle on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle
the liabilities simultaneously.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined on the first-in, first-
out basis and, in the case of work in progress and
finished goods, comprises direct materials, direct labour
and an appropriate proportion of overheads. Net
realisable value is based on estimated selling prices less
any estimated costs to be incurred to completion and
disposal.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand
and demand deposits, and short term highly liquid
investments that are readily convertible into known
amounts of cash, are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value, and have a short maturity of generally
within three months when acquired, less bank overdrafts
which are repayable on demand and form an integral
part of the Group's cash management.

For the purpose of the statement of financial position,
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and at
banks, including term deposits, and assets similar in
nature to cash, which are not restricted as to use.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation
(legal or constructive) has arisen as a result of a past
event and it is probable that a future outflow of resources
will be required to settle the obligation, provided that a
reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the
obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount
recognised for a provision is the present value at the end
of the reporting period of the future expenditures
expected to be required to settle the obligation. The
increase in the discounted present value amount arising
from the passage of time is included in finance costs in
profit or loss.

Provisions for product warranties granted by the Group
on certain products are recognised based on sales
volume and past experience of the level of repairs and
returns, discounted to their present values as
appropriate.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income
tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is
recognised outside profit or loss, either in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior
periods are measured at the amount expected to be
recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities, based
on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period,
taking into consideration interpretations and practices
prevailing in the countries in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on
all temporary differences at the end of the reporting
period between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and
their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes.

Group Sense (International) Limited ® Annual Report 2014



P35 8 R OR AE (48)

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

—ZF—NFE=H=+—H 31 March 2014

24 FESTHERMBE(E)

PR Bt (48)
BRIATIERSN  FTAERRTE R

ZROWHERSELEFRIARAE

e MEERERBRABZELEH
RIAFEXHEH IR 5T A
MRZBEEXABERTTES
At A 3 FE A B A kB 1R Rk
o R

e FBKRKBAR BERRAK
RERRIEGZRETELZ
ERVEREEZR  MERE
B£8R 2R X
RERMEEZERRAIAR 2 #HK
AIRE T B EIBRID -

PR AR E R IEE 2 MRS
RZHEEEERKBE 2 HIAE
B EEORERRETCHALE
BEMHEEERERBRREAELR
Z R IR e A R i ) A DA S5 H AT HLRK
ERMEEZRE RARPDBZHIAE
BIRAREEAIHABRZEE
NHIERSM -

s MWMAEERERBREESBHERNIL
FEBEH IR HTERER
ZEERABZATMNRERIE
ERERTTZES N B
BomMHEE « &

e FHKKBRAR  BERRK
BRERRIERIREFELLZ
AREREER  BLEMIEA
BEABRNEFIEEZEA AL
P R] 3B RS R B | Ko oK 2R FE T
1808 A 7 & BR DA B 0B A 1
ERRHER -

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Income tax (continued)
Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable
temporary differences, except:

when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial
recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and,
at the time of the transaction, affects neither the
accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

in respect of taxable temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries,
associates and joint ventures, when the timing of
the reversal of the temporary differences can be
controlled and it is probable that the temporary
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable
future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible
temporary differences, the carryforward of unused tax
credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets
are recognised to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profit will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences, the carryforward of
unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised,
except:

when the deferred tax asset relating to the
deductible temporary differences arises from the
initial recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and,
at the time of the transaction, affects neither the
accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

in respect of deductible temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries,
associates and joint ventures, deferred tax assets
are only recognised to the extent that it is probable
that the temporary differences will reverse in the
foreseeable future and taxable profit will be
available against which the temporary differences
can be utilised.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Income tax (continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at
the end of each reporting period and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred
tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets
are reassessed at the end of each reporting period and
are recognised to the extent that it has become
probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to
allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be
recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the
tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when
the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on
tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset
if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax
assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred
taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same
taxation authority.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the
economic benefits will flow to the Group and when the
revenue can be measured reliably, on the following
bases:

(@) from the sale of goods, when the significant risks
and rewards of ownership have been transferred to
the buyer, provided that the Group maintains
neither managerial involvement to the degree
usually associated with ownership, nor effective
control over the goods sold;

(b) service fee income, when the services have been
rendered;

(c) interest income, on an accrual basis using the
effective interest method by applying the rate that
exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts
over the expected life of the financial instrument or
a shorter period, when appropriate, to the net
carrying amount of the financial asset; and

(d) dividend income, when the shareholders’ right to
receive payment has been established.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Employee benefits

Pension schemes

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefit scheme (the “MPF
Scheme”) under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance for all of its employees. Contributions are
made based on a percentage of the employees’ basic
salaries and are charged to profit or loss as they become
payable in accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme.
The assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately from
those of the Group in an independently administered
fund. The Group's employer contributions vest fully with
the employees when contributed into the MPF Scheme.

The Group also operates a defined contribution staff
retirement scheme registered under the Occupational
Retirement Schemes Ordinance (the “ORSO Scheme”)
for its employees (including certain directors), the assets
of which are held separately from those of the Group in
an independently administered fund. Contributions are
made based on a percentage of the eligible employees’
basic salaries and are charged to profit or loss as they
become payable in accordance with the rules of the
ORSO Scheme. When an employee leaves the ORSO
Scheme prior to his/her interest in the Group's employer
contributions vesting fully, the ongoing contributions
payable by the Group may be reduced by the relevant
amount of forfeited contributions.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which
operate in Mainland China are required to participate in
a central pension scheme operated by the local
municipal government. These subsidiaries are required
to contribute a certain percentage of their payroll costs
to the central pension scheme. The contributions are
charged to profit or loss as they become payable in
accordance with the rules of the central pension scheme.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, i.e.,
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time
to get ready for their intended use or sale, are capitalised
as part of the cost of those assets. The capitalisation of
such borrowing costs ceases when the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use or sale.
Investment income earned on the temporary investment
of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on
qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs
capitalised. All other borrowing costs are expensed in
the period in which they are incurred. Borrowing costs
consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in
connection with the borrowing of funds.

Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars, which is the Company’s functional and
presentation currency. Each entity in the Group
determines its own functional currency and items
included in the financial statements of each entity are
measured using that functional currency. Foreign
currency transactions recorded by the entities in the
Group are initially recorded using their respective
functional currency rates prevailing at the dates of the
transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated
in foreign currencies are translated at the functional
currency rates of exchange ruling at the end of the
reporting period. Differences arising on settlement or
translation of monetary items are recognised in profit or
loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using
the exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions.
Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign
currency are translated using the exchange rates at the
date when the fair value was measured. The gain or loss
arising on translation of a non-monetary item measured
at fair value is treated in line with the recognition of the
gain or loss on change in fair value of the item (i.e.,
translation difference on the item whose fair value gain
or loss is recognised in other comprehensive income or
profit or loss is also recognised in other comprehensive
income or profit or loss, respectively).
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currencies (continued)

The functional currencies of certain overseas subsidiaries,
joint ventures and associates are currencies other than
the Hong Kong dollar. As at the end of the reporting
period, the assets and liabilities of these entities are
translated into the presentation currency of the Company
at the exchange rates prevailing at the end of the
reporting period and their profits or losses are translated
into Hong Kong dollars at the weighted average
exchange rate for the year.

The resulting exchange differences are recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in the
exchange fluctuation reserve. On disposal of a foreign
operation, the component of other comprehensive
income relating to that particular foreign operation is
recognised in profit or loss.

Any goodwill arising on the acquisition of a foreign
operation and any fair value adjustments to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities arising on acquisition
are treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign
operation and translated at the closing rate.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, the cash flows of overseas subsidiaries and joint
ventures are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the
exchange rates ruling at the dates of the cash flows.
Frequently recurring cash flows of overseas subsidiaries
and joint ventures which arise throughout the year are
translated into Hong Kong dollars at the weighted
average exchange rates for the year.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group's financial statements
requires management to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of
revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and their
accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of
contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these
assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that
could require a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of the assets or liabilities affected in the future.

The key assumptions concerning the future and other
key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the
reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing a
material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities within the next financial year, are described
below.

Impairment of goodwill

The Group determines whether goodwill is impaired at
least on an annual basis. This requires an estimation of
the value in use of the cash-generating units to which the
goodwill is allocated. Estimating the value in use requires
the Group to make an estimate of the expected future
cash flows from the cash-generating units and also to
choose a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the
present value of those cash flows. A change in the
estimated future cash flows and/or the discount rate
applied will result in an adjustment to the estimated
impairment provision previously made.

Impairment of items of property, plant and
equipment and available-for-sale financial assets
carried at cost

Management estimates the recoverable amounts of
items of property, plant and equipment and available-
for-sale investments carried at cost when an indication of
impairment exists. This requires an estimation of the
value in use of the cash-generating units. An impairment
exists when the carrying value of an asset or a cash-
generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount, which is
the higher of its fair value less costs of disposal and its
value in use. The calculation of the fair value less costs of
disposal is based on available data from binding sales
transactions in an arm’s length transaction of similar
assets or observable market prices less incremental costs
for disposing of the asset. When value in use calculations
are undertaken, management must estimate the
expected future cash flows from the asset or cash-
generating unit and choose a suitable discount rate in
order to calculate the present value of those cash flows.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
(continued)

Impairment of trade receivables

The Group maintains an allowance for the estimated loss
arising from the inability of its customers to make the
required payments. The Group makes its estimates
based on the ageing of its trade receivable balances,
customers’ creditworthiness, and historical write-off
experience. If the financial condition of its customers was
to deteriorate so that the actual impairment loss might
be higher than expected, the Group would be required
to revise the basis of making the allowance and its future
results would be affected.

Warranty provision

The Group gives warranties of one to two years on
certain products and undertakes to repair or replace
items that fail to perform satisfactorily. Significant
judgement is required when determining the warranty
expenses. The Group estimates the warranty expenses
based on the actual repair and item replacement costs
incurred for the products sold in the last 24 months.
Where the warranty expenses incurred are different from
the original provision, the difference would impact on
profit or loss in the period in which the additional
warranty expenses are incurred.

Income taxes

Significant management judgements on the future tax
treatment of certain transactions are required in
determining income tax provisions. The Group carefully
evaluates tax implications of transactions and tax
provisions are set up accordingly. The tax treatment of
these transactions is reconsidered periodically to take
into account all changes in tax legislation.

Development costs

Development costs are capitalised in accordance with
the accounting policy for research and development
costs in note 2.4 to the financial statements. Determining
the amounts to be capitalised requires management to
make assumptions regarding the expected future cash
generation of the assets, discount rates to be applied
and the expected period of benefits.
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OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

For management purposes, the Group is organised into
business units based on their products and services and
has three reportable operating segments as follows:

(@) the personal communication products segment designs,
manufactures and sells a range of communication
products;

(b) the strategic products segment designs, manufactures
and sells ODM products and electronic dictionary
products and provides electronic manufacturing
services; and

(c) the corporate and others segment comprises
corporate income, expenses, asset and liability
items related to the Group's investment activities.

Management monitors the results of the Group's
operating segments separately for the purpose of
making decisions about resources allocation and
performance assessment. Segment performance is
evaluated based on reportable segment profit/loss,
which is a measure of adjusted profit/loss before tax. The
adjusted profit/loss before tax is measured consistently
with the Group's loss before tax except that interest
income, finance costs, dividend income as well as head
office and corporate expenses are excluded from this
measurement.

Segment assets exclude investments in joint ventures,
available-for-sale investments, amounts due from
associates and joint ventures, pledged deposits, cash
and cash equivalents and other unallocated head office
assets as these assets are managed on a group basis.

Segment liabilities exclude interest-bearing bank borrowings,
an amount due to a non-controlling shareholder of a
subsidiary, tax payable and other unallocated head office
and corporate liabilities as these liabilities are managed on a
group basis.
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4.

B BER(E)

DEMHEREREILEHE

4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION
(continued)

Intersegment sales and transfers are transacted with
reference to the selling prices used for sales made to

ZHRNERDSEERE - third parties at the prevailing market prices.
BABRER RRER bERHL e
Personal
communication Strategic Corporate
products products and others Total
TAR TAR TAT TAT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BE-E-ME=A=1-HA  Yearended 31 March 2014
LEE
PEUA: Segment revenue:
HEFIRER Sales to external customers 78,158 271,224 - 349,382
PEXE Segment results (36,308) (42,168) (339) (78,815)
- Reconciliation:
HEBA Interest income 136
BEARA Finance costs (574)
FEl—BE AR E Impairment of an amount due
from an associate (1,174)
HEAHLERERE Impairment of available-for-sale
investments (5.226)
B RENTEAE Impairment of deposits and prepayments (1,425)
BUN-—BENRBTHERD  Reversal of impairment of an
amount due from an associate 283
FElhaA g - RE AT Share of profits and losses of joint ventures 6
HAEE Loss before tax (86,789)
ﬁﬁﬁé Segment assets 53,564 214,851 711 269,126
Reconciliation:
ﬂﬁ E Unallocated assets 80,665
BEE Total assets 349,791
2BAR Segment liabilities 16,751 59,759 405 76,915
F3)i Reconciliation:
R @EET Unallocated liabilities 25,946
BEE Total liabilities 102,861
A pEEH Other segment information:
TEREH Depreciation and amortisation 2,451 9,117 619 12,187
ERREY Capital expenditure 3,007 16,986 - 19,993+
HEN%  BELLEEE Loss/(gain) on disposal of items of
B8/ (ka) 58 property, plant and equipment, net (579) (113) 213 (479)
WRFSZA2R2EMNEE  Write-down of inventories to net
realisable value 3,704 5,828 - 9,532
EmREiE Product warranty provision 587 170 - 757
EmRERERD Reversal of product warranty provision - (400) - (400)
FEWE SRR E Impairment of trade receivables - 1,720 - 1,720
Hib WA E Impairment of other receivables 3,508 4,492 - 8,000

*

AARAXBEERENE

FEKA -

B B B 2% 5 I AR T @

Capital expenditure consists of additions to property, plant and
equipment and deferred development costs.
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4. EBIEEH(CE)

4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION
(continued)

EABRER REER PEREM g%
Personal
communication Strategic Corporate
products products and others Total
BT TAT TR TR
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
HE-Z-Z#ZA=F1-H  Yearended 31 March 2013
HEE
PEUA Segment revenue:
HEFIRER Sales to external customers 86,914 296,426 = 383,340
Ik E Segment results (30,684) (49,595) (315) (80,594)
o Reconciliation:
HEBA Interest income 1020
BREMA Dividend income 1137
BEMK Finance costs (580)
Eh—aERRRAE Impairment of an amount due from
ajoint venture (2,506)
N —BE R RRTAE Impairment of an amount due
from an associate (1,315)
el B2 N RIBRZURERE  Reversal of impairment of an amount
due from an associate 430
EiEENRER Share of profits and losses of:
N Joint ventures (160)
—BERT An associate (100)
HE—-Mit it ER AN Gain on disposal of an available-for-sale
investment 5,693
HERBARME Gain on disposals of subsidiaries 287
HaEs Loss before tax (76,688)
PTEEE Segment assets 58,428 243,638 91 303,027
- Reconciliation:
FAREE Unallocated assets 128,933
BRE Total assets 431,960
2E8E Segment liabilities 17,247 58,437 410 76,004
HE - Reconciliation:
FOREE Unallocated liabilities 20129
EBaE Total liabilities 9,223
AftpBER : Other segment information:
NEREH Depreciation and amortisation 2,590 7813 9 11,194
BARY Capital expenditure 1431 10,093 8 11,532
HENX - BERRERE Gain on disposal of items of property,
W - 5 plant and equipment, net 62) (245) - (307)
MAFETAERFENEE  Write-down of inventories to net
realisable value 362 6,180 - 6,542
EnRERE Product warranty provision 657 203 - 860
W 5 E A E Impairment of trade receivables 26 - - 2%
Eth YR URE Impairment of other receivables 3673 8,384 - 12,057

* EXHAXBEREWE  BERR

RKA -
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4. EBIFER(E)

4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION
(continued)

i EEE Geographical information
(a) XHEIAZEZWA (a) Revenue from external customers
—EB-NFE =%
2014 2013
FET FHET
HK$'000 HK$'000
A7 Japan 189,522 241,191
BB Hong Kong 82,332 53,849
=a)==) Middle East 27,934 24,582
e Taiwan 14,338 22,430
M Europe 15,391 13,934
g Vietnam 32 9,385
iR B A b (B EBR AN Mainland China
(other than Hong Kong) 3,952 4,078
b 3M North America 2,128 3,942
HAtb Others 13,753 9,949
349,382 383,340

PR ZWABRZIREEPH
PREEH

(b) FRBEE

The revenue information above is based on the
locations of the customers.

(b) Non-current assets

—E-NFE —T—=F
2014 2013
FExT TET
HK$'000 HK$'000

i B b (B EBR SN Mainland China
(other than Hong Kong) 151,015 142,929
BB Hong Kong 8,038 11,987
HAth Others 114 211
159,167 155,127

bz ERBEEENRRE
BEMMEL  AIHOERE
BRAM -

The non-current asset information above is based
on the locations of the assets and excludes
available-for-sale investments.
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4. EBEERGE) 4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION
(continued)
FEREFER Information about major customers
FEEFEREZINA - HERNL Revenue from each of the major customers, which
REBI A Z 10% A =TT individually amounted to 10% or more of the Group's
revenue, is set out below:
—E-mF
2014
BABRER RHER By
Personal
communication Strategic
products products Total
TER TEr TEr
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
2B Customer B - 49,316 49,316
PR Customer C - 39,352 39,352
—T-=F
2013
A BED REEM k]
Personal
communication Strategic
products products Total
THT THT THT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
= EH Customer A = 56,302 56,302
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5. WA - HitlR AR Wz » B8 5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS,

NET
WARERAEBENEEE AR Revenue, which is also the Group's turnover, represents
FRAEHEEmMNEZREEFER the net invoiced value of goods sold, after allowances for
FRERRX NN EHE - returns and trade discounts during the year.
WA~ E AU A K W a5 05 B8 5 T 40 An analysis of revenue, other income and gains, net is as
T follows:
—B-mFE —T=F
2014 2013
LiEsd THERT FAETT
Note HK$’'000 HK$'000
WA Revenue
HES Sale of goods 349,382 383,340
He A Other income
BAFERLAEIZKRZ  Interest income from investments
REMBHA at fair value through profit or
loss - 226
HRITHBUA Bank interest income 136 1,020
AR 755 & Uk A Service fee income 1,771 4,358
AHEEREZRE Dividend income from
PN available-for-sale investments - 1,137
HA Others 9,487 6,758
11,394 13,499
Eﬁﬂﬂ&ﬁ“ﬁ/(&ﬂé) » j#%8 Other gains/(losses), net
NFEETE - F5E Fair value losses, net:
BATFERABREK Investments at fair value
ZIRE through profit or loss - (30)
HEWE BEKEE  Gain/(loss) on disposal of
BBz W (EBE) items of property, plant
and equipment (479) 307
HE—AHEERE Gain on disposal of an
W available-for-sale investment - 5,693
HEMB ARk Gain on disposals of subsidiaries 34 - 287
(479) 6,257
10,915 19,756
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6.

96

BiAl &R

6. LOSS BEFORE TAX

AEEZRAEBEEENR,(GTA) The Group's loss before tax is arrived at after charging/
TF&IE (crediting):
rEE
Group
—EF-NFE Z—F-=
2014 2013
LiEsd THET FHET
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
EHFERA Cost of inventories sold 271,449 287,804
e Depreciation 14 11,258 10,182
TR E R 2 R Recognition of prepaid lease
payments 15 493 493
RS Research and development
expenses:
DEH 2 IEEMAZK A Deferred development costs
amortised 16 436 519
AKEERAX Current year expenditure 40,742 57,826
41,178 58,345
R RIEFLE Minimum lease payments under
HENREEEX operating leases in respect of
land and buildings 10,130 11,168
1% ERRT BN Auditors’ remuneration 1,100 1,100
BEERBHMAYL (BIEEE Employee benefit expense
B (PFiIEE8)) : (including directors’
remuneration (note 8)):
R BN = Wages and salaries and

BRIRETEI K

PE X ERE - FER

OB & = R & 3R FE
H) & B8

EmiREBE

el —B B R AR
MR >

JiE o — Bt = 2 R BR K
R E

A ERERE

FE U — Bt = R IR K
Bl (L7 [a] *

U B 5 AR ORI **

Be MIENRIERE

H b [ W R OB (B >

benefits in kind 137,012 153,632
Pension scheme contributions 6,324 7,038
143,336 160,670
Foreign exchange differences, net 234 4,259
Write-down of inventories to net
realisable value 9,532 6,542
Product warranty provision 29 757 860
Impairment of an amount due
from a joint venture* 18 - 2,506
Impairment of an amount due
from an associate* 19 1,174 1,315
Impairment of available-for-sale
investments* 20 5,226 -
Reversal of impairment of an
amount due from an associate* 19 (283) (430)
Impairment of trade receivables** 23 1,720 26
Impairment of deposits and
prepayments* 1,425 -
Impairment of other receivables*** 8,000 12,057
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6.

BAaEE(E) 6. LOSS BEFORE TAX (continued)
& BENGEEARSRLEMERBAFZ * Included in “Other operating expenses, net” in the consolidated
[EfhEe S - B8] - statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.
** BENGEEEARSERLEMERBAFZ ** Included in “Selling and distribution expenses” in the consolidated
[SHERDHEIH] - statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.
ek ESINEAPEMKRERREMEEmW AT Z *** |ncluded in “Administrative expenses” in the consolidated statement of
[T - profit or loss and other comprehensive income.
& A 7. FINANCE COSTS
A%
Group
—E-NFE —T—=F
2014 2013
FHET TFET
HK$’'000 HK$'000
RSFARHEERE ZRIT Interest on bank borrowings wholly
EENE repayable within five years 574 580
EENENEBEAEME 8. DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT'S
REMUNERATION
RIEBZBHAERZFIER AR ER Directors’ remuneration for the year, disclosed pursuant
wr EmAR( EHARR) REE to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
NaEHIE622Z M R 11FE 7815 - Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
BTFHEEERNEEM0OT : (the “Listing Rules”) and Section 78 of Schedule 11 to the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622), is as
follows:
rEHE
Group
—F-mE T =F
2014 2013
THET TET
HK$'000 HK$'000
e Fees 506 416
Hi e - Other emoluments:
e RAEKEDHZ Salaries, allowances and benefits
in kind 9,084 9,762
BRIFHR 2 BE Performance-related incentive
payments 200 75
RIRET IR Pension scheme contributions 264 300
9,548 10,137
10,054 10,553
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8. EERSREBEAEME (B) 8. DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT'S
REMUNERATION (continued)

(a) BYFHITESE (a) Independent non-executive directors
ERAFRNMBILIERNITES The fees paid to independent non-executive
TRMBESWOT directors during the year were as follows:

—E-mF —T—=%F
2014 2013
THET FAET
HK$'000 HK$'000

BDoklpgmas  gaps . Yung Wing Ki, Samuel sBs, MH, JP*

AP st * 56 128
{n] B K * Ho Kwok Shing, Harris* 32 128
F®BX Wong Kon Man, Jason 128 128
RS g A Fung, Henry/ 91 =

EhA Li Chi Kwong” 71 -
378 384

RARE RN A B IEMITE There were no other emoluments payable to the

EXNEMMES(ZT—=F : independent non-executive directors during the

/) o year (2013: Nil).

* I B SE A R A KEEEDBIR = * Mr. Ho Kwok Shing, Harris resigned and Mr. Yung Wing Ki, Samuel
—=FtA-BEER=ZZT—=Fh retired as independent non-executive directors of the Company
A+—HRERKRRRBILIFMITE with effect from 1 July 2013 and 11 September 2013, respectively.
$ °

A BREAEERTENRTESFIR=Z A Mr. Fung, Henry and Mr. Li Chi Kwong were appointed as
—=FtA+ AR —=FNA independent non-executive directors of the Company with effect
+—BREEARANARBIIENTE from 16 July 2013 and 11 September 2013, respectively.

E
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8. EENSREEAEME(E)

8. DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT'’S
REMUNERATION (continued)

(b) BITESE (b) Executive directors
Be RER  RAEEN
e ENRE 2%e  BAGHEME aMe
Salaries,  Performance-
allowances related Pension
and benefits incentive scheme Total
Fees in kind payments  contributions  remuneration
AL B T i T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ZE-mE 2014
H178%: Executive directors:
ERRATAL Tam Wai Ho, Samson Jp - 2774 - 60 2,834
Epx Tam Wai Tong, Thomas - 2,730 - 60 2,790
EEEZ Tam Mui Ka Wai, Vivian - 592 - 27 619
AARE Kazuhiro Otani - 1,807 - 63 1,870
Stk Lee Koon Hung - 1,181 - 54 1,235
ERA Luk Chui Yung, Judith? - - 200 - 200
- 9,084 200 264 9,548
¥HES: Non-executive director;
A Luk Chui Yung, Judith® 128 - - - 128
128 9,084 200 264 9,676
“F-= 2013
2R Executive directors:
BEZATAL Tam Wai Ho, Samson Jp - 2,150 - 60 2810
Epx Tam Wai Tong, Thomas = 2707 = 60 2761
BEES Tam Mui Ka Wai, Vivian - 51 - yij 418
AARE Kazuhiro Otani - 1,704 75 63 1,842
St Lee Koon Hung - 1173 - 54 1201
ERA Luk Chui Yung, Judith* - 837 - 3 873
- 9762 75 300 10,137
FTES: Non-executive director;
FERA Luk Chui Yung, Juidth* R = = = R
2 9762 75 300 10,169
# ERAZIN_T—=F—A—HE # Ms. Luk Chui Yung, Judith was re-designated as a non-executive

HMERAFNTES - EHEE-FT
—ME=A=+—REEzEHMEP
#9200,0007% 7T & E 3% & (£ A IENTT
ERRIERBEN 2 8BS - MEE
BE-T-=H-A=1+-—HEEzHE
B s 49873,000/8 THBEWEZ T A
FERITEZAZ RGNS ©

RARER WEBEF IR
BEXREREEAME 2%
BH(ZZT—Z=F: 8|) -

director on 1 January 2013. Among her total remuneration for the
year ended 31 March 2014, approximately HK$200,000 represented
performance-related incentive payments for her service before
appointment as a non-executive director. Among her total
remuneration for the year ended 31 March 2013, approximately
HK$873,000 represented remuneration for her service before
appointment as a non-executive director.

There was no arrangement under which a director

waived or agreed to waive any remuneration during
the year (2013: Nil).
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8. EERENRETEAEME(E) 8. DIRECTORS' AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT'S
REMUNERATION (continued)
SREEAEMS Senior management’s remuneration
SREBABZMEN FTUATEHE : Senior management'’s remuneration for the year was
within the following bands:
rEE
Group
—E-mE —_T—=F
2014 2013
%2 1,000,000 %8 7T Nil to HK$1,000,000 2 3
9. hEBREHES 9. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES

RAFARERSHFEEERENA

—E-ZFOREF HMe
HBEEEN EXHIFE8 - AFEERT
—F(ZE—=F: —R)&5¥F

The five highest paid employees during the year
included four (2013: four) directors, details of whose
remuneration are set out in note 8 above. Details of the
remuneration for the year of the remaining one (2013:

BRANTIFESREE  HF e one) highest paid employee who is not a director of the
BT - Company are as follows:
rEE
Group
—F-mE —FT-=F
2014 2013
FTHET FET
HK$'000 HK$'000
e R EREYAE Salaries, allowances and benefits
913 927
RIRGT 2K Pension scheme contributions 15 43
928 970
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10. BB

BHRAFEERRARNENBREYL
BEELTABSERRTGERN - B
BELEENSEHREGB T —=
F ) o HAbME 2 R M B
BLRBASEEEXHHE 2B
XA R EREBREHBERRERTE -

10. INCOME TAX

No provision for Hong Kong profits tax has been made
as the Company and its subsidiaries did not generate
any assessable profits arising in Hong Kong during the
year (2013: Nil). Taxes on profits assessable elsewhere
have been calculated at the rates of tax prevailing in the
countries/jurisdictions in which the Group operates.

REH

Group
—B-mE T =F
2014 2013
TR TAET
HK$'000 HK$'000

REF — B Current — Elsewhere

NEZHBR Charge for the year 16 28
BEFEREBRS Overprovision in prior years - 31)
RNEEHIEBR (#[E) 2%  Total tax charge/(credit) for the year 16 )

B BT AT B 1B 3 PAZR X A) R EL Y
BRRRARAEMEAT 2
A HEAERBERAE 2 HIA
H, (B E) S8R - SARE AT = (A
EEMER) MERB R 2 HARINT

A reconciliation of the tax credit applicable to loss
before tax at the statutory rates for the countries/
jurisdictions in which the Company and its subsidiaries
are domiciled to the tax expense/(credit) at the effective
tax rates, and a reconciliation of the applicable rates (i.e.,
the statutory tax rates) to the effective tax rates, are as
follows:

rEE
Group
“E-|mE —T-=F
2014 2013
THERT THET
HK$'000 % HK$'000 %
TRAIER Loss before tax (86,789) (76,688)
BEAEMERFEZHIE  Taxat the statutory tax rate (15,391) 17.7 (12,910 16.8
BEFEHIAAE Adjustments in respect of
RAFE current tax of previous periods - - (31) -
BIEEERARIR Profits and losses attributable to
—BE N AR A MEE  joint ventures and an associate 1 - 43 -
BRMBZ BN Income not subject to tax (1,411) 1.6 (1,507) 20
AR 2 Expenses not deductible for tax 2,862 (3.3) 2,527 (3.3)
BEREEA A Tax losses utilised from
BB previous periods - - (894) 12
RAER 2 HIEEE Tax losses not recognised 13,955 (16.0) 12,769 (16.7)
BAEEERHEE  Tax charge/(credit) at the
ZHBEme/ (BE) Group's effective rate 16 - (3) -
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11.

12.

13.

RRAREEEARGER

BE_Z-—WME=A=+—HItF
EARRNRIRERE ARMLGEER
BRE—SEINALRRBFTERERZ
/E51888,588,0008 T (=T — =4 :
JE51875,205,000 7% 7T ) (M 7E 33(b)) °

O

EFgTESMEEz T WF=
A=+ —Bk=ZZ—-—Z=Z%=A
=t —BLEZFEIRMNEABRE

AAREBERRERFE ARG
BRERE

EREXRAEBEDREAQGEBR
EFEBEABLGAFTEEE
80,409,000 T (ZE—=4: A
75,724,000/ L) R EFRNE BTG
1,197,663,02908( — & — = & :
1,197,663,029 %) 51+ & -

AEBEHRE-_FT-NF=A
=E+—BRZTE-—=F=ZA=+—
Atz &R EEFEEE B -

11.

12.

13.

LOSS ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY HOLDERS
OF THE COMPANY

The consolidated loss attributable to equity holders of
the Company for the year ended 31 March 2014 includes
a loss of HK$88,588,000 (2013: loss of HK$75,205,000)
which has been dealt with in the financial statements of
the Company (note 33(b)).

DIVIDEND

The board of directors does not recommend the
payment of any dividend for the years ended 31 March
2014 and 2013.

LOSS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO
ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE
COMPANY

The calculation of the basic loss per share amount is
based on the loss for the year attributable to ordinary
equity holders of the Company of HK$80,409,000 (2013:
loss of HK$75,724,000) and 1,197,663,029 (2013:
1,197,663,029) shares in issue during the year.

The Group had no potentially dilutive ordinary shares in
issue during the years ended 31 March 2014 and 2013.
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14. Y% BEKRRE 14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
& Group
BELH BE kB
kT NEEE ki HBEREE IARIR RE  ERIE 8B
Leasehold  Leasehold  Furniture,
land and improve- fixturesand  Plant and Toolings Motor  Construction
buildings ments  equipment  machinery  and moulds vehicles  in progress Total

TiEx TiEx TR TiEx TER FiEn TAR TER
HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

ZE-ME=A=1-H 31 March2014

RZB—=FEMA—H: At1Apnl 2013:

R Cost 79171 25,036 82,861 96,368 134,161 10,194 66,477 494,268
28 Accumulated depreciation  (30,530)  (24729)  (81,319) (91,1220 (131406)  (9,268) - (368374)
REFE Net carrying amount 48,641 307 1,542 5,246 2,755 926 66,477 125,894

WZE—=FMA—H " At1April 2013, net of

BB EHE accumulated depreciation 48,641 307 1,542 5,246 2,755 926 66,477 125,894
HE Additions - 1,297 4,015 6,829 2,515 - 4,982 19,638
REEHRTE Depreciation provided

during the year (2,887) (562) (966) (4,634) (1,953) (256) - (11,258)
e Disposals - (41) (13) (74) (755) (273) - (1,156)
- E ] Transfer 70,962 - - - - - (70,962) -
& 5 E5 Exchange realignment - (4) (8) - - - - (12)
RZZE-NmE=A At 31 March 2014, net of
=+—H BHNKRZH  accumulated depreciation
bk} 116,716 997 4,570 7,367 2,562 397 497 133,106

W=Z-mE=A At 31 March 2014:

=t-A:

Rk Cost 150,133 25,368 85,513 93218 127,915 8911 497 491,555
23478 Accumulated depreciation  (33417)  (24,371)  (80,943)  (85,851) (125,353 (8,514) - (358449)
EEE Net carrying amount 116,716 997 4,570 7,367 2,562 397 497 133,106
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14. Y% BMERRE(E) 14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(continued)
rE Group

RELTH FA K&
LkigF  NEERE k& BRERES IARIR nE OEEIRE a5

Leasehold Leasehold Furniture,

and and improve- fixtures and Plant and Toolings Motor  Construction

buildings ments  equipment  machinery  and moulds vehicles  in progress Total

TR TR TR TR TR TR TR THL
HK$000  HKS000  HKS'000  HK§O000  HKFO00  HKS000  HKF000  HK$000

ZE-Z£ZR=1-H 31March 2013

RZZ—ZEMA—H: At1Apnl 2012

%N Cost 76,888 25471 82923 107,079 132,483 10,805 55,542 491,197
2:E Accumulated depreciation (28,115) (24,650) (80,364) (99,035) (128,502) (9,006) - (369,672)
REFE Net carrying amount 48,773 827 2,559 8,044 3,981 1,799 55,542 121,525

RZB—"FMA—H " At1April 2012, net of

BHRZATE accumulated depreciation 48773 827 2,559 8,044 3,981 1,799 55,542 121,525
RE Additions - 165 317 760 1,199 - 8,851 11,292
RERGHRTE Depreciation provided

during the year (1,581) (659) (1,366) (3.827) (2.420) (329) - (10,182)
HE Disposals (69) (53) (13) (33) (96) (579) - (843)
& H E7 Exchange realignment 1,518 27 45 302 91 35 2,084 4102

RZE-=%=R At 31 March 2013, net of
=+—HB BHKBZR  accumulated depreciation
& 48,641 307 1,542 5246 2,755 926 66,477 125,894

RZZE-=F=f At 31 March 2013:

=t-A:

Bk Cost WO 50 B8l %38 1%l 101% 6477 4948
itk Accumulteddepreciation  (0S30) (4729 @139 G120 (31408 02%9) - e
EEHE Net caying amount, 4864 W 1,542 5246 2755 R 4T 12589
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14. Y% BERZREB(E) 14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(continued)

REHRAEFREL W RETF The net book values of the Group's leasehold land and
ZEREFES AT buildings at the end of the reporting period are analysed
as follows:

AEHE
Group
—EB-mFE —T—=F
2014 2013
THET FET
HK$'000 HK$'000
MREBEZPFHREE Medium term leases in Hong Kong 7,736 8,016
AR Bl Az R E Medium term leases in Mainland China 108,980 40,625
116,716 48,641
RZE-—HF=A=+—BAXEHEH At 31 March 2014, a building of the Group with a net
—IERREVF(E 477,736,000 T 2 18 carrying amount of approximately HK$7,736,000 (2013:
F(ZE2E—=F: 8)DwEMUE Nil) was pledged to secure banking facilities granted to
BAEEMER 2FITEERE (T the Group (note 28).
28) °
15. A L HEREE 15. PREPAID LAND LEASE PAYMENTS
rEH
Group
—EB-mFE —T—=F
2014 2013
THET FHET
HK$'000 HK$'000
MRIUA—BZREE Carrying amount at 1 April 17,640 17,477
RAFEEHER(HE6) Recognised during the year (note 6) (493) (493)
bE 7 &7 Exchange realignment - 656
R=RA=+—BZRHEE Carrying amount at 31 March 17,147 17,640
FIATERTFOE « & RHM  Current portion included in
FEW R R 2 m B &R 17 prepayments, deposits and
other receivables (478) (478)
EMEE D Non-current portion 16,669 17,162
& £ b 7 R B 9 Hb 3 DA R4 R The leasehold lands are held under medium term leases
MEFRE - and are situated in Mainland China.
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16. IEIERD 3 R AN

16. DEFERRED DEVELOPMENT COSTS

AEE
Group
—F-mE T =F
2014 2013
FHET TET
HK$'000 HK$'000
MRIMA—A : At 1 April:
BN Cost 39,013 38,836
ESE i Accumulated amortisation (38,420) (37,946)
AREFE Net carrying amount 593 890
MRIA—BZRAZ5HEES  Cost, net of accumulated amortisation,
at 1 April 593 890
100 — A EPF Additions — internal development 355 240
N B (FisE6) Amortisation provided during the year
(note 6) (436) (519)
b H, & 5] Exchange realignment (6) (18)
R=A=+—H At 31 March 506 593
R=A=+—H At 31 March:
PR Cost 39,332 39,013
ESE i Accumulated amortisation (38,826) (38,420)
AREFE Net carrying amount 506 593
17. B AR 2 RE 17. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES
b NN
Company
—E—-mF —F—=
2014 2013
FExT TFET
HK$'000 HK$'000
FELETRIRE KA Unlisted investments, at cost 269,256 269,256
FEUY BB A RIBR X Due from subsidiaries 767,266 767,266
1,036,522 1,036,522
o ORE" Less: Impairment # (591,256) (502,256)
445,266 534,266
FE B A BB Due to subsidiaries (198,578) (198,897)
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17. B AR ZRE ()

# ARAEEETHEARSERSEE B
FEREE D Bl 5 269,256,000/ (=T —=
F 1 269,256,000 7T) I 767,266,000 78 7T.( =
T— =4 : 767,266,000 7T) CRINBIRER
BN 2B AR 218 E R REWH B A 7R
TEERIRAE « RANER - FHIMER 89,000,000
#BIE(=—Z— =4 : 75,000,000/ 7T) & FE U
BB A FIBRF 2R E ©

B RRZIRERMEZESH AT

17. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

# Impairments were recognised for investments in subsidiaries and amounts
due from subsidiaries with carrying amounts of HK$269,256,000 (2013:
HK$269,256,000) and HK$767,266,000 (2013: HK$767,266,000) (before
deducting the impairment loss), respectively, because certain subsidiaries
of the Group have been making losses persistently. During the year, an
additional impairment of HK$89,000,000 (2013: HK$75,000,000) was
recognised on the amounts due from subsidiaries.

The movement in the impairment of investments in
subsidiaries is as follows:

AN

Company
—EB-mFE —T—=F
2014 2013
THERT TAETT
HK$’'000 HK$'000
REH] At the beginning of year 502,256 427,256
BB E B R Impairment losses recognised 89,000 75,000
RE#L At the end of year 591,256 502,256

EN/NYSI )=t = i N D S et
BRABZAREFBAN - UEE
RMBRRZIRERBBEMIRE
PR HBERMBRAR G THER
ZHEBEEE MTBHAXRFTRE
AR -

BRBER—FRNEEZEKHE QR
BR #X3,000,0008 T ( — & — =4 :
3,000,000/87T) * I B A RIBR R &
AEIRE RERERTERY-
BERAE KLz WBER
R EBRBTIEERSHRE+ =
BAREERE BRI BEAKITIERAT
BIERD o

At the end of each reporting period, the Company
assesses the prospects and financial position of its
subsidiaries, on an individual basis, as to whether there is
any indication of impairment of its investments in
subsidiaries or any impairment loss previously
recognised for subsidiaries in prior years may no longer
exist or may need to be adjusted accordingly.

Except for amounts due from subsidiaries of
HK$3,000,000 (2013: HK$3,000,000) which are repayable
within one year, the balances with subsidiaries are
unsecured, interest-free and have no fixed terms of
repayment. In the opinion of the directors, the balances
with subsidiaries are not repayable within twelve months
from the end of the reporting period except for the
amounts aforementioned and are therefore shown in the
statement of financial position as non-current.
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17. B AR ZRE ()

TEMBARLZFHIBTNT

17. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are as follows:

MR R B&f7/ ERREEREZ
28 b AR A BAl TREH
Place of incorporation/ Issued/ Percentage of
registration and registered equity attributable
Name business share capital to the Company Principal activities
EE EFES
Direct Indirect
SEMBEXBRAR BB 100/87T - 100 RAEER
Concept Technology Industries Limited ~ Hong Kong HK$100 Investment holding
Favourable Outcome Limited* REBETHEE 1% - 100 HEZR
British Virgin Islands US$1 Investment holding
(“BVI")
RERTRNETARAR hEARAME 65,000,000/ 7T - 100 SEREEETER
Global Asia High-tech Electronics (TR B,/ EA, HK$65,000,000 Manufacture and trading
Co., Ltd." The People's Republic of electronic products
of China (The "PRC")/
Mainland China
Group Sense (China) Limited* EBRAFHE (ES 100 - REEK
BVI US$1 Investment holding
Group Sense (Dongguan) Limited* EEBRTEE/TEAM 10T - 100 #HBEME
BVI/Mainland China US$10 Property holding
Group Sense (Holding) Limited* EBRAFE 3,000 7T 100 - RAERK
BVI US$3,000 Investment holding
Group Sense (S.E.A) Limited* KERZEHS 17T 100 - REEKR
BVI US$1 Investment holding
EEBEDHNERAR* BES 10037 100 - RAERK
Group Sense Cyberspace Limited* Samoa US$100 Investment holding
REARRA 20 @R 1,005 - 100 FHEFRHEETER
Group Sense Limited Hong Kong ERFRFENE Design and trading of
EERR 17 200,000 7T @ electronic products
Ordinary shares
HK$1,000
Non-voting 5%
deferred shares
HK$200,000?
Group Sense Manufactory Company RBRLHSE/TERL (= - 100 HEER
Limited BVI/Mainland China US$1 Investment holding
ERSERRAR BB 28T - 100 REER
Group Sense Manufactory Company Hong Kong HK$2 Investment holding

Limited
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17. B AR ZRE () 17. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

ML E R g#1f7/ ERRELREZ
A1 Ty ERA Aol TEEH
Place of incorporation/ Issued/ Percentage of
registration and registered equity attributable
Name business share capital to the Company Principal activities
E# Gk
Direct Indirect
BEBHMRBRAF EE 28T - 9895 RIAMHEETEM
Group Sense Mobile-Tech Limited Hong Kong HK$2 Design and trading of
electronic products
1EE PDAERAER A HES EBR2115837 5T 98.95 - RARR

Group Sense PDA Holdings Limited Cayman lslands ABBER17182%E T Investment holding

Ordinary shares
US$2,115,837
Series A
preferred shares
US$17,182

BEZLERERAA BB 10077 - 9895 REARHEETEM

Group Sense PDA Limited Hong Kong HK$100 Design and trading of

electronic products

BEEEARR(FR)BRAA EE 10078 7T - 100 HEER

Group Sense Software Technology Hong Kong HK$100 Investment holding

(Hong Kong) Limited

HAEHI LTt A BA 60,000,000 B - 100 REAMBEETER

Kabushiki Kaisha Group Sense* Japan JPY60,000,000 Design and trading of

electronic products

Supreme Style Technology Limited* HBEIHS 1003%7T - 100 HREER

BVI US$100 Investment holding

BRPAABRGREARRA BB/ B, AR 50,000,0007 - 51 RARBEEFERR

(oAD" The PRC/ RMB50,000,000 it
Mainland China Design and trading of
electronic products
and software

BT Notes:

(1) ZHNE QT © (1) Wholly-foreign-owned enterprise.

) RIER DI EM A ERR B EREBFRAR ) The deferred shares practically carry no rights to dividends or to receive
RIEMREAEGZ BEAHEEMBRRARE notice of or to attend or vote at any general meeting of the company or
ARG EIREZHER - INEREERES to participate in any distribution on winding up.

EE] 537K °
(3) RARBERKY 2 RINE B DE - (3) Sino-foreign equity joint venture established in the PRC.
i AEERBL RGBSt TkEs * Not audited by Ernst & Young, Hong Kong or another member firm of the

B SRS PrEIRR A B T4 - Ernst & Young global network.
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17. B LARZEBE (&) 17. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)
FREIEZAREAREE 2 KNF The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company
EEEREAFZESHANAEEE which, in the opinion of the directors, principally affected
EFEZETER(D 2B AR - E the results for the year or formed a substantial portion of
ERE REHMHWB AR ZFB the net assets of the Group. To give details of other
BEHERBNILE ° subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors, result

in particulars of excessive length.
Tz&ﬁiﬁiﬂ fliE e 2 AR BB Details of the Group's subsidiary, & X &l i, that has
NERARABREETEY AT material non-controlling interests are set out below:
—E-mFE —T—=F
2014 2013

ROREB 2 FEIEHIBESR FTI% A Percentage of equity interest held by
PRAER B Rt X non-controlling interests of A2 K& 49% 49%

—E-mE —T—=F

2014 2013
FET TET
HK$'000 HK$'000
RREBZ IEE S 915 Loss for the year allocated to
NEEEE non-controlling interests of A2 A& (6,392) (204)
RE B HFR KB Accumulated balances of
FEfE S 2 RETH4E non-controlling interests of A K&
at the reporting dates (3,519) 2,873
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17. B AR ZRE ()

TAIRARSR AR B 15 E B
B-BEZESBERRELALEER

17. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

The following tables illustrate the summarised financial
information of A X &l 3. The amounts disclosed are

AIEHH - before any intercompany eliminations:
—E-mF —T=F
2014 2013
THExT FET
HK$'000 HK$'000
YA Revenue 1,381 2,152
X H AR Total expenses (14,426) (3,997)
RERBZEBRRNEFREZ Loss for the year and total
2 HE K= comprehensive income for the year (13,045) (1,845)
RBEE Current assets 1,587 6,541
BB E Non-current assets 90,555 87,063
mEAIE Current liabilities (99.324) (87,741)
REFB2H ML FR Net cash flows used in operating
activities (2,452) (2,453)
REXB AR TR Net cash flows used in investing
activities (10,741) (12,565)
MEXB 2B RMARE Net cash flows from financing
activities 9,897 12,712
RekIREFEBEBEEH RS  Netdecrease in cash and
HEE cash equivalents (3,296) (2,306)
18. BEQAZKRE 18. INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES
rEH
Group
—E-mE —_T—=F
2014 2013
TET FHET
HK$'000 HK$'000
E(REEFE Share of net assets 1,548 1,523
a2 Goodwill on acquisition 6,680 6,680
8,228 8,203
B EERFIRK Amounts due from joint ventures 6,312 5,706
o ORE" Less: Impairment # (5,706) (5,706)
8,834 8,203
EE B RAIRR — mE Amounts due from joint ventures
— current 401 195
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18. RERAIZRE (B)

FBREERRERFINBEREER
AZREYT  REER RERHK
TEEREHRET—EARER -
BIRNER B IR R AT R IERE ©

FE UL & & A BIBR 401,000 7T T5 &
ERAEERSHEES - BEIRF -
R BN EETEERE -

# —GEARIRENLEET - MEREEE
5,706,0007% 7t CGRIBRE B R B AT) 2 FE U —
BB N R BRRFERRES, 706,000/ T (=2
— =4 : 5,706,000/87T) °

JEW—EE AR RERE 2
T :

18. INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES
(continued)

The amounts due from joint ventures included in
investments in joint ventures are unsecured, interest-free
and are not repayable within twelve months from the
end of the reporting period and are therefore shown in
the consolidated statement of financial position as non-
current.

The amounts due from joint ventures of HK$401,000,
included in the Group's current assets, are unsecured,
interest-free and have no fixed term of repayment.

# Impairment of HK$5,706,000 was recognised for the amount due from a
joint venture with a carrying amount of HK$5,706,000 (before deducting
the impairment loss) (2013: HK$5,706,000) because the joint venture was
inactive during the year.

The movements in the provision for impairment of an
amount due from a joint venture are as follows:

rEE
Group
—E—-NF —FE—=F
2014 2013
FET FAET
HK$'000 HK$'000
REH] At the beginning of year 5,706 3,200
BB E E TR Impairment loss recognised - 2,506
RER At the end of year 5,706 5,706
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18. BB LQTIZKRE (E) 18. INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES
(continued)
BERRIZFEBNAT Particulars of the joint ventures are as follows:
Bfott
Percentage of
e BT
AR A iRk
Issued/ EEE
registered Placeof — FiEHEMER RAE 2R
£ share capital registration Ownership Voting Profit TEXH
Name held and business interest power sharing  Principal activities
HENBARAR (158)) 700,000/ 70 BB 35 3 3B EEEH
Neoplatec Technology HK$700,000 Hong Kong Dormant
Company Limited
("Neoplatec”)
ERNRRERR ARE B/ HhER 19.78 2 1978 SUERHEZTER
BRAR (EEHE]) 5,401,550 7C The PRC/ i
Chongging New Standard RMB5,401,550  Mainland China Manufacture and
Medical Equipment trading of electronic
Co., Ltd* medical appliances
BERERRAF 10,000,100 7T BB 3 33 3B RERE
((B8RE]) HK$10,000,100 Hong Kong Investment Holding
GS Solutions Limited
(“GS Solutions")
R HEER LR ARE150007T B/ RERY 50 50 50 BLEEETER
RMB15,000 The PRC/ Online trading of
Mainland China electronic products
* REEBL KSR E R AT b ok g5t * Not audited by Ernst & Young, Hong Kong or another member firm of the
BT PR BIRR A B PTEAX © Ernst & Young global network.
RNEEEERANREHRARAEME The above investments in joint ventures are indirectly
ERA - held by the Company.
HRELREEEEARBIEBAR The Group has discontinued the recognition of its share
SEREERRIZRERAEER of losses of Neoplatec and GS Solutions because the
FETEEE— P 2EE BMAE share of losses of these joint ventures exceeded the
ERIEHEREEBEREREE R Group's investments in the joint ventures and the Group
ENEHE  AEEAREREEESE has no obligation to take up further losses. The amounts
RARAFEEREFTTHNEREESED of the Group’s unrecognised share of losses of these
B /4350008 L( =& — = F: joint ventures for the current year and cumulatively were
2,000 7t ) }% 1,134,000 (=& HK$435,000 (2013: HK$2,000) and HK$1,134,000 (2013:
— =4 : 699,000&7T) ° HK$699,000), respectively.
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18. EERAZKRE (H) 18. INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES
(continued)
TRINRAEBRENTBERNEE The following table illustrates the aggregate financial
MEBRARIZHMBERNBE information of the Group’s joint ventures that are not

individually material:

—EF-NFE —FT=F

2014 2013
FET FHT
HK$'000 HK$'000

AEEREEBERARI@A, Share of the joint ventures’ profit/(loss)

(B8E) for the year 6 (160)

AFEEREEERFIZMEIA  Share of the joint ventures' total

1B=g comprehensive income for the year 6 (160)

AEBRAEERRREZIRE Aggregate carrying amount of the

#E Group's investments in the joint
ventures 8,228 8,203
19. BERQTA2RE 19. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES

rEE

Group
—B-mFE —T=F
2014 2013
FET TET
HK$'000 HK$'000

EIEEEFE Share of net assets - -

JE UG B 2 N B BR 7K Amounts due from associates 16,899 13,602

B ORE! Less: Impairment * (11,165) (10,274)

5,734 3,328

JE Ui Bt & N m) BR 3K 5,734,000 /8 70 (— The amounts due from associates of HK$5,734,000 (2013:

T—=4 :3,328,000/87m) HEER HK$3,328,000), included in the Group's current assets,

REBRHEESY  AEERM . are unsecured, interest-free and have no fixed terms of

BN EE R - repayment.

# AR EAREB B 2B 2R RFHESREE # Impairment was recognised for the amounts due from associates with a
18 - B FLARME(E 11,165,0007% 7T (R ERIR carrying amount of HK$11,165,000 (before deducting the impairment loss)
EEBR) (ZZF—=% : 13,602,000/87T) Z (2013: HK$13,602,000) because these associates of the Group have been
JE 5t A R BR SR R RE © making losses persistently.
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19. BE LR ZRE (58)
R U 2 2 B BB AR 4 B B

19. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued)

The movements in the provision for impairment of

R amounts due from associates are as follows:
KEE
Group
—E-mFE —_T=fF
2014 2013
FET TFET
HK$'000 HK$'000
REF] At the beginning of year 10,274 9,365
BEEEER (W) Impairment losses recognised (note 6) 1,174 1,315
B BRSO (BEE6) Impairment losses reversed (note 6) (283) (430)
PE H &5 Exchange realignment - 24
REF At the end of year 11,165 10,274

TEMERRZFBOAT

Particulars of the principal associates are as follows:

Fri¥s ML REE
217,/ 1N FEAGFREHE
218 L& ERE #REIL FTEER
Percentage
Issued/ Place of  of ownership
registered incorporation/ interest
share capital registration attributable Principal
Name held and business  to the Group activities
BRRERAERAR ([HHR ) 3,500 7T N 35 HiREH
ACME Tech Precision Moulds HK$3,500 Hong Kong Dormant
Limited ("ACME")*
M e RRHRBR QA 45,000 7T BB 45 EEEH
(Mt eR1) HK$45,000 Hong Kong Dormant
Sinocard Technology Limited
(“Sinocard”)
RELEBHERAT] 100,000 77T BB 33 REEK
(MEZZRB* HK$100,000 Hong Kong Investment
Group Sense Plastic Technology holding
Company Limited (“GSPT")*
* AEEBL KGR ERIE Lk &at * Not audited by Ernst & Young, Hong Kong or another member firm of the

RS T5 P BB K B P& A% © Ernst & Young global network.
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19. BE R 2RE (B)

EREINEZTARYARE ZKNF
EREAEARFENERAEEE
EFETRHNIBERR -EF
R REEGBERRNFBER
BYERHEBRIE -

REBEE 2B 2 RAIIE - T
HARRE2ENBRRARA ZKE
N

MAEELEERE QA EEBBEA
EERBERR 2 HEREKAERSR
EEFERE— P ZEE XK
EEXRIFEREELER - wle
REESZEBHEE  ~A5EKE
REMBE RN AFEE R EFTH
EBELSBESNA141,00B8T(=ZF
— =4 : 1,779,000 7T) & 6,766,000
BIT(ZTE—=%F : 6,625,000/ 7T) °

20. A[EHERE

19. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued)

The above table lists the associates of the Group which,
in the opinion of the directors, principally affected the
results for the year or formed a substantial portion of the
net assets of the Group. To give details of other
associates would, in the opinion of the directors, result in
particulars of excessive length.

The Group's shareholdings in the associates all comprise
equity shares held through wholly-owned subsidiaries of
the Company.

The Group has discontinued the recognition of its share
of losses of ACME, Sinocard and GSPT because the
share of losses of these associates exceeded the Group's
investments in the associates and the Group has no
obligation to take up further losses. The amounts of the
Group's unrecognised share of losses of these associates
for the current year and cumulatively were HK$141,000
(2013: HK$1,779,000) and HK$6,766,000 (2013:
HK$6,625,000), respectively.

20. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS

H%E
Group

—E-mFE —T—=%F

2014 2013

FTET THETT

HK$'000 HK$'000

JE IR E - IR Unlisted equity investments, at cost 46,425 46,425
o ORE" Less: Impairment * (15,226) (10,000)

31,199 36,425
# BARERB/RE - B BERE 46,425,000 # Impairment was recognised for unlisted investments with a carrying

BIL(HBEREBRMN) (ZF—=F:
32,055,000/ 7C) 2 F LT IRE #ERRE

amount of HK$46,425,000 (before deducting the impairment loss) (2013:
HK$32,055,000) due to the non-performance of these investments.
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20. AIAHERE (B)

21.

22.

AERERERERBZEESHIT

20.

AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS
(continued)

The movements in the provisions for impairment of
available-for-sale investments are as follows:

rEHE
Group
—F-mE —F-=F
2014 2013
FHERT FHETT
HK$’'000 HK$'000
REF] At the beginning of year 10,000 10,000
BB (HiE6) Provision for impairment (note 6) 5,226 =
REEL At the end of year 15,226 10,000

PR EBEIFE EMRERESFRE
HEEEERAHEERE -

R-E-—MF=A=1+—H 3Lt
MIRERERNAE AT EGLESR
BzZRAEKNRE RAEEFR
RRFETRE R S & &8 M AR AR
HEREREYIE -

REZE 21.

BEMEARNIRE - BiZeHH
e BEERTHY B R o

The above investments consist of investments in unlisted
equity securities which were designated as available-for-
sale investments.

As at 31 March 2014, the unlisted equity investments
were stated at cost less impairment because the range
of reasonable fair value estimates is so significant that
the directors are of the opinion that their fair value
cannot be measured reliably.

LONG TERM DEPOSITS

None of the assets is either past due or impaired. The
financial assets relate to deposits for which there was no
recent history of default.

FE 22. INVENTORIES

A%m

Group
—EB-ME T =F
2014 2013
THExT FHT
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERE Raw materials 32,147 42,920
=®m Work in progress 7,150 11,655
BUAK o Finished goods 7,742 10,979
47,039 65,554
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23. EREZ R 23. TRADE RECEIVABLES
rEH
Group
—B-mE T =F
2014 2013
FEx FAET
HK$'000 HK$'000
FEIRE R0 Trade receivables 59,094 73,188
YERE] Impairment (15,507) (16,189)
43,587 56,999

AEBREEFZESHTENER
FEETT - MRH—RNF30E60
R BEEFPEERAGERE -
RE B R AR S EREN 2 UK
RIEETEREHNL BEEERR
BFERK - sRAEEETHENE
s  AEBYERERKE
5 SRR AR m e E Al
EERTRE - BYE SRR

ME - EERREEFTESL

543

B4 B

AT 7= B W B 5 R R v o5 HA K 1
PR BRIRMFREIHI A 2 Rk DA -

The Group's trading terms with its customers are mainly
on credit. The credit period is generally 30 to 60 days.
Each customer has a maximum credit limit. The Group
seeks to maintain strict control over its outstanding
receivables and to minimise credit risk. Overdue
balances are reviewed regularly by senior management.
The Group does not hold any collateral or other credit
enhancements over its trade receivable balances. Trade
receivables are interest-free. Please refer to note 43 for
details of credit risk management.

An aged analysis of the trade receivables as at the end
of the reporting period, based on the payment due
dates and net of provisions, is as follows:

rEH

Group
—E-mE —T-=F
2014 2013
FERT FHETT
HK$’'000 HK$'000
BN IS Within 60 days 40,285 49,776
61 290K 61 to 90 days 145 634
3@ 90K Over 90 days 3,157 6,589
43,587 56,999
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23. EIWE BRI (E) 23. TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued)
EWE ZRFUBERE 2 EEHIT ¢ The movements in the provisions for impairment of trade
receivables are as follows:

AEE

Group
—E-0mF —T—=F
2014 2013
FHET FHET
HK$'000 HK$'000
REF] At the beginning of year 16,189 15,666
BEEEER (W) Impairment losses recognised (note 6) 1,720 26
EMAR 2 BR3K Amounts written off (2,402) =
E H 55 Exchange realignment - 497
REF4K At the end of year 15,507 16,189

b e W B B SOR (B B s B FE M
B ERERIKE 5 KRR 2 BB

15,507,000% t( — & — = F:
16,189,000/% ;¢ ) H 2R @ B &
15,507,000/% o( — & — = F:

16,189,000 7T, ) ° IEI%«/WEJ*LI&
EORRERFPEBRIERNIES
B FEHRE AT e ot S U ER X 2
— 85 o

I £ {8 Bl 3 KRR BB TR (E 2 &
WB SRR R DT

Included in the above provision for impairment of trade
receivables is a provision for individually impaired trade
receivables of HK$15,507,000 (2013: HK$16,189,000) with
a gross carrying amount of HK$15,507,000 (2013:
HK$16,189,000). The individually impaired trade
receivables relate to customers that were in default or
delinquency in payments and only a portion of the
receivables is expected to be recovered.

The aged analysis of the trade receivables that are
neither individually nor collectively considered to be
impaired is as follows:

AEE

Group
—EB-F T—=F
2014 2013
FET TAET
HK$'000 HK$'000
RiBH IR E Neither past due nor impaired 37,759 46,042
BEA—Z= M E A 1 to 2 months past due 2,526 3,734
M E={EA 2 to 3 months past due 145 634
BERER A =8 A Over 3 months past due 3,157 6,589
43,587 56,999

R 38 HR 7 S ORY (8 2 e WA R SR B K
HE 0 B B P AT BN SR R R R ©

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired
relate to a large number of diversified customers for
whom there was no recent history of default.
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23.

24.

FEWE 5 &R (E)

2 38 H1 B £ R (E 2 B W B 3R B 10 X
SEZETHRINEP - RIESB
FiLs ARAREERA BHNE

EERURBANE  WRA/LER
R 2Bk E - BB B F AR
TELRE R -

i%ﬁ%klﬁ - BRERHE MR

TA

23.

24.

TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued)

Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate
to a number of independent customers that have a good
track record with the Group. Based on past experience,
the directors of the Company are of the opinion that no
provision for impairment is necessary in respect of these
balances as there has not been a significant change in
credit quality and the balances are still considered fully
recoverable.

PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES

REH AT

Group Company
—E-NF —FT—=F ZF-0OF —_T—=F
2014 2013 2014 2013
T THETT FTET FHET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
A I8 Prepayments 2,918 5,770 290 200
re Deposits 12,557 3,578 - -
Hib R BRE TR Other receivables 39,256 41,341 - -
AR Impairment (26,564) (17,139) - -
28,167 33,550 290 200

BeMEBMIONE - BERESE
HibfEWRRRE R -

LR FEMARIE R REMEUER
K2 B B B 1E 26,564,000 7% 7T
ZE— =14 :17,139,000 7T ) B
% HERM(E 432,819,000/ (=
T — =4 : 31,361,000 7T ) ° & 7
£ B E th R UK BR SR B R UK BR
IR IBEFIBE RS - TREEER]
Ut E U BR R 2 — 301D - A&
EwES L EEKRSEEAERR
S HMEERARE - HHBRHAMmE
WER R R BT ERELBRA
e M BN B HE R BR Bk 2 B AT o

None of the deposits is either past due or impaired. The
provision for impairment relates to other receivables.

Included in the above provision for impairment of
prepayments, deposits and other receivables are
provisions of HK$26,564,000 (2013: HK$17,139,000) with a
carrying amount of HK$32,819,000 (2013: HK$31,361,000).
The individually impaired other receivables relate to
other receivables that were in default or delinquency in
payments and only a portion of the receivables is
expected to be recovered. The Group does not hold any
collateral or other credit enhancements over this
balance. The remaining balance of other receivables is
neither past due nor impaired and relates to a large
number of independent parties for whom there was no
recent history of default.
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24. EARE - e REMMEE
% ()

BNFRE R REBEEERZ

24. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER

RECEIVABLES (continued)

The movements in the provision for impairment of

EEE 2 EET ¢ prepayments, deposits and other receivables are as
follows:
A EE
Group
—E-NFE —T—=F
2014 2013
THET FET
HK$'000 HK$'000
REH] At the beginning of year 17,139 5,082
BIEEEER Impairment losses recognised 9,425 12,057
RE# At the end of year 26,564 17,139

25. BERASEEEABREENA
(SN

25. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND

PLEDGED DEPOSITS

REH ARATF
Group Company
—2-NEF —T-—F ZF-NF —T——F
2014 2013 2014 2013

TR TAET TET TAET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

IRe RIBTTES Cash and bank balances 33,496 80,782 101 103
TEBiTE K Time deposits 1,001 = - =
34,497 80,782 101 103
B — ERERT Less: pledged deposits
%%’:\Z}%ﬁ for a short term
7K (£ 28) bank loan (note 28) (1,001) - - -
RekHEFEER Cash and cash equivalents 33,496 80,782 101 103

RBERR NREBUARE( A
RE¥DstEzZBH e kBEEEEEE
#56,981,000%8 t( — & — = F:
15,077,000 7T) - AREETFEA
HBHMER A BEFEH
HNGE B IR AR K A IE - S0 KA B
EEET ASEEESBERE
AREELEFNRITHEARE R
BmAEHME -

At the end of the reporting period, the cash and cash
equivalents of the Group denominated in Renminbi
("RMB"”) amounted to HK$6,981,000 (2013:
HK$15,077,000). RMB is not freely convertible into other
currencies, however, under Mainland China’s Foreign
Exchange Control Regulations and Administration of
Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange
Regulations, the Group is permitted to exchange RMB
for other currencies through banks authorised to conduct
foreign exchange business.
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25. e R BEEEEEERSIEF
ER(E)

RITBESDHRBEITERRITER
F R ZFB M REREF B - /FA
SENKASHR  BHEHRFR
ZHRAS=EA LRZTEZEH
EH 7 M R BREK B - RITIF K
REREREFRRERIFERRR
BT HE RS SRACER D ERT o

26. BB Z R

AT REMNESRFN®REHRR
NRENH B Z R DT

25. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND
PLEDGED DEPOSITS (continued)

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on
daily bank deposit rates. Short term time deposits are
made for three months depending on the immediate
cash requirements of the Group, and earn interest at the
respective short term time deposit rates. The bank
balances and pledged deposits are deposited with
creditworthy banks with no recent history of default.

26. TRADE PAYABLES

An aged analysis of the trade payables as at the end of
the reporting period, based on the payment due dates,

is as follows:

AEH

Group
-
2014 2013
FET FET
HK$'000 HK$'000
PR 60K Within 60 days 34,611 38,507
61 290K 61 to 90 days 1,151 226
B 90K Over 90 days 4,383 4,656
40,145 43,389

BNESEREE - B—RRNOX
mE -

27. HttENRRKREAE

BN ERR M E R ELESE -
ARIRERER -

The trade payables are non-interest-bearing and are
normally settled on 60-day terms.

27. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS

Other payables and accruals are interest-free and
repayable on demand.

122 Group Sense (International) Limited ® Annual Report 2014



P35 8 R OR AE (48)

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
= —POF = 3 =+—H 31 March 2014

28. ffERITHEE 28. INTEREST-BEARING BANK BORROWINGS
rE Group
—E-mEF —E-=F
2014 2013
BRI )0 TET BENE 5 THL
Effective Effective
interest interest
rate  Maturity  HK$'000 rate Maturity HK$'000
i) Current
BITER Bank loan
— & — unsecured - - - 2.9% 2013 20,000
RITER Bank loans
— B — secured 2.6%-3.6% 2014 23,814 - - =
23,814 20,000
BI5E - Notes:
(a) RZZE—NFEF=A=1T—HAEBEETER (a) As at 31 March 2014, the Group's bank loans are secured by:

BATS 1’5%}&3’@

(i) NAEERFEHRIREBELD
7,736,000 7T 2 B FHERIRIBE A -
&

(ii) VAR L AR SR [ 2 8 HiTF SR AR R I
£ #41,001,00087T

RZZF—WFE=A=+—8 ' ARARAE
& 2 $R1TE 3 4e 1 A& 85,000,000 7T 2 &
{R(=Z—=% : 55,000,000/87T) °

R-F-—ME=A=+—8" K%lﬁﬁ#
RITEKBEAETHE - R—FREH -
EE\J&E/M&GH%?ﬁ%buiﬂi%&f
PR E26%5 B2 REERTER
13,800,0007% 7T % 10,014,000/ 7T

R-ZZB—=F=ZA=+—H AKEEEN
RITEF B TEHE - HBEBRITAERS
MEMZK25%5E - R—FRZIH -

(i) a mortgage over the Group's building, which had an aggregate
carrying value at the end of the reporting period of approximately
HK$7,736,000; and

(ii) the pledge of certain of the Group's time deposits amounting to
HK$1,001,000.

As at 31 March 2014, the Company has guaranteed the Group's bank loan
amounting to HK$85,000,000 (2013: HK$55,000,000).

As at 31 March 2014, included in the Group's secured bank loans are
outstanding bank loans of HK$13,800,000 and HK$10,014,000
denominated in Hong Kong dollars, which bear interest at HIBOR plus 3%
per annum and at the effective interest rate of 2.6%, respectively, and are
repayable within one year.

As at 31 March 2013, the Group's unsecured bank loan was denominated

in Hong Kong dollars, which bore interest at HIBOR plus 2.5% per annum
and was repayable within one year.
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29. BE

30.

29. PROVISION

rEE Group
EmRE
Product
warranties
FHET
HK$'000
R-E—=FMA—H At 1 April 2013 2,059
B EE N Additional provision 757
RAFANEH Amounts utilised during the year (802)
REBRASERE Reversal of unutilised amounts (400)
b H, 5 5] Exchange realignment (41)
R-_E—HFE=A=+—H At 31 March 2014 1,573

AEERBOHEFERATPREMR
MERE > RBEEMETEES
B BERIEEEREENSE
& MR IR R E MG - & b5
EERFEETRS  LIFEEE
Al e

BN —MEBAT—FEFHRER
AR

FEA — Y B~ A — I I A R 2 B
SR - 28 MEREEERD

30.

The Group provides two-year warranties to its customers
on certain of its electronic products, under which faulty
products are repaired or replaced. The amount of
provision is estimated based on sales volumes and past
experience of the level of repairs and returns. The
estimation basis is reviewed on an ongoing basis and
revised where appropriate.

DUE TO A NON-CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDER OF A SUBSIDIARY

The amount due to a non-controlling shareholder of a
subsidiary is unsecured, non-interest-bearing and has no
fixed terms of repayment.

124 Group Sense (International) Limited ® Annual Report 2014



P35 8 R OR AE (48)

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

—ZF—NFE=H=+—H 31 March 2014

31. ELERIE

AEBEREERAGIREBELE
KRR 75 E18 /5 358,107,000 B L (=&
— =4F : 314,820,000 7T ) - I A] i
ERIAREELERABEBEENR AN
RIRFERT 3 A o 2S5 B 75 i A
A b 2 A4 52,964,000/8 T (— B —=
& 174,935,000/ 7T) MR E 18
WAIRAR—ERFRNIEHEKRRE
AR A e Rtk EBARE EE—
BRNEAERBEERE &M
BN EWB AR A EA 2B EE
B btEEEMS  LARER
EEFRIAEE o

REFEEEXMABHE RPEA
WKL ZHERERIBREES
&2 IR BREMI10% 2 E - - =
BREEH_ZTTNFEF—F—Hi
AR WERAR-_ZETLF+ A
ZST—BZRELEZAERN - HPEH
N ESNEIREEMBEREEER
ZHERI AR W - QA RREE
BREGH - AKEME - #EH
MR 5% Bt > NEBE AR F
BAAKL KB RRR -FF/N
F-—A—BURELEZBNMADIK
Z BB BN E A

RZZE-—WOF=A=1+—H K&
[ 3 A B0 P B A AR S 2 T B A
Al BERRMEERAEKEH
BT EL Z BB E BB R
EREERIE - EFRR - WEMH
BoR  BERRIKLEERRER
AREAKAEDIRLEFRAN - B
BEHR ARARXTEAMANNE
DA BERALBERRIZERE
WARELAEREREZR(ZT—=
F M)

2R A ) [A) B A BR S2AF B BB I 4 R
B STIER -

31. DEFERRED TAX

The Group has tax losses arising in Hong Kong
before IRD assessment of HK$358,107,000 (201 3:
HK$314,820,000) that are available indefinitely for
offsetting against future taxable profits of the companies
in which the losses arose. The Group also has tax losses
arising in Mainland China of HK$52,964,000 (2013:
HK$74,935,000) that will expire in one to five years for
offsetting against future taxable profits. Deferred tax
assets have not been recognised in respect of these
losses as they have arisen in subsidiaries that have been
loss-making for some time and it is not considered
probable that taxable profits will be available against
which the tax losses can be utilised by these subsidiaries.

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, a 10%
withholding tax is levied on dividends declared to
foreign investors from the foreign investment enterprises
established in Mainland China. The requirement is
effective from 1 January 2008 and applies to earnings
after 31 December 2007. A lower withholding tax rate
may be applied if there is a tax treaty between Mainland
China and the jurisdiction of the foreign investors. For
the Group, the applicable rate is 5%. The Group is
therefore liable to withholding taxes on dividends
distributed by those subsidiaries established in Mainland
China in respect of earnings generated from 1 January
2008.

At 31 March 2014, no deferred tax has been recognised
for withholding dividend taxes that would be payable on
the unremitted earnings, that are subject to withholding
dividend taxes of the Group's subsidiaries, associates,
and joint ventures established in Mainland China. In the
opinion of the directors, it is not probable that these
subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures will distribute
such earnings in the foreseeable future. There was no
significant temporary difference associated with
investments in subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates
in Mainland China at the end of the reporting period
(2013: Nil).

There are no income tax consequences attaching to the
payment of dividends by the Company to its shareholders.
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32. /A& 32. SHARE CAPITAL
—E-NFE —T—=F
2014 2013
THET FET
HK$'000 HK$'000
JATE ¢ Authorised:
3,000,000,000 (=& —=4 : 3,000,000,000 (2013: 3,000,000,000)
3,000,000,000) & @ A% ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each
BRXEE0.1078 7T 300,000 300,000
BEEITRER Issued and fully paid:
1,197,663,029 (—&F— =14 : 1,197,663,029 (2013: 1,197,663,029)
1,197,663,029) & F % ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each
BRXEE .10/ 7T 119,766 119,766

33. f#fE

(a)

A EE

R EERAFEE RBEFE
HECERERD 2NN
HEBISH L BAERBDE
A o

AEE %A HEERE
—NAN=ZFARRB2BH L™
RIFTAETT 2 N B E A M UE
ZHWBREIRD 2EHE " /R
B ERDMET AR AR
EEZERE -

33. RESERVES

(a) Group
The amounts of the Group's reserves and the
movements therein for the current and prior years
are presented in the consolidated statement of
changes in equity on page 48 of the financial
statements.

The Group's special reserve represents the
difference between the nominal value of the shares
of the subsidiaries acquired pursuant to the Group
reorganisation prior to the listing of the Company'’s
shares in 1993, and over the nominal value of the
Company's shares issued in exchange therefor.
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33. @& (&)

33. RESERVES (continued)

(b) ZA&AF] (b) Company
Rt Bx
HERE M ABR @ RERE  ZiER ag
Share Capital
premium  Contributed  redemption ~Accumulated
account surplus reserve losses Total
firzE TiEn TiEn TiEn TR TR
Note HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
RZF--% At 1 April 2012
mA-A 409,710 21976 419 (141,404) 290,701
AERREES Total comprehensive loss
ek for the year 11 = = = (75,205) (75,205)
i 3 At 31 March 2013 and
ZR=1+-BR 1 Aprl 2013
mA-A 409,710 21976 419 (216,609) 215,496
AEEREER Total comprehensive loss
k] for the year il = - = (88,588) (88,588)
RZF-ME At 31 March 2014
=A=+-H 409,710 21976 419 (305,197) 126,908

KRR ZHABBKERE
—NAN=FARRBZKMH L™
RIFTETT 2 SEEEAMIEZ

Lp==NGl gh)

NV EBER

R/ ER D MEIT AR A
BHOEEZIHD - REBRE
NAEE1981 » —RIARIAIEE
FERT  MBABBREAZ
HIERIEKBEH DI °

The Company’s contributed surplus represents the
excess of the fair value of the shares of the
subsidiaries acquired pursuant to the Group
reorganisation prior to the listing of the Company’s
shares in 1993, over the nominal value of the
Company'’s shares issued in exchange therefor.
Under the Bermuda Companies Act 1981, a
company may make distributions to its members
out of the contributed surplus in certain
circumstances.
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34. HEWB AT 34. DISPOSALS OF SUBSIDIARIES
—B-mE —F-=F
2014 2013
liEsd FET FAET
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
& & EFE Net assets disposed of:
RekBFeFEE Cash and cash equivalents - 26
HEMEWERRIZES Other receivables and deposits - 491
R E S ER Trade receivables - 10
Hth B BR R Other payables and
fEFtBfE accruals - (515)
- 12
HEMRB AR 2 Gain on disposals of subsidiaries 5 - 287
- 299
XA Satisfied by:
—MIBARIRERE Fair value of equity investment in
Z RN HERBIER a subsidiary retained as
—BEBEARIZEE investment in a joint venture - 296
R4 Cash - 3
- 299
AT AREEMB AR 2HE &R An analysis of the net outflow of cash and cash
SEEERRLFEIN equivalents in respect of the subsidiaries disposed of is
as follows:
—B-mE —F-=F
2014 2013
FTHExT FETT
HK$’'000 HK$'000
ReRE Cash consideration - 3
HERE A EEEIER Cash and cash equivalents disposed of - (26)
HEEWBARZERER Net outflow of cash and cash
ReFEEBEERLFE equivalents in respect of
the disposals of subsidiaries - (23)
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35. REREREBRME

FTEFRERS

(i)

(ii)

BHE—_T—=%F=A=+—H
IEFER - AEEE # 224,000
BILZENRE - e hEAM
FEWBRNER EIEETIR

RBEFE AEEE XM
2,500,000 8 TTE A B K —
BB R HIR@E
FEAWINARRAEZSE - HZE
—E-—=F=ZA=t+—HI*F
BEAR ABREKY Ltz &
B Mg KB % £ 1,375,000%8
THEMEMERREFEE
HEAAEEBEBEH T2
1,125,000 Tt R EiiL ¢ &%
EENFIE - REREMER
R AEBR-_Z—=F=
A=t+—Hzt+_@EAREE -

36. WAREE

(a)

HE _ZENF=A=+—H
IHEER —BYRBGEER
(TREADEEBAEZRALAE
E—HB AR (HEADRDE
FA MPEEARR—ZELEH
627,571 3 7t (494,895,000 7T )
2R REAERBEEAERE
R—HhBHAE-_STTNFE+—
AR=ZB2R% %z %%
#) ABEERZBERAR(Z
MR it WEATAZE
MEREEARERER  WIEHE
REANERZWE KBRS
MAEEZGHERMATE 28
BMERABEFTZESR - At
WEABRSEARERBER
TREEAREETEERE
100,0003 7T * LA RZBFTFEZ
Hipig=8E  ERFMNE KR
B([RER]) -

35. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

Major non-cash transactions

(i)

(ii)

During the year ended 31 March 2013, the Group
has transferred HK$224,000 from prepayments,
deposits and other receivables to construction in
progress.

In prior years, the Group had paid HK$2,500,000 as
capital contribution for the establishment of a non-
wholly-owned subsidiary and it had been classified
as long term deposits in prior years. During the year
ended 31 March 2013, long term deposits of
HK$1,375,000 were offset with other payables and
accruals upon the cancellation of the establishment
of the above-mentioned entity and the Group has
transferred the remaining HK$1,125,000 from long
term deposits to prepayments, deposits and other
receivables as it was repayable within twelve months
as at 31 March 2013.

36. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

(a)

During the year ended 31 March 2008, an
independent service provider (the "Plaintiff”) issued
a legal proceeding in Hong Kong against a
subsidiary of the Group (the “Defendant”) and a
claim against the Defendant for a sum of
US$627,571 (approximately HK$4,895,000). The
Plaintiff alleged that the Defendant was in breach of
a service agreement dated 3 December 2004 (the
"Agreement”) and failed to make payments in
accordance with the Agreement (the “Claim”). In
this connection, the Defendant also filed a claim
against the Plaintiff and alleged that the Plaintiff
was in breach of the Agreement in failing to design
and develop the products in substantial
conformance to the functional specification as
defined in the Agreement. Accordingly, the
Defendant made a counterclaim against the Plaintiff
for liquidated damages in the sum of US$100,000
and other damages to be assessed together with
interest and costs (the “Counterclaim”).
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36. HARME(E)
(a) () (a)

ERAHBERBERNALTER
RERXRBBEOEE  WEAZ
RREEORBA/AILZ R RIEL
BRIE S BREAEZERR
ERERBEEEF -  NAF
B KBEERLAMNERER
RZBERERBERITAFE—F
ER ARAREER/EBEAMN
BERBE( =T —=F: &) o

b) RBEHR EMBRRP 2 (b)
HipskRBEFBWT

36. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (continued)

(continued)

Based on the available evidence and subject to
discovery and expert evidence, the Defendant'’s
representing solicitor considered that there were
valid defences to the Claim and the Defendant had
a good chance of success in the Claim and the
Counterclaim. During the year, there was no further
progress noted in the Claim and Counterclaim.
Having considered the positive legal opinion and
no further progress in the Claim and Counterclaim
during the year, the directors of the Company are
of the opinion that no provision is required to be
made (2013: Nil).

At the end of the reporting period, details of other
contingent liabilities in the financial statements
were as follows:

rEE AN
Group Company
TE-NFE —_T—F ZF-0OF _T—=F
2014 2013 2014 2013
FHET TAT FET FABT
HK$’'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FMAMIRITIK T  Guarantees given to
Lip=ENSIEEY) banks in connection
EERMmET with facilities granted
fﬁﬂzm% to subsidiaries - - 85,000 117,647
PR T —AHHE  Guarantees for loans
RENERZ granted to an available-
(R for-sale investment 7,710 = - =
7,710 - 85,000 117,647

R-ZE—WNE=A=+—8 -
ERARNBG TFRITERME
FHEBRARZEITEERDD
F3 % 13,800,000 L (— T —=
4 1 20,000,000/8 7T ) IR fE -
MR F—AHEERENE
FIEEFED A E 46,828,000
BIL(ZZE—=F : #)WEE -
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As at 31 March 2014, the banking facilities granted
to the subsidiaries subject to guarantees given to
the banks by the Company were utilised to the
extent of HK$13,800,000 (2013: HK$20,000,000). The
loan facilities granted to an available-for-sale
investment were utilised to the extent of
approximately HK$6,828,000 (2013: Nil).
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37. EEHEHA

AEBNFEEEEEAEBEBENERT
EFRMFEIERME14 %28 -

38. KEHEZRH

AEERBELEHERHERES
TEFBYEREIBE MWEZ
HEBEH I —ZE2_t%-

RZZE—NF=A=+—H &%
B A N ATEUE 2 2 HE R K
RORNESARE  RHEHERERD
AR

37.

38.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

Details of the Group's bank loans, which are secured by
certain assets of the Group, are included in notes 14 and
28.

OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS

The Group leases certain of its office premises and staff
quarters under operating lease arrangements. Leases for
properties are negotiated for terms ranging from one to
twenty years.

At 31 March 2014, the Group had total future minimum
lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases
falling due as follows:

AEHE
Group
—B-mE —T-=F
2014 2013
FET FET
HK$'000 HK$'000
—FR Within one year 5,042 8,287
RE_FEEFRF (B In the second to fifth
BHEMSE) years, inclusive 4,620 10,938
HBiBAF After five years 3,062 288
12,724 19,513
RIEHR - XA EEAEKN At the end of the reporting period, the Company had no
B HERHE - significant operating lease arrangements.
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39. H&iE

B F X3 2 KA THE L HE S
Hh s REBRBERRIFE FHE
IR -

39. COMMITMENTS

In addition to the operating lease commitments detailed
in note 38 above, the Group had the following capital
commitments at the end of the reporting period:

rEH

Group
—E-mFE —T—=F
2014 2013
THxT FET
HK$'000 HK$'000

ERTRVERVERE - Contracted, but not provided for:

M = MR Property, plant and equipment 1,880 14,327

REREEIR - 2R D T 8 4 7] B A&
B(CE—=F:8)-

40. BEALRS
(@) BRIELZEHEHRELMmBLH

MR ZIN  RAFR - K&
BETINERBEEALRS :

At the end of the reporting period, the Company had no
significant commitments (2013: Nil).

40. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(@) In addition to the transactions detailed elsewhere in
these financial statements, the Group had the
following material transactions with related parties

during the year:

rEH
Group
—EB-mE  —T=F
2014 2013
PiiaE THExT TFET
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
MASE LA Royalty expense charged by
WER 2 fE A an associate of the Group (i) 232 784
MEtE A RBE 2 Em Purchases of products from
associates (i) 13,769 3,604
B E Notes:

(i) ERAEX HRRIEARE B AR
RAFAMHENE LB FERDE
BRBERNRRAMBRRMILZ
{8 PR ek IR KA

(ii) REEAREE 2 R IR RS
ARAETEEIERPZ ARBREE
i fEHEY

(i) The royalty expense was calculated based on the number of
electronic handheld products sold by a subsidiary of the Group

during the year with the terms as stipulated in the royalty

agreement between the associate and that subsidiary.

(ii) The purchases from associates were made according to the

published prices and conditions offered by the associates to its

major customers.
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40. BBEALR S (/&) 40. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(continued)
b) AEBEETEZEIEABRMY (b) Compensation of key management personnel of
the Group:

—E-mF —T=F

2014 2013
FHET FET
HK$'000 HK$'000
CHE B /T Short term employee benefits 10,759 11,836
BRIFENE 2 18 Performance-related incentive
payments 200 75
RIRETEHE =X Pension scheme contributions 294 361
SHFTEEBAEZHH  Total compensation paid to
PR key management personnel 11,253 12,272
EEMSE—THIBIHRNIE Further details of directors’ emoluments are
RRMITES © included in note 8 to the financial statements.
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41. ZERE T 2EMTR
FHEERTARRERRZEE

41. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of

(ERUNNE financial instruments as at the end of the reporting
period are as follows:
—E-NF rEE
2014 Group
EREE Financial assets
BRK AHHE
FE U BR X tRMEE mat
Available-
for-sale
Loans and financial
receivables assets Total
FET FET FHET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
At HERE Available-for-sale investments - 31,199 31,199
Cp=33 b e e = Financial assets included in
& long term deposits 52 - 52
FEINE 5 R Trade receivables 43,587 - 43,587
Y AFEMIIE 84 N Financial assets included in
E M EUWAR R &/t prepayments, deposits and
BE other receivables 25,249 - 25,249
JEU & & R BIBRK Amounts due from joint ventures 401 - 401
JE Ui Bt 2 A Bl BR R Amounts due from associates 5,734 - 5,734
EHEMFER Pledged deposits 1,001 - 1,001
RekReFEER Cash and cash equivalents 33,496 - 33,496
109,520 31,199 140,719
tRas Financial liabilities
REBHERATE
ZEMEE
Financial
liabilities at
amortised cost
FHET
HK$'000
JEE SRR Trade payables 40,145
H AE A BRI Financial liabilities included in
EtaEre/mas other payables and accruals 23,212
M RIRITEE Interest-bearing bank borrowings 23,814
R —H B A A Amount due to a non-controlling shareholder
—IEFE B R AR K of a subsidiary 2,002
89,173
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41. REHE s z2eMIT A (E) 41. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY
(continued)
—T—=F piN-SAE |
2013 Group
TREE Financial assets

Bk  AHHE

JE U AR 3K TREE #st
Available-
for-sale
Loans and financial
receivables assets Total

TET TET TAET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

AHEHERE Available-for-sale investments — 36,425 36,425
HEREe 2/ Financial assets included in
BE long term deposits 3,275
FEE S ERK Trade receivables 56,999
FIATERFIE - & & Financial assets included in
HMERER 2SR prepayments, deposits and
BiE other receivables 27,780 = 27,780
JE W & R R RR K Amounts due from associates 3,328 = 3,328
e & & R BIRRK Amounts due from joint ventures 195 - 195
RekReFEER Cash and cash equivalents 80,782 - 80,782
172,359 36,425 208,784
TRAE Financial liabilities
R SHRAR T 2
ZEMARE
Financial
liabilities at
amortised cost
FET
HK$'000
eS8 5 R Trade payables 43,389
5 BE M AR & Financial liabilities included in
ErtBaEzemAasE other payables and accruals 22,551
B EIRITEE Interest-bearing bank borrowing 20,000
85,940
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4. RERHE s 2EMITE(E) 41. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY
(continued)
FiIN/NE |
Company
SREE Financial assets
ERREWERR
Loans and receivables
—F-QmE —F=F
2014 2013
FEx FAT
HK$'000 HK$'000
FEUWBH B A Rl BR K Due from subsidiaries 445,266 534,266
Re RIBTTES Cash and bank balances 101 103
445,367 534,369
SREE Financial liabilities
RBERATEZ
cREE

Financial liabilities
at amortised cost

—EF-NFE —FT-=F

2014 2013
FTET FAET
HK$'000 HK$'000

5] B E b FE BRFR N B AT Financial liabilities included in
BEzemAR other payables and accruals 74 74
ANERIENGIE N Due to subsidiaries 198,578 198,897
198,652 198,971
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42. ERTEZAFERLAFYES

43.

n

EEECHEAKRECEREEN
TREBZATVE TE=AMHY
ERE SEEEMRS AKX
REANIEETA/REHAZIE -
ARFETEASEAE AIfKE
RERRA BB EBEBRAR -

Z-—NE=A=+—AK_-%
F=ZA=1T—8H AEERAXK
A EAEMR AT ETEZ SR
TH-

MEEEREBERBXR

N
YN

AEEFTECRIADRERE &
WEZERLEMEEER  Re
KEMEFEHR  REFER - BERA
REERAGR BNESRN
HoAf 85 BR R S Bt BERIT R B IA K
FEAT — BB B — FRAE B BUR AR ©

AEESBIAEENEIEZARA
SHER  RDE S AR RINERE
%o BRI RRAEER AR

BREVBCR - Bt
EERE

AEBEZEERBRIEREHERBK
BHHEK - REBRAREE LKE
RLVBEERFOEB2EL - 1
—E-NE=ZR=+—RHAEATE
FiEERWE 5 RN E BB 55%
(ZT—=%F: BiB45%) - HELE
PRELMEBRIMNER - EFHAN
SEREXBEENERAATE -
ABEERRRERE  AEEE
BEEZK—HEAE AEEEE
ER%E - EEEHREMEERER
PARECR BRERBRAE 15 s 4K 0] 380 B S 7%
o AEE e E HENEHRER
FEWE Z R 2 Al U [l & %8 - DA
PR LA A] U (B & BB AF B 59 2 BUE
BRE-Ims AEEEFAR
AEEZEERREZEETETA
TR PRI

42.

43.

FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY
OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Management has assessed that the fair values of the
Group's financial assets and liabilities, except for
available-for-sale investments, approximate to their
carrying amounts largely due to the short term maturities
of these instruments. Available-for-sale investments are
stated at cost less impairment as their fair values cannot
be reliably measured.

As at 31 March 2014 and 2013, the Group and the Company
did not have any financial instruments measured at fair
value.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Group's principal financial instruments mainly
comprise investments, trade and other receivables, cash
and short term deposits, long term deposits, balances
with associates and joint ventures, trade payables, other
payables, interest-bearing bank borrowing and an
amount due to a non-controlling shareholder of a
subsidiary.

The main risks arising from the Group'’s financial
instruments are credit risk, liquidity risk and foreign
currency risk. The board of directors reviews and agrees
policies for managing each of these risks and they are
summarised below.

Credit risk

The Group's credit risk is primarily attributable to its
trade receivables. The Group has been largely
dependent on a small number of customers for a
substantial portion of its business. The top five customers
represent over 55% (2013: over 45%) of the amount of
trade receivables as at 31 March 2014. The failure of
these customers to make the required payments could
have a negative impact on the Group’s operating results.
In order to minimise the credit risk, management of the
Group has delegated a team responsible for the
determination of credit limits, credit approvals and other
monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-up action is
taken to recover overdue debts. In addition, the Group
regularly reviews the recoverable amount of each
individual trade to ensure that adequate impairment
losses are made for irrecoverable amounts. In this
regard, the directors consider that the Group's credit risk
is properly managed and significantly reduced.
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43. BEEABEEEERBE(E)

EERE(E)
ARAREEERBACEEERE
FZTETEER WAL EESIEH
HiHm o

rEBHEMEREE(BRES LR
¢EEER  AHHERE B
BERRRBERRRIEBZERN
FEMNFE R kHEMEKRRERN
LEMEE) ZIEERRKRBELT
KB MARZ&S EREZAL
LT A ZERMAE -

TN SR P R B R UE B AR K
ZEEERE  HE-THNELEIE
AR TS R E 23 KR -

AEBUAKEMERDESRETA
EREESERAR ZTAES
HemTAMGREE(WERKES
R 2 BB - WIRRR X
ZBRERERBNR

AEBERRITEERRITEER
O EESHEMEREEEHHER
SrE - xAEER_-_ZT—WNF=A
=+t —B—FRIPZRITEE
IR B (B R BRI B 5 R A

43. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

Credit risk (continued)

Since the Group trades only with recognised and
creditworthy third parties, there is no requirement for
collateral.

The credit risk of the Group's other financial assets,
which comprise cash and cash equivalents, available-for-
sale investments, amounts due from joint ventures and
associates and financial assets included in prepayments,
deposits and other receivables, arises from default of the
counterparty, with a maximum exposure equal to the
carrying amounts of these instruments.

Further quantitative data in respect of the Group's
exposure to credit risk arising from trade receivables are
disclosed in note 23 to the financial statements.

Liquidity risk

The Group monitors its risk to a shortage of funds using
a recurring liquidity planning tool. This tool considers the
maturity of both its financial instruments and financial
assets (e.g., trade receivables) and projected cash flows
from operations.

The Group's objective is to maintain a balance between
continuity of funding and flexibility through the use of
bank borrowings and banking facilities. The Group's
bank borrowings would mature in less than one year as
at 31 March 2014 based on the carrying value of
borrowings reflected in the financial statements.
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43. KRR EEEEREE (8) 43. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

REBELEME(E) Liquidity risk (continued)
REERR - LB FTHORAIRFKIE The maturity profile of the Group's financial liabilities as
BEE. REESsmABEZERE at the end of the reporting period, based on the
R - contractual undiscounted payments, is as follows:
rEH Group
—E-IF
2014
=@EAE
DR DR
FEER =@A +=M@A et
3 to
On Lessthan less than
demand 3 months 12 months Total
FHERT THT THET FTHET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000
M ERITEE Interest-bearing bank
borrowings - 10,014 13,800 23,814
JERTE F R Trade payables 21,675 18,470 - 40,145
H {th FE 1S BR 5K Other payables 23,212 - - 23,212
et —H B A A Due to a non-controlling
—IFFEHIAREREREX  shareholder of a subsidiary 2,002 - - 2,002
MR F—a ¥ Guarantees for loans granted
KREMERZER  to an available-for-sale
investment 6,828 - - 6,828
53,717 28,484 13,800 96,001
—E—=F
2013
=“@A=E
LN LN
JEEK =EA +=fEA HEt
3to
On  Lessthan less than
demand 3 months 12 months Total
FHET FHET FHET FHET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
it EIRITIEE Interest-bearing bank
borrowing 20,000 = = 20,000
FETE B RN Trade payables 21,273 19,386 2,730 43,389
H fth FE AT BR 5K Other payables 22,551 - - 22,551
63,824 19,386 2,730 85,940
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43. B RABEEBERBE(E)

FEE SRR (E)

RMEHR - AB 5T 4RI A
AEE . KRR RAaBZERD
BERAT

AT

43. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

Liquidity risk (continued)

The maturity profile of the Company’s financial liabilities
as at the end of the reporting period, based on the
contractual undiscounted payments, is as follows:

Company
—B-F
2014
BER LIR-F BBE-F #st
On Less than Over
demand 1 year 1 year Total

FTERT FTER FTERT FTET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

FEBEEB ARIBRZ  Due to subsidiaries

198,578 198,578

| EEMENBER  Financial liabilities included

RETREZ in other payables and

TRAE accruals - 74 - 74
FARMIEITIK FHIE Guarantees given to banks in

AEINEEREM connection with facilities

BTIRITZHER granted to subsidiaries - 13,800 - 13,800

- 13,874 198,578 212,452

—_E—=F
2013
2K LIR—F BE—F ey
On  Lessthan Over
demand 1 year 1 year Total

TATT TAETT T TAETT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

FEBEEB ARIBREX  Due to subsidiaries

198,897 198,897

Y AEEMEMBER  Financial liabilities included

NEETREZ in other payables and
eRBE accruals _ 74 _ 74
B RIRITIR FHE Guarantees given to banks in
ANRIMEEEEM connection with facilities
HBTIRITZER granted to subsidiaries 20,000 = = 20,000
20,000 74 198,897 218,971
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
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43.

MBERREREEERBK(E)

SN LB
AEBEZPERHEERER - ZFR
RREEEEMNNHEXEE (B
HINRE SRRSO - REBA B fE
WE 5 RIS B 5 RUAINE
AHE

DA 7 4 B O 2 A 5 B A
MERT  ARBRAEERY &
DA - YRS AN AEE
BRI IR SRS (R MM AE R
£ {52 DT ERBHT) -

43. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currency risk

The Group has transactional currency exposures. These
exposures arise from sales or purchases by operating
units in currencies other than the units’ functional
currencies. Certain trade receivables and payables of the
Group are denominated in foreign currencies.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the
end of the reporting period to a reasonably possible
change in the Renminbi and Japanese yen exchange
rates, with all other variables held constant, of the
Group's loss before tax (due to changes in the fair value
of monetary assets and liabilities).

BADRF, #in,
2BEsk (BE) 288 (HD)Ezm~
Change in Increase/
Change profit/(loss) (decrease)
in rate before tax in equity*
B FAET FAET
% HK$'000 HK$'000
—E-NmF 2014
ABTHATEBER If the Hong Kong dollar
B2 A - weakens against:
AR Renminbi 5 (753) -
=] Japanese yen 8 443 -
TR A T EEEX If the Hong Kong dollar
FHE strengthens against:
AR Renminbi 5 753 -
H Japanese yen 8 (443) _
—E—=F 2013
ERTT RN T EEERX If the Hong Kong dollar
B218 - weakens against:
AR Renminbi 5 344 _
=] Japanese yen 8 3,009 -
ERATHATEKER If the Hong Kong dollar
FE : strengthens against:
AR Renminbi 5 (344) _
H Japanese yen 8 (3,009) =

* TEERER

*  Excluding accumulated losses

72

252 (BR) BRAR » 2014 AFERE
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
—ZF—NFE=H=+—H 31 March 2014

43.

44.

MBEREREEERBEK(E)

EXREHE
REEZEARER  T2AREDR
EASEERELS  WHTRE
ZERLE  DAXFBEEB MRS
BER{EE ©

AEBEBEEEAEE  WHRL
EARR 2 EE) B ERREMED
TR ERIFUFABREEARER -
REBEHSARRN TFREZBRS -
[m) A% 3R B & AN s BT HT A (D o A&
EEVEZIEMEREATRKZA
ReHz2—_ZT—WF=ZA=+—~H
F—EBE—=F=A=1+—HIFE -
HBE BERSEFLEEE -

A B AR B L (RBEER R
HEE ERER - AEEZHEA
ERB LR BBE— - REHE
B BN AT

43. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

Capital management

The primary objectives of the Group's capital
management are to safeguard the Group's ability to
continue as a going concern and to maintain healthy
capital ratios in order to support its business and
maximise shareholders’ value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes
adjustments to it in light of changes in economic
conditions and the risk characteristics of the underlying
assets. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the
Group may adjust the dividend payment to shareholders,
return capital to shareholders or issue new shares. The
Group is not subject to any externally imposed capital
requirements. No changes were made in the objectives,
policies or processes for managing capital during the
years ended 31 March 2014 and 31 March 2013.

The Group monitors capital using a current ratio, which
is current assets divided by current liabilities. The
Group's policy is to maintain the current ratio over one.
The current ratios as at the end of the reporting periods
were as follows:

AEH Group
—B-mFE —T-=F
2014 2013
FET FAET
HK$'000 HK$'000
MENEE Current assets 159,425 240,408
mENEE Current liabilities 102,861 96,223
BN Current ratio 1.55 2.50

MR 2

KB HRENR - -—HFRA
“TEHEESESTeHENKE
TIED

44. APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL

STATEMENTS

The financial statements were approved and authorised
for issue by the board of directors on 27 June 2014.
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Financial Summary

N E W AN B EZI Bz 2 Hp— This summary does not form part of the audited financial
B o statements.
ES RESULTS

BE=A=T—HLEE
For the year ended 31 March
“E-2F —B——% T —T-=F CZ¥F-0OF
2010 2011 2012 2013 2014
FEL THET FEL TEL FET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

WA Revenue 663,261 622,855 478,708 383,340 349,382
A EE Loss before tax (21,990) (31,485) (76,872) (76,689) (86,789)
M Income tax (12,942) (292) (46) 3 (16)
rEEEE Loss for the year (34,932) (31,777) (76,918) (76,685) (86,805)
SR/ (B8) Profit/(Loss) attributable to:

AARIRESREA Equity holders of the Company (34,256) (31,807) (73,182) (75,724) (80,409)

S Non-controlling interests (676) 30 (3,736) (961) (6,396)
AFEEE Loss for the year (34,932) (31,777) (76,918) (76,685) (86,805)
BEEHESE ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

R=B=t+-H

As at 31 March
“T-%F —T——%F —ET--F —T-=F ZE-QOf
2010 2011 2012 2013 2014
THT THT TET TET TET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

BELE Total assets 670,086 610,111 523,959 431,960 349,791
BfREE Total liabilities (175,489) (136,403) (112,406) (96,223)  (102,861)

494,597 473,708 411,553 335,737 246,930

ARAIRERB A Equity attributable to equity
JE(h ke holders of the Company 491,142 469,967 407,403 332,392 250,509
IR Non-controlling interests 3,455 3,741 4,150 3,345 (3,579)

494,597 473,708 411,553 335,737 246,930
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Particulars of Major Properties

AEBR-_Z—WNF=A=+—HEHH=E
EMEFHBOT

£\ B

Name/location

Particulars of major properties held by the Group as at 31

March 2014 are set out below:

Pl
Type

£

Lease term

HEWE :

Leasehold properties:

1.

BENEEREEINR

EAMTIET L2218

F13-245 TR

B P3 SR (F B A

Workshop Nos.13 to 24 on 2nd Floor
and Car Parking Space No. P3

on Basement, Sino Industrial Plaza

9 Kai Cheung Road

Kowloon Bay

Hong Kong

THERE=RZEEETH
REmkii#

SHEER

ENTXRER

Dongguan Chang An Group Sense
Electronics Factory

Fourth Industrial Zone, Wusha
Chang An, Dongguan

The People’s Republic of China

MEERE

BN TR

FEIATBE 96 557

96 Ban He Road

Guangzhou Science Park
Guangzhou City

Guangdong Province

The People’s Republic of China

T

Industrial

T

Industrial

T

Industrial
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REH

Medium-term lease

REH

Medium-term lease

R

Medium-term lease



R ED

GroupSense
EEEE)ERAT
Group Sense (International) Limited
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Rooms 13-24, 2/F., Sino Industrial Plaza,
9 Kai Cheung Road, Kowloon Bay,
Kowloon, Hong Kong
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